
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 21 JUNE 2012 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Lord Palmer (Chairman) 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Mark Shooter (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Alex Brodkin 
Geof Cooke 

Sury Khatri 
Graham Old 

Hugh Rayner 
 

 
Substitutes for Councillor Members 
 

Jack Cohen 
Arjun Mittra 

Susette Palmer 
Alan Schneiderman 

Stephen Sowerby 
Andreas Tambourides 

 
Independent Members 
 

Richard Harbord Debra Lewis  

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Aysen Giritli – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Chidi Agada 020 8359 2037 chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk 

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Personal and Prejudicial Interests  
 

 

4.   Public Question Time (If any)  
 

 

5.   Members' Item - Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2011/2012  
 

1 - 14 

6.   Progress Report of Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action 
Plan  
 

15 - 26 

7.   Corporate Anti Fraud Team Annual Report 2011-12  
 

27 - 46 

8.   Exception Recommendations Report and Progress Report up to 
6th June 2012  
 

47 - 70 

9.   Internal Audit Annual Opinion  
 

71 - 108 

10.   Accounts Audit Approach Memorandum  
 

109 - 126 

11.   Quarterly Progress Reports - External Audit  
 

The External Auditors, Grant Thornton LLP, is going to give a 
verbal update at the meeting. 

Verbal 
Report 

12.   Draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/2012  
 

127 - 154 

13.   Un-Audited Statement of Accounts 2011/12  
 

155 - 192 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Chidi Agada 020 
8359 2037 chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text 
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms 
also have induction loops. 

 
 



 
    

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012 

Subject Members’ Item – Annual Report of 
the Audit Committee 2011/2012 

Report of Chairman of Audit Committee – 

Councillor Lord Palmer 

Summary This report informs the Committee of a Member’s 
Item from the Chairman of the Committee, Councillor 
Lord Palmer, and requests that the Committee notes 
the report. 

 

 
Officer Contributors Maryellen Salter - Assistant Director - Audit and Risk 

Management 

Chidilim Agada – Business Governance Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected Not applicable 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2011/2012 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Chidilim Agada – Business Governance Service 

020 8359 2037;  chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5

1



 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee notes and agrees the substance of the proposed 

Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2011/2012. 
 
1.2 That the Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2011/2012 be reported to 

Council. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Audit Committee provides the Council with independent assurance and 

effective challenge and, therefore, the Committee is central to the provision of 
effective governance. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1  None in the context of this report. 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Members’ Items allow Members of the Committee to bring a wide range of 

issues to the attention of the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. All of these issues must be considered for their equalities and 
diversity implications. 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are noted in Part 3, Section 4 of the 

Council’s Constitution. 

8.2 Council Procedure Rules Section 2 - Committees and Sub-Committees – 
Paragraph 7.1 states a Member will be permitted to have one matter only (with 
no sub-items) on the agenda for a meeting of a committee or sub-committee 
on which he/she serves. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

2



9.1 Councillor Lord Palmer has requested that a Member’s Item on the Annual 
Report of the Audit Committee be considered at this meeting. 

 
9.2 The Annual Report describes the work of the Committee to date and the 

outcomes it has achieved for 2011-12.  It also sets the tone for the current 
municipal year. 

 
9.3  The Committee is asked whether they wish to make any amendments and note 

that the report will be presented to full Council in due course. 
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) TE 

 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Enclosure 

 

 
Barnet Council 

 
 

Audit Committee 
Annual Report 

 
 

2011/12 
 
 

5



 
 
 

Context 

 
Good corporate governance requires independent, effective assurance about 
both the adequacy of financial management and reporting, and the management 
of other processes required to achieve the organisation’s corporate and service 
objectives. Good practice from the wider public sector indicates that these 
functions are best delivered by an independent audit committee. In this context, 
“independence” means that an audit committee should be independent from any 
other executive function. 
It is important that local authorities have independent assurance about the 
mechanisms underpinning these aspects of governance. Specifically: 

• independent assurance of the adequacy of the control environment 
within the authority; 

• independent review of the authority’s financial and non financial 
performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk 
and weakens the control environment, and 

• assurance that any issues arising from the process of drawing up, 
auditing and certifying the authority’s annual accounts are properly dealt 
with and that appropriate accounting policies have been applied. 

 
Effective audit committees can bring many benefits to local authorities and these 
benefits are described in CIPFA’s Audit Committees - Practical Guidance for 

Local Authorities as: 

• raising greater awareness of the need for internal control and the 
implementation of audit recommendations 

• increasing public confidence in the objectivity and fairness of financial and 
other reporting; 

• reinforcing the importance and independence of internal and external audit 
and any other similar review process (for example, providing a view on the 
Annual Governance Statement); and 

• providing additional assurance through a process of independent and 
objective review. 

• Effective internal control and the establishment of an audit committee can 
never eliminate the risks of serious fraud, misconduct or misrepresentation 
of the financial position. However, an audit committee: 

� can give additional assurance through a process of 
independent and objective review 

� can raise awareness of the need for sound control and the 
implementation of recommendations by internal and external 
audit 

 

6



 
 
 

Audit Committee at Barnet 
 
The Constitution includes the terms of reference for the Audit Committee, 
defining its core functions.  The terms of reference describes the purpose of the 
Audit Committee as being: 
“to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 
framework and the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of the 
authority’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the 
authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment, and to oversee 
the financial reporting process.”  
 
To remain independent from the Executive the Audit Committee is chaired by a 
member of an opposition party.  In order to bring additional expertise from the 
sector and financial capability the Audit Committee also has two independent 
members. 
 
The Audit Committee has a work programme that has been drawn up to 
effectively discharge its responsibilities as defined by the terms of reference.  The 
Committee relies upon independent, qualified professionals to provide assurance.  
Directors and Assistant Directors have been requested by the Audit Committee to 
support the process and to aid in the Committees effectiveness/understanding. 
 
The Committee undertakes all of its meetings in the public domain, during the 
year there have been no instances whereby items have been considered exempt. 
 
 

 

7



 
 
 

Audit Committee Outcomes during 2011-12 
 
During the financial year (April 2011 – March 2012) the Audit Committee has 
demonstrated a number of outcomes with a focus on delivering improvement to 
the organisation.  The way in which these were implemented were as follows. 
 

• Key controls and assurance mechanisms – The Committee relies upon 
information presented from qualified, independent and objective officers 
and external assurance providers.  The key controls and assurance 
mechanisms are as described within the Annual Governance Statements. 
The Audit Committee is not a working group, it does not carry out the work 
itself, but relies on the assurance framework to bring significant issues to 
the Committee for discussion and make recommendations for the 
Executive and officers to take forward.  The Committee recognises that 
management, and the executive, are responsible for a sound control 
environment1.  

 

• Improvement agenda – the Audit Committee is committed to improving 
shortfalls in the control environment, rather than apportioning blame. The 
Committee has been provided with assurances on high priority 
recommendations and the progress against these quarter by quarter.  The 
Committee and its Chairman has asked that leading officers (Directors or 
Assistant Directors) come to the Audit Committee to explain any 
deficiencies and how they intent to correct them. The important aspect that 
the Committee has been assessing each quarter is whether the direction 
of travel from one quarter to the next has been positive.   

 
 

• Concerns from external and internal assurances – during the year the 
Committee has been presented with various reports regarding some 
serious control weaknesses.  Of those weaknesses identified the 
Committee has asked in particular to follow up on recommendations 
regarding Procurement control deficiencies and have scheduled in regular 
updates from officers, internal and external audit. Although the progress 
quarter on quarter has been demonstrated we are still concerned that the 
control framework still results in non-compliance and see that adequate 
training is necessary to rectify these problems. 

 

• Planned and unplanned work – The Committee has completed its 
workplan in accordance with its planned level of activity.   In accordance 
with the terms of reference for the Committee, the Chief Internal Auditor 
has reviewed our effectiveness as a Committee and given us some 
feedback on ways in which we can improve, namely the following: 

• Producing a formal Annual Report describing the work of the 
Audit Committee and the outcomes it has achieved; and 

                                                 
1 The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk management and internal 
control 

8



 
 
 

• When necessary, determining an induction process for new 
members. 

There were a number of improvements that were made to the Committee’s 
effectiveness in year: 

• The annual workplan has been redesigned to demonstrate 
how the Audit Committee is discharging its responsibilities; 

• Member briefings occurred in the municipal year in relation to 
fraud and corruption for all members.  E-learning is available 
to members which incorporates the Counter Fraud 
framework. 

• Assurances were provided to the Audit Committee upon 
presentation of the accounts regarding estimates and 
judgments used in the Statement of Accounts. 

• The Audit Committee now receives quarterly reports on 
recommendations not implemented for priority one 
recommendations (high risk) 

• The Audit Committee also receives quarterly information on 
risk management 

• The Audit Committee receives the Annual Audit Plan which 
discusses the risks to the Council 

• The Committee provided their training needs where 
appropriate and this was fed into the Member Training 
programme led by Corporate Governance. 

The Committee supports fully the Fraud team in taking vigorous action to 
counter and expose fraud.  We have also worked with our external 
auditors proactively to review processes within the council and gain 
assurances through their regular reporting.  

In year, the internal audit function restructured and gained another 
provider to support the in-house team, this in turn has improved the level 
of reporting to the Committee and the level of specialist support for the 
council to add value. 

 

• Conclusions 
 

The Committee feels that it has demonstrated that it has added value to 
the council’s overall governance framework. During 2012-13 it will 
continue to request officers to attend Committee meetings to aid in its 
understanding of the services, but mostly to ensure that internal and 
external recommendations are implemented on a timely basis. 
 
We request that Procurement remains a focus for the Executive and senior 
officers and the Committee will take an active role in ensuring progress is 
made, monitoring progress through officers and internal and external 
assurances. 

 

 
 

9



 
 
 

Appendix 1 – Planned and Unplanned work 
 
Detail Reports considered: 

 

Date Reports 

June 2011 Metpro reporting into contracting with the Council� 

Internal Audit Opinion 2010-11 

Internal Audit Progress Report quarter 4 

Use of Resources� 

External Audit Annual Audit Approach Memorandum  (AAAM) 

Statement of Accounts (draft) 

External Audit Fees 

Code of Corporate Governance 

Draft Annual Governance Statement 

Annual Report CAFT 2010-11 

External Auditors Report 

Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan� 

                                                 
� Unplanned work 

 

10



 
 
 

Date Reports 

September 2011 Annual Service Plan – CAFT 2011-12 

ISA 260 report from External Audit 

Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan� 

Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 1 

Exception Recommendations Report 

Annual Governance Statement – Final  

Statement of Accounts (final) 

December 2011 Members item� 

Annual Audit Letter 2010-11 

Interim Report – CAFT 

Internal Audit Progress Report – quarter 2 

Exception Recommendations Report 

Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan� 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 
� Unplanned work 

 

 

11



 
 
 

Date Reports 

April 2012 Bribery Policy 

CAFT Strategy 2012-13 

Internal Audit, Risk Management and CAFT Annual Plan 2012-13 including Internal Audit Strategy 
2012-13 

Internal Audit Progress Report – Quarter 3 & 4 

Exception Recommendations Report 

Grants Report – external audit 

External Audit Annual Plan 2011-12 

Financial Regulations 

Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement 

Review of Audit Committee effectiveness 

Work programme for Audit Committee 2012-13 

Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan� 

 

                                                 
� Unplanned work 

12



 
 
 

Appendix 2  

Audit Committee Recommendations 
 
 
Internal Audit High Priority Recommendations 
 
 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

49% 60% 69% 75% 

 
Target for implementation is 90% each quarter, whilst this has not been achieved 
the Committee recognise the direction of travel. 
 
 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
 
  

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012  

Subject Progress Report of Procurement 
Controls and Monitoring Action Plan  

Report of Commercial Director 

Summary Members are asked to note the progress against the 
Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

 
 

 

Officer Contributors Craig Cooper, Commercial Director 

Lesley Meeks, Assistant Director of Commercial 
Assurance 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected None 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Appendix A  - Action Plan from Internal Audit Report 
Contract Procedure Rules – April 2012 plus Progress 
Comments 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Lesley Meeks, Assistant Director of Commercial 
Assurance 020 8359 7535 

AGENDA ITEM 6

15



 

 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1 That the Committee note the contents of the Action Plan and the 
progress to date.  

 
 

2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Audit Committee 8 December 2011 - recommended that the Assistant 

Director of Finance – Audit and Risk Management continue to report to 
the Audit Committee on the further implementation and embedding of 
these controls.  

 
2.2    Audit Committee 26 April 2012 - recommended that the Assistant 

Director of Commercial Assurance report to the June Audit Committee 
providing assurance that the actions have been implemented in line 
with the recommendations.  

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Having an appropriate Procurement Function supports the council’s 

priorities in the 2011/14 Corporate Plan of delivering ‘better services 
with less money’ and a ‘successful London suburb’. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Action Plan set out identified risk(s) in relation to the key findings 

of the audit as reported in April 2012. 
 
4.2 Without an effective procurement and contract management function 

there is the risk to the Council of failure to deliver value for money and 
having non-commercial contracts with suppliers The Procurement 
Controls and Monitoring Plan has been devised to respond to identified 
risks. 

 
4.3 There are also potential safeguarding risks if adequate procurement 

due diligence has not been followed. It is therefore important that the 
Contract Procedure Rules are embedded not only within the Corporate 
Procurement Team but throughout the council. The formation of a 
working group including representatives from all directorates has been 
set up and has met weekly to consider practical solutions.  

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equalities Act 2010, the council is under an obligation 

to have due regard to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing 
equality and fostering good relations in the contexts of age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, religion or belief and 
sexual orientation 

 
5.2 The duty applies to a person, who is not a public authority but who 

exercises public functions and therefore must, in the exercise of those 

16



 

 

functions, have due regard to the general equality duty.  This includes 
any organisation contracted by a local authority to provide services on 
its behalf.  

 
5.3   The Equalities Act 2010 states that: 
 

Public sector organisations will be judged on outcomes and therefore 
have a responsibility to consider equality as part of every procurement. 
 
(Equality Act 2010, Part II Advancement of Equality Chapter 1 Public 
Sector Equality Duty Clause 149 (2)). 

 
5.4 Implementation of the actions coming from the key findings from the 

Control and Monitoring Action Plan will ensure that the Council 
addresses any non-compliant contracts, taking action to ensure that all 
contractors comply with the general equality duty set out above.  
 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 

 
6.1     As set out at paragraph 7.1 below, section 3(1) of the Local 

Government Act 1999 imposes a duty on Local Authorities to ‘make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which 
its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. The implementation of actions associated 
with the audit findings and the Procurement Controls and Monitoring 
Plan would, amongst other things, assist the Council in performing the 
above duty as well as meeting its general fiduciary duty to the tax 
payer, to ensure effective utilisation and monitoring of its use of 
resources 

 
6.2 The improvements noted in procurement controls supports the delivery 

of value for money, although it is noted that value for money is an 
holistic judgement on the Council’s arrangements for economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. This report notes the progress of the 
controls designed to improve the control environment relating to 
Council procurement activity.  

 
6.3 The working group, which includes representatives from all 

directorates, will continue to meet to drive forward  the: implementation 
of actions from the previous audit in April;  continuation of working 
together to implement actions within the Procurement Controls and 
Monitoring Action Plan and ‘centralisation’ of procurement function. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1  Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 imposes a duty on 

Local Authorities to ‘make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

17



 

 

 
7.2  The public procurement regulations apply whenever a contracting 

authority whether by itself, or through a third party, seeks offers in 
relation to a proposed public ‘works’ ‘supply’ or ‘service’ contract, the 
value of which exceeds certain financial thresholds. The public 
procurement regulations make a distinction between two categories of 
services. Schedule 3 to the Pubic Contract Regulations 2006 contains 
two lists of categories of services.  The first list, which appears in Part 
A, contains description of services which are subject to the full 
application of the rules under the public procurement regulations. If a 
service in Part A exceeds the relevant threshold, it is subject to the full 
public procurement regulations, such as the obligation to subject the 
service to advertisement before an award of contract.    

 
Only limited parts of the Regulations apply in the case of Part B 
services contracts and do not apply to service concessions or contracts 
that are below the relevant thresholds.  Such contracts are nonetheless 
caught by general Treaty principles of equal treatment, non-
discrimination and transparency. 

 
With respect to contract award, the award decision must comply with 
procedural rules laid down at the outset and which comply with the 
general principles of non-discrimination and equal treatment. 

 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 The Constitution Part 3 Responsibility for Functions section 2 allows 

the Audit Committee the ability to monitor the effective operation of risk 
management and corporate governance in the Council. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The procurement Control and Monitoring action plan initially produced 

in response to the Internal Audit of CPT in June 2011 has been used 
as the basis for continuous improvement to procurement processes. 

  
 
9.2 The plan demonstrates the key activities and continual improvements 

which have been made such as: 
a) Central Contract repository that hold details of contracts and 

reconciles with forward procurement plan 
b) Use of procurement systems and tools to drive contract 

compliances and good procurement practices 
c) Contract Management training for all staff who manage 

contracts within the Council 
 

9.3 The Control and Monitoring action plan and Contract Procurement 
Rules were used as the basis for the Internal Audit in April 2012.  A 
copy of recommendations and actions plan which formed appendix D 
of the April 2012 Internal Audit Report Contract Procurement Rules can 
be found attached (Appendix A).  It set out the   key findings, the 
corresponding actions and managers’ responses. The attached 

18



 

 

(Appendix A) also notes progress to date.  
 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) POJ 

 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

  A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 –
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

u
le

s
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

2
) 

p
lu

s
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
  

N
e
w
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

–
 C
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 C
P
R
s
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
.1
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

 D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

R
a
g
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 S
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

N
o
. 
1
  

2
0
%
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 t
e
s
te
d
 

c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

v
e
ri
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

in
 l
in
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
P
R
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 C

P
R
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

re
it
e
ra
te
d
 t
o
 a
ll 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 d
ra
ft
e
d
 a
n
d
 

s
ig
n
e
d
. 
 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
-

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
  

J
u
l-
1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 R

u
le
s
 

(C
P
R
s
) 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
, 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
y 
a
re
 n
o
w
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S

p
e
c
ia
l 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
.  
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

P
R
s
 a
re
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta
ff
, 
w
h
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

a
re
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 w

h
ic
h
  

w
e
n
t 
liv
e
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
2
 v
ia
 e
-

le
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
o
l.
 S

o
m
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 

a
im

 i
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 b
y
 

e
n
d
 J
u
n
e
. 
 

 N
o
 1
.1
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 s
to
re
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr
a
l 
re
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 w

h
e
re
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
o
r 
a
s
 a
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
 

in
 e
a
c
h
 D

ir
e
c
to
ra
te
. 
 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w

ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
ly
 w

o
rk
in
g
 

g
ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

h
e
re
 a
ll 
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

a
re
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
. 
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
  

J
u
n
-1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 R

e
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
to
re
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
. 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

w
h
e
re
 e
a
c
h
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 

e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
n
e
. 

 

21



  

N
e
w
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

–
 C
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 C
P
R
s
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
.1
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

 D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

R
a
g
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 S
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

N
o
. 
2
 

 1
0
%
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 t
e
s
te
d
 

w
e
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 

a
s
 c
o
m
p
lia

n
t 
b
u
t 

w
e
re
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
n
-

c
o
m
p
lia

n
t.
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

re
it
e
ra
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
s
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
fo
re
 a
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 

c
o
m
p
lia

n
t.
 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
it
e
ra
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 p
lu
s
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
-

tr
a
in
in
g
. 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

J
u
l-
1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

C
P
R
's
 w

e
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 r
e
it
e
ra
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

p
e
c
ia
l 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
. 
T
h
e
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
-T

ra
in
in
g
 w

e
n
t 

liv
e
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 t
o
o
l 

is
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
re
 

a
w
a
re
 o
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
. 
 

N
o
. 
3
 8
0
%
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 t
e
s
te
d
 

w
e
re
 w

a
iv
e
d
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
. 
T
h
is
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 t
h
e
 

C
P
R
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

th
e
 C

P
R
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
if
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 t
o
o
 r
ig
id
 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
re
 

p
ro
c
u
re
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
. 

T
h
e
 C

P
R
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

a
n
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
2
. 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

J
u
n
-1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

T
h
e
re
 w

a
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
th
e
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 f
in
a
lis

in
g
 

a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 C

P
R
's
. 

F
in
a
lis
e
d
 C

P
R
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

N
o
. 
4
 T
h
e
re
 

a
re
 n
o
 v
e
n
d
o
r 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 o
n
 S

A
P
 

fo
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 v
e
n
d
o
r 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 o
n
 S

A
P
 f
o
r 
o
ld
 

a
n
d
 n
e
w
 v
e
n
d
o
rs
, 
a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ri
m
 

m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
re
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
. 

T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
T
h
e
 V
e
n
d
o
r 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
 l
im

it
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 

th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
. 
F
u
ll 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
w
a
y
s
 o
f 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

In
te
ri
m
 

c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

P
h
a
s
e
 1
 i
s
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
s
 

a
ll 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
lim

it
s
 f
o
r 
S
A
P
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 

e
n
te
re
d
 o
n
 t
o
 S

A
P
. 
P
h
a
s
e
 2
; 

T
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

fo
r 
S
A
P
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
u
s
e
rs
. 

C
lo
s
e
 d
o
w
n
 o
f 
V
e
n
d
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
n
 a
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 b
y
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 b
a
s
is
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
A
b
s
o
lu
te
 c
lo
s
e
 

d
o
w
n
 w

ill
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 b
y
 

2
1
.0
6
.1
2
. 

 

22



  

N
e
w
 V

e
n
d
o
rs
 -
 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
s
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
.3
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

R
a
g
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 S
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

N
o
. 
5
 

 8
0
%
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

v
e
n
d
o
r 
fo
rm

s
 

te
s
te
d
 w

e
re
 n
o
t 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
. 

6
3
%
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

h
a
d
 n
o
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

a
n
y
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
ll 
n
e
w
 v
e
n
d
o
r 
fo
rm

s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
ir
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 S

A
P
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

M
a
y
-1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

N
e
w
 v
e
n
d
o
r 
fo
rm

s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 A

D
 o
r 
L
in
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
 A

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

 N
o
 5
.1
 

N
e
w
 v
e
n
d
o
r 
fo
rm

s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
lly
 s
to
re
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 e
a
s
e
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 f
in
a
l 
s
ig
n
 o
ff
 i
n
 C

P
T
. 
A
 

c
o
p
y
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 s
a
v
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 

d
ri
v
e
. 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

G
re
e
n
 

A
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ig
n
e
d
 v
e
n
d
o
r 

fo
rm

 i
s
 k
e
p
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 S
 d
ri
v
e
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
. 

                         

23



  

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

O
v
e
rs
ig
h
t 
–
 

V
e
n
d
o
r 
S
p
e
n
d
 

a
n
d
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 

R
e
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
.3
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

R
a
g
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 S
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

N
o
. 
6
 

 2
0
%
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

te
s
te
d
 w

h
ic
h
 

w
e
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

re
g
is
te
r 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 d
id
 

n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 w

h
y
 

th
e
y
 w

e
re
 

e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

re
it
e
ra
te
 t
o
 a
ll 
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 

th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 a
d
d
 a
ll 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 

w
h
ic
h
 c
o
n
ta
in
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 

d
a
ta
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
. 
A
 w

a
y
 o
f 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 

s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 

a
n
d
 i
f 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

M
a
y
-1
2
 

G re e n
 

A m b e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 1
.1
 a
n
d
 6
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
n
d
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 R

e
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
to
re
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
. 
T
h
is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

w
h
e
re
 e
a
c
h
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 

e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
n
e
. 

 

N
o
.7
 

 T
h
e
 V
e
n
d
o
r 

S
p
e
n
d
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

th
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

y
e
a
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
 £
2
5
k
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 n
o
t 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

re
g
is
te
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

th
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 V

e
n
d
o
r 
S
p
e
n
d
 A

n
a
ly
s
is
 

re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
is
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 w

it
h
in
 

th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
u
t 
w
e
 w

ill
 a
m
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 s
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 e
a
s
ily
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
. 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

J
u
n
-1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

S
p
e
n
d
 A

n
a
ly
s
is
 n
o
w
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

d
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 o
f 

s
p
e
n
d
 u
s
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
S
A
P
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs
. 
A
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

 

24



     

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 O

v
e
rs
ig
h
t 

–
 V
e
n
d
o
r 
S
p
e
n
d
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R

e
p
o
s
it
o
ry
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

2
.3
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

R
a
g
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 S
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

N
o
. 
8
 

 W
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
rs
 

ra
is
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

y
e
a
r,
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

re
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
rs
 

ra
is
e
d
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
2
. 
A
ll 
e
x
c
e
p
t 
o
n
e
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 a
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 t
re
n
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

re
it
e
ra
te
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 r
a
is
e
 

a
n
d
 o
rd
e
r 
a
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
r 

b
e
fo
re
 a
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
n
 

re
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 P

O
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 a
n
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

w
ill
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

J
u
l-
1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

E
a
c
h
 D

ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
. 
 

P
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 w

e
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
re
 i
t 
m
a
y 
b
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 a
 

re
tr
o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
rd
e
r.
 W

e
 w

ill
 

th
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
b
y
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 t
y
p
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

o
rd
e
rs
 a
re
 p
la
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 

o
rd
e
rs
. 
  
A
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 f
o
r 

J
u
ly
 d
e
a
d
lin

e
. 
 

N
o
.9
 

 W
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 P

o
w
e
rP

o
in
t 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 n
o
te
d
 

th
e
re
 w

a
s
 s
o
m
e
 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
P
R
s
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 

C
P
R
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
ts
 

c
o
n
te
n
t 
is
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

T
h
e
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 d
e
liv

e
re
d
 t
o
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
g
re
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 I
T
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 b
u
ilt
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 w

ill
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le
. 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

–
 C

o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
IS
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry
 

a
n
d
 A

s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
a
y
 

2
0
1
2
 

G
re
e
n
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
w
a
s
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
C
P
R
s
 a
n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 W

o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
. 
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

w
e
n
t 
liv
e
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2
0
1
2
 v
ia
 e
-

le
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
o
l.
 C

o
m
p
le
te
d
 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012  

Subject Annual Report of the Corporate Anti Fraud 
Team  2011-12.  

Report of Head of Corporate Anti Fraud Team  (CAFT)  

Director of Corporate Governance 

Summary The Committee is asked to consider and comment on the CAFT 
Annual Report 2011-12.  

Officer Contributors Clair Green –Head of CAFT 

Jeff Lustig – Director of Corporate Governance. 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected None 

Enclosures Appendix A: CAFT Annual Report  

For decision by Audit Committee 

Function of Council 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in (if 
appropriate) 

Not Applicable 

Contact for further information: Clair Green 020 8359 7791 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

27



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1 That the Audit Committee consider and comment on the CAFT Annual 
Report  2011-12.  

 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 

2.1     Delegated Powers Report (ref: BT/2004-05 -2 March 2004) - The Corporate 
Anti Fraud Team (CAFT) was launched on 7th May 2004  

2.2 Audit Committee 26/4/12 (Decision item 15) – the Audit Committee included in 
the work programme for 2012/13, that an Annual Report on the work of the 
Corporate Anti- Fraud Team be produced to this meeting.  

2.3       Audit Committee  26th April 2012 (Decision item 7)  – the Audit Committee 
approved the CAFT Strategy and Joint CAFT, Internal Audit and Risk 
Management plan for  2012/13. 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2012-13 sets out three corporate priorities; 
Better Services with less money, A successful London Suburb and Sharing 
opportunities and Sharing responsibilities. 

3.2 The Council has a responsibility to protect the public purse through proper 
administration and control of the public funds and assets to which it has been 
entrusted. The work of the Corporate Anti Fraud Team supports this by 
continuing to provide an efficient value for money anti fraud activity, that is 
able to investigate all referrals that are passed to us to an appropriate 
outcome, whilst continuing to offer support, advice and assistance on all 
matters of fraud risks including prevention, fraud detection, money laundering, 
other criminal activity, and deterrent measures, polices and procedures, whilst 
delivering a cohesive approach that reflects best practice and supports all the 
new corporate priorities and principles.  

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The ongoing work of the CAFT supports the Council risk management 

strategy and processes. Where appropriate, outcomes from our investigations 
are reported to both Internal Audit and Risk Management to support their 
ongoing work and to assist in either confirming effective anti fraud controls 
and or suggested areas for improvement.  

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1  CAFT have always strived to ensure that it has takes due regard due regard 

of its public sector equality duty as set out in the Equality Act 2010.  The 
council has developed a series of corporate equality questions which have 
been set out in the Corporate Plan to better understand the impact of 
processes on Barnet’s protected communities. Equalities issues are 

28



 

considered on every CAFT investigation.  Moving into 2012-13 we have now 
began to produce a portfolio of documents to enable us to evidence this.   

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 In April 2011, the CAFT underwent a successful process of restructuring the 

team, this restructure was necessary for the team to continue to meet the 
changing needs of the service whilst still achieving an excellent service that is 
robust,  professional, value for money and fit for purpose.   

 
6.2 The structure and budget that CAFT now operate within has proven 

successful and provides sufficient resource and commitment that is required 
to carry out an effective anti fraud service and deliver the key objectives as 
set out within the strategy. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1       None in the context of this report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 

8.1 The Constitution, Part 3, Paragraph 2, details the functions of the Audit 
Committee including, “To monitor Council policies on Raising Concerns at 
Work” and the anti-fraud and anti-corruption strategy.  

9 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Attached to this report at Appendix A is the CAFT Annual Report 2011-12. 
 
9.2 The purpose of this annual report is to the committee a summary on the 

outcome of preventative, proactive and reactive work undertaken during 
2011/12. It further details the outcomes of the CAFT partnership work, with 
Department of Work and Pension, UK Border Agency and Barnet Homes. 

  
9.3 In addition to the CAFT annual report, we also produce an interim report to 

the Audit Committee, and quarterly Assurance Reports to the Councils Senior 
Management,  April 2012/13 saw CAFT produced an anti fraud strategy which 
details the Councils overall approach and response to fraud risk. 

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
  
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC  

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) JL / SS 
 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 

 

  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

n
ti

 F
ra

u
d
 T

e
a
m

 (
C

A
F
T

) 

  
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0

1
1

-
1
2
 

        

31



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

 

  In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

 T
he

 C
or
po

ra
te
 A
nt
i F

ra
ud

 T
ea

m
 (
C
A
F
T
) 
ha

s 
be

en
 e
st
ab

lis
he

d 
w
ith

in
 B
ar
ne

t 
fo
r 
7 
ye

ar
s.
 D

ur
in
g 
th
at
 t
im

e 
w
e 
ha

ve
 e
m
be

dd
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro
m
ot
ed

 a
 s
tr
on

g 
an

ti 
fr
au

d 
cu

ltu
re
 

ac
ro
ss

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il,
 i
ts
 s
ta
ff,
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
an

d 
re
si
de

nt
s.
 T
he

 C
A
F
T
 s
up

po
rt
s 
th
e 
co

un
ci
l 
in
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
bl
ig
at
io
n 
un

de
r 
se

ct
io
n 
15

1 
of
 t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er
nm

en
t 
A
ct
 1
97

2 
to
 

en
su

re
 th

e 
pr
ot
ec

tio
n 
of
 p
ub

lic
 fu

nd
s 
an

d 
to
 h
av

e 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
sy

st
em

 o
f p

re
ve

nt
io
n 
an

d 
de

te
ct
io
n 
of
 fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n.
   
 

 Li
ke

 a
ny

 o
rg
an

is
at
io
n 
of
 s
ig
ni
fic

an
t 
si
ze

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
ex

ity
, 
B
ar
ne

t 
C
ou

nc
il 
is
 in

he
re
nt
ly
 v
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
to
 r
is
ks

 o
f 
fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n.
 P
ub

lis
he

d 
fr
au

d 
ris

ks
 a
nd

 g
oo

d 
pr
ac

tic
e 

fo
r 
lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

re
 d
et
ai
le
d 
w
ith

in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic
at
io
ns

 C
IP
F
A
’s
 ‘M

an
ag

in
g 
th
e 
R
is
k 
of
 F
ra
ud

’, 
th
e 
A
ud

it 
C
om

m
is
si
on

’s
 ‘P

ro
te
ct
in
g 
th
e 
P
ub

lic
 P
ur
se

’, 
th
e 
D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f
or
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er
nm

en
t 
‘te

n 
po

in
t 
pl
an

 f
or
 t
ac

kl
in
g 
fr
au

d 
in
 t
he

 l
oc

al
 a
ut
ho

rit
ie
s’
 a
nd

 t
he

  
N
at
io
na

l 
F
ra
ud

 A
ut
ho

rit
y 
‘F
ig
ht
in
g 
F
ra
ud

 L
oc

al
ly
’ 
do

cu
m
en

t. 
 I
n 

re
sp

on
se

 t
o 
th
es

e 
ris

ks
, 
C
A
F
T
 h
av

e 
st
riv

ed
 t
o 
en

su
re
 t
ha

t 
th
e 
C
ou

nc
il 
ha

s 
a 
ra
ng

e 
of
 m

iti
ga

tin
g 
co

nt
ro
ls
 i
n 
pl
ac

e 
an

d 
ov

er
 t
he

 l
as

t 
ye

ar
 h
av

e 
w
or
ke

d 
cl
os

el
y 
w
ith

 
se

rv
ic
es

, e
sp

ec
ia
lly
 th

e 
G
ov

er
na

nc
e,
 In

te
rn
al
 A
ud

it 
an

d 
R
is
k 
M
an

ag
em

en
t F

un
ct
io
ns

.  
 W
ith

 r
ed

uc
in
g 
go

ve
rn
m
en

t 
fu
nd

in
g 
an

d 
th
e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 d
ow

nt
ur
n 
it 
is
 v
ita

l t
ha

t 
w
e 
co

nt
in
ue

 t
o 
m
ai
nt
ai
n 
st
ro
ng

 d
ef
en

ce
s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
fr
au

d 
an

d 
m
ak

e 
be

st
 u
se

 o
f 
ou

r 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
an

d 
in
te
lli
ge

nc
e 
in
 o
rd
er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 
w
e 
ha

ve
 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
fr
au

d 
ba

rr
ie
rs
 in

 p
la
ce

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
be

st
 u
se

 o
f o

ur
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud

 s
er
vi
ce

.  
T
he

 p
ur
po

se
 o
f t
hi
s 
an

nu
al
 r
ep

or
t i
s 

to
 p

ro
vi
de

 a
 s
um

m
ar
y 
on

 t
he

 o
ut
co

m
e 

of
 p

re
ve

nt
at
iv
e,
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

an
d 

re
ac

tiv
e 

w
or
k 
un

de
rt
ak

en
 d

ur
in
g 

20
11

/1
2.
 I
t 
fu
rt
he

r 
su

m
m
ar
ie
s 
th
e 

ou
tc
om

es
 o

f 
th
e 

C
A
F
T
 

pa
rt
ne

rs
hi
p 
w
or
k.
   

 T
he

 c
ha

ng
e 
of
 e
m
ph

as
is
 f
ro
m
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er
nm

en
t 
be

in
g 
a 
pr
ov

id
er
 t
o 
a 
co

m
m
is
si
on

er
 o
f 
se

rv
ic
es

 c
ha

ng
es

 t
he

 r
is
k 
pr
of
ile

 o
f 
fr
au

d,
 a
s 
w
el
l a

s 
th
e 
co

nt
ro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
in
 

w
hi
ch

 r
is
k 
is
 m

an
ag

ed
. 
M
or
e 
ar
m
’s
 le

ng
th
 d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 s
er
vi
ce

s 
by

 t
hi
rd
 p
ar
tie

s 
in
 t
he

 v
ol
un

ta
ry
 a
nd

 n
ot
-f
or
-p
ro
fit
 s
ec

to
r 
an

d 
pe

rs
on

al
 c
on

tr
ol
 o
f 
so

ci
al
 c
ar
e 
bu

dg
et
s,
 f
or
 

ex
am

pl
e,
 w

ill
 m

ea
n 
th
at
 m

or
e 
pu

bl
ic
 m

on
ey

 i
s 
en

tr
us

te
d 
to
 m

or
e 
se

ct
or
s,
 w

hi
ls
t 
th
e 
co

nt
ro
ls
 t
he

 l
oc

al
 a
ut
ho

rit
y 
pr
ev

io
us

ly
 e
xe

rc
is
ed

 a
re
 r
em

ov
ed

 o
r 
re
du

ce
d.
 W

ith
ou

t 
ne

w
 s
af
eg

ua
rd
s,
 p
re
ve

nt
in
g,
 d
et
ec

tin
g 
an

d 
in
ve

st
ig
at
in
g 
fr
au

d 
w
ill
 b
ec

om
e 
m
or
e 
di
ffi
cu

lt.
   

 T
he

 N
at
io
na

l a
nn

ua
l f
ra
ud

 I
nd

ic
at
or
 s
ho

w
s 
th
at
 t
he

re
 is

 £
2.
2 
bi
lli
on

 e
st
im

at
ed

 f
ra
ud

 in
 p
ub

lic
 s
ec

to
r.
 T
hi
s 
in
cl
ud

es
 £
90

0 
m
ill
io
n 
in
 h
ou

si
ng

 t
en

an
cy

 f
ra
ud

, 
£8

90
 m

ill
io
n 
in
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 
fr
au

d,
 o
ve

r 
£1

53
 m

ill
io
n 
in
 p
ay

ro
ll 
fr
au

d,
 £
13

1 
m
ill
io
n 
in
 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
di
sc

ou
nt
s 
an

d 
ex

em
pt
io
ns

 f
ra
ud

, 
£4

6 
m
ill
io
n 
in
 ‘b

lu
e 
ba

dg
e’
 f
ra
ud

, 
£4

1 
m
ill
io
n 
in
 g
ra
nt
 

32



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

fr
au

d 
an

d 
£5

.9
 m

ill
io
n 
in
 p
en

si
on

 f
ra
ud

. 
T
hi
s 
is
 m

on
ey

 t
ha

t 
ca

n 
be

 b
et
te
r 
us

ed
 t
o 
su

pp
or
t 
th
e 
de

liv
er
y 
of
 f
ro
nt
 li
ne

 s
er
vi
ce

s.
 L
oc

al
 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 
is
 u
nd

er
 p
re
ss

ur
e 
to
 m

ak
e 

sa
vi
ng

s 
an

d 
ta
ck

lin
g 
fr
au

d 
ca

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 
to
 th

at
 a
ge

nd
a.

 

 W
e 
ar
e 
co

nf
id
en

t 
th
at
 w

e 
co

nt
in
ue

 t
o 
pr
ov

id
e 
an

 e
ffi
ci
en

t 
va

lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on

ey
 c
ou

nt
er
 f
ra
ud

 s
er
vi
ce

 a
nd

 t
ha

t 
is
 a
bl
e 
to
 in

ve
st
ig
at
e 
al
l r
ef
er
ra
ls
 t
ha

t 
ar
e 
pa

ss
ed

 t
o 
us

 t
o 
an

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te
 o
ut
co

m
e.
 W

e 
co

nt
in
ue

 t
o 
of
fe
r 
su

pp
or
t, 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
ta
nc

e 
on

 a
ll 
m
at
te
rs
 o
f 
fr
au

d 
ris

k,
 i
nc

lu
di
ng

 p
re
ve

nt
io
n,
 f
ra
ud

 d
et
ec

tio
n,
 m

on
ey

 l
au

nd
er
in
g 
an

d 
cr
im

in
al
 a
ct
iv
ity

 a
nd

 d
et
er
re
nt
 m

ea
su

re
s 
w
hi
ls
t d

el
iv
er
in
g 
a 
co

he
si
ve

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to
 r
ef
le
ct
 b
es

t p
ra
ct
ic
e 
w
hi
ch

 a
ls
o 
su

pp
or
ts
 th

e 
co

rp
or
at
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
an

d 
pr
in
ci
pl
es

.  
 

 In
 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
C
A
F
T
 a
nn

ua
l r
ep

or
t, 
w
e 
al
so

 p
ro
du

ce
 a
n 
in
te
rim

 r
ep

or
t t
o 
th
e 
A
ud

it 
C
om

m
itt
ee

, a
nd

 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 R
ep

or
ts
 to

 th
e 
C
ou

nc
il’
s 
S
en

io
r 
M
an

ag
em

en
t, 
 

20
12

/1
3 
sa

w
 C
A
F
T
 p
ro
du

ce
d 
an

 a
nt
i f
ra
ud

 s
tr
at
eg

y 
w
hi
ch

 d
et
ai
ls
 th

e 
C
ou

nc
il’
s 
ov

er
al
l a

pp
ro
ac

h 
an

d 
re
sp

on
se

 to
 fr
au

d 
ris

k.
 

 B
en

ef
it 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

T
ea

m
 id

en
tif
y 
an

d 
co

rr
ec

tin
g 
er
ro
r 
in
 o
ur
 b
en

ef
its

 s
ys

te
m
 t
hr
ou

gh
 v
ar
io
us

 m
et
ho

ds
 in

cl
ud

in
g 
de

al
in
g 
w
ith

 t
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
of
 W

or
k 
an

d 

P
en

si
on

s 
(D

W
P
) 
H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

D
at
a 

M
at
ch

es
 (
H
B
D
M
S
) 
an

d 
th
e 

A
ud

it 
C
om

m
is
si
on

s 
(A
C
) 
N
at
io
na

l 
F
ra
ud

 I
ni
tia

tiv
e 

(N
F
I)
 B

en
ef
it 
M
at
ch

es
. 
T
he

 t
ea

m
 c

on
du

ct
 

as
se

ss
m
en

ts
 o
f b

en
ef
it 
w
hi
ch

 m
ay

 r
es

ul
t i
n 
an

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t w
hi
ch

 is
 th

en
 p
as

se
d 
to
 o
ur
 B
en

ef
it 
In
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
te
am

 to
 fu

rt
he

r 
in
ve

st
ig
at
e 
an

d 
id
en

tif
y 
fr
au

du
le
nt
 c
la
im

s.
 

 
  

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 T
ab

le
  

Q
1

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 
Q

2
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

Q
3

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 
Q

4
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
o

ta
l 
 

T
o

ta
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

N
um

be
r 
of
 H
B
D
M
S
 m
at
ch
es
 r
ec
e
iv
ed

  
14

43
 

54
4 

72
9 

88
6 

36
02

 
17

45
 

T
ot
al
 N
um

be
r 
of
 C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
be

n
ef
its
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 

28
7 

25
4 

17
2 

14
9 

86
2 

86
5 

N
um

be
r 

of
 
as
se
ss
m
en

ts
 
w
hi
ch
 
re
su
lte
d 

in
 
no

 
ch
an

ge
 o
r 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
be

ne
fit
 

69
 

49
 

 11
  

 22
 

15
1 

24
1 

T
ot
al
 A
m
ou

nt
 o
f F

ra
ud

 o
ve
rp
ay
m
en

ts
 id
en

tif
ie
d
 

£3
48

,9
90

 
£2

39
,0
43

 
£1

30
,6
76

 
£2

88
,1
31

 
£1

,0
06

,8
40

 
£4

49
,9
38

 

N
um

be
r 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 w
er
e 
o/
p
 u
nd

er
 £
50

0 
1 

0 
3 

2 
6 

2 

N
um

be
r 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 w
er
e 
o/
p
 is
 £
50

0 
- 
£2

00
0 

16
 

16
 

11
 

8 
51

 
30

 

N
um

be
r 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 w
er
e 
o/
p
 is
 £
20

01
 -
£4

00
0 

7 
8 

7 
6 

28
 

41
 

N
um

be
r 
of
 
as
se
ss
m
en

ts
 
w
er
e 

o/
p 

is
 
£4

00
1 

an
d 

ab
ov
e 
 

16
 

13
 

13
 

 
10

 
52

 
39

 

T
ot
al
 a
m
ou

nt
 o
f E

rr
or
 o
ve
rp
ay
m
en

ts
 Id
en

tif
ie
d
 

£2
02

,6
75

 
£2

22
,8
15

 
£1

28
,2
95

 
£1

58
,4
56

 
£7

12
,2
41

 
£6

16
,9
73

 

N
um

be
r 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 w
er
e 
o/
p
 u
nd

er
 £
50

0 
85

 
90

 
69

 
29

 
27

3 
27

1 

N
um

be
r 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 w
er
e 
o/
p
 is
 £
50

0 
- 
£2

00
0 

79
 

55
 

40
 

30
 

20
4 

17
0 

N
um

be
r 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 w
er
e 
o/
p
 is
 £
20

01
 -
£4

00
0 

20
 

16
 

11
 

19
 

66
 

54
 

N
um

be
r 
of
 
as
se
ss
m
en

ts
 
w
er
e 

o/
p 

is
 
£4

00
1 

an
d 

ab
ov
e 
 

6 
11

 
 7 

 11
 

35
 

17
 

T
ot
al
 
am

ou
nt
 
of
 
F
ra
ud

 
an

d
 
e
rr
or
 
ov
er
pa

ym
en

ts
 

id
en

tif
ie
d 
by
 C
A
F
T
  

£5
63

.5
40

 
£4

63
,5
10

 
 £2

70
,8
75

  
 £4

46
,5
86

 
£1

,7
44

,5
11

 
£1

,0
66

,9
11

 

T
ot
al
 A
m
ou

nt
 o
f 
re
co
ve
re
d 
be

ne
fit
 o
ve
rp
ay
m
en

t 
by
 

B
en

ef
it 
S
er
vi
ce
 

 
 

 
 

£5
,2
52

,8
71

.0
0 

 

A
m
ou

nt
 r
ec
ov
er
ed

 b
y 
B
en

ef
its
 S
er
vi
ce
, 
fr
om

 C
A
F
T
 

id
en

tif
ie
d 
fr
au

d 
/ e
rr
or
 o
ve
rp
ay
m
en

ts
.  

£3
69

,9
90

 
£2

8,
96
7 

 
£8

2,
85

0 
 

£1
6,
70

4 
£4

98
,5
11

 
£1

72
,7
73

 

33



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

 T
he

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 t
ab

le
 i
de

nt
ifi
es

 t
ha

t 
th
er
e 
ha

ve
 b
ee

n 
52

 s
ep

ar
at
e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 r
es

ul
te
d 
in
 a
 f
ra
ud

ul
en

t 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 h
ig
he

r 
th
an

 £
40

01
; 
A
ll 
of
 t
he

se
 

ov
er
pa

ym
en

ts
 h
av

e 
be

en
 i
nv

es
tig

at
ed

 b
y 
B
en

ef
its

 I
nv

es
tig

at
io
ns

 t
ea

m
 a
nd

 t
o 
da

te
 2

 o
f 
th
es

e 
ha

ve
 r
es

ul
te
d 

in
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

ns
 w

ith
 g

ui
lty
 v
er
di
ct
s,
 1
6 

ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e 

pe
na

lti
es

 is
su

ed
 a
nd

 5
 fo

rm
a

l 
c
a

u
ti
o
n

s
 is
su

ed
. A

 fu
rt
he

r 
10

 c
as

es
 h
av

e 
be

en
 p
as

se
d 
to
 o
ur
 le

ga
l t
ea

m
 fo

r 
pr
os

ec
ut
io
n 
an

d 
12

 a
re
 w
ith

 th
e 
D
W
P
 le

ga
l t
ea

m
. 3

 c
as

es
 w
er
e 

cl
os

ed
 a

s 
“f
ra
ud

 p
ro
ve

n”
, 
2 

of
 w

ho
m
 w

e 
ar
e 

un
ab

le
 t
o 

tr
ac

e 
at
 t
hi
s 
tim

e.
 T

he
re
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

4 
ca

se
s 
th
at
 a

re
 o

ng
oi
ng

 i
nv

es
tig

at
io
ns

. 
T
he

 l
ar
ge

st
 o

f 
th
e 

fr
au

du
le
nt
 

ov
er
pa

ym
en

t 
fig

ur
es

 id
en

tif
ie
d 
ab

ov
e 
re
la
te
s 
to
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t 
of
 £
56

,4
05

.3
1.
 T
hi
s 
ca

se
 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in
ve

st
ig
at
ed

 b
y 
C
A
F
T
 a
nd

 is
 n
ow

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
W
P
 p
ro
se

cu
tio

n 
de

pa
rt
m
en

t a
w
ai
tin

g 
a 
co

ur
t d

at
e.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 
th
e 
ho

us
in
g 
an

d 
co

un
ci
l t
ax

 b
en

ef
it 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t, 
D
W
P
 h
av

e 
an

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t 
in
 t
he

 r
eg

io
n 
of
 £
36

,0
00

. F
ur
th
er
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 

th
e 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
ca

nn
ot
 b
e 
pu

bl
is
he

d 
at
 th

is
 s
ta
ge

 a
s 
th
e 
ca

se
 is

 s
til
l o

ng
oi
ng

  
 T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
 f
ur
th
er
 3

5 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 i
de

nt
ifi
ed

 c
la
im

an
t 
er
ro
r 
be

ne
fit
 o

ve
rp
ay

m
en

ts
 o

f 
ov

er
 £

40
01

 o
f 
w
hi
ch

 2
5 

w
er
e 

re
fe
rr
ed

 f
or
 I
nv

es
tig

at
io
n.
 A

n 
ad

m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e 
pe

na
lty

 h
as

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
of
fe
re
d 
on

 o
ne

 o
f 
th
es

e 
ca

se
s,
 9
 a
re
 s
til
l 
on

go
in
g,
 a
nd

 1
5 
ha

ve
 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 b
ee

n 
cl
os

ed
 a
s 
in
vo

lv
in
g 
no

 f
ra
ud

/c
la
im

an
t 
er
ro
r.
 

T
he

re
 w

er
e 
10

 c
as

es
 t
ha

t, 
du

e 
to
 t
he

 c
irc

um
st
an

ce
s 
of
 t
he

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t, 
w
er
e 
no

t 
re
fe
rr
ed

 f
or
 i
nv

es
tig

at
io
n 
as

 t
he

y 
w
er
e 
cl
os

ed
 a
s 
cl
ai
m
an

t 
er
ro
r 
w
ith

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t 
re
co

ve
ry
.  
   
  

W
hi
ls
t w

e 
st
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 r
un

 th
e 
S
in
gl
e 
H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 
E
xt
ra
ct
 (
S
H
B
E
) 
on

 a
 m

on
th
ly
 b
as

is
, s

ub
m
itt
in
g 
it 
to
 th

e 
D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f W
or
k 
an

d 
P
en

si
on

s 
(D

W
P
) 
to
 e
xt
ra
ct
 o
ur
 

m
at
ch

es
, 
D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 h
as

 s
ee

n 
a 
ch

an
ge

 t
o 
th
e 
S
H
B
E
 m

at
ch

es
 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
ba

ck
. 
T
he

 D
W
P
, 
on

 r
ec

ei
pt
 o
f 
ou

r 
S
H
B
E
 e
xt
ra
ct
 n
ow

 p
as

se
s 
th
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
to
 E
xp

er
ia
n 

w
ho

 i
n 
tu
rn
 m

at
ch

 t
he

 e
xt
ra
ct
 a
ga

in
st
 t
he

ir 
da

ta
ba

se
 t
o 
be

 r
is
k 
as

se
ss

ed
. 
T
he

 h
ig
h 
ris

k 
ca

se
s 
ar
e 
th
en

 c
on

ve
rt
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
D
W
P
 i
nt
o 
th
e 
H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 
D
at
a 
M
at
ch

 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
(H

B
D
M
S
) 
fo
rm

at
 a
nd

 s
en

t 
ba

ck
 t
o 
th
e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 
(L
A
) 
on

 a
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 b
as

is
. 
In
 2
01

1/
12

 t
he

 n
ew

 H
B
D
M
S
 E
xp

er
ia
n 
m
at
ch

es
 w

en
t 
fu
lly
 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

nd
 w

e 
ha

ve
 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
a 
hi
gh

 v
ol
um

e 
of
 m

at
ch

es
 -
 3
,6
02

 a
s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
1,
74

5 
th
e 
pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 
of
 t
he

se
, 
88

6 
w
er
e 
re
ce

iv
ed

 l
at
e 
in
 Q

4 
(2
8t

h  
M
ar
ch

 2
01

2)
. 
T
he

re
fo
re
 

th
es

e 
m
at
ch

es
 p
lu
s 
10

 f
ro
m
 Q

3,
 h
av

e 
be

en
 c
ar
rie

d 
fo
rw

ar
d 
to
 2
01

2/
13

. 
O
ve

r 
ha

lf 
ha

ve
 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
re
so

lv
ed

 w
ith

 n
o 
ch

an
ge

 t
o 
be

ne
fit
. 
 T

he
re
fo
re
, 
th
e 
nu

m
be

r 
of
 

as
se

ss
m
en

ts
 a
nd

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 is

 b
as

ed
 u
po

n 
an

 o
ve

ra
ll 
to
ta
l o

f 2
,7
06

 m
at
ch

es
.  
  

 B
en

ef
it 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t r
ec

ov
er
y 
is
 th

e 
re
sp

on
si
bi
lit
y 
of
 th

e 
B
en

ef
its

 S
er
vi
ce

. T
he

 r
ol
e 
of
 C
A
F
T
 is

 to
 id

en
tif
y,
 p
re
ve

nt
 a
nd

 s
to
p 
fr
au

d 
an

d 
er
ro
r 
in
 th

e 
be

ne
fit
s 
sy

st
em

. W
he

re
 

ap
pr
op

ria
te
, 
w
e 
in
ve

st
ig
at
e 
an

d 
ap

pl
y 
a 
sa

nc
tio

n 
to
 t
he

 c
la
im

an
t. 
O
ur
 w

or
k 
ul
tim

at
el
y 
m
ea

ns
 t
ha

t 
th
at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 p
re
ve

nt
ed

 a
 c
la
im

 t
ha

t 
sh

ou
ld
 n
ot
 b
e 
in
 p
ay

m
en

t 
fr
om

 
co

nt
in
ui
ng

 t
he

re
by

 p
ro
te
ct
in
g 
an

d 
pr
ev

en
tin

g 
fu
rt
he

r 
lo
ss

 t
o 
th
e 
pu

bl
ic
 p
ur
se

. 
In
 c
as

es
 w

he
re
 C

A
F
T
 h
av

e 
no

t 
be

en
 a
bl
e 
to
 i
de

nt
ify

 a
ss

et
s 
or
 i
ns

tig
at
e 
a 
F
in
an

ci
al
 

In
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
th
e 
de

ci
si
on

 o
n 
th
e 
ra
te
 a
nd

 m
et
ho

d 
th
at
 a
n 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t 
sh

al
l 
be

 r
ep

ai
d 
to
 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 
is
 e
ith

er
 a
t 
th
e 
di
sc

re
tio

n 
of
 a
 m

ag
is
tr
at
e 
or
 r
es

po
ns

ib
le
 o
ffi
ce

r 
w
ith

in
 t
he

 B
en

ef
its

 S
er
vi
ce

. 
 T
he

 d
ec

is
io
n 
is
 u
su

al
ly
 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o
n 
th
e 
cl
ai
m
an

t’s
 c
irc

um
st
an

ce
s 
at
 t
he

 t
im

e,
 a
nd

 c
ou

ld
 b
e 
re
co

ve
re
d 
fr
om

 a
n 
“a
tta

ch
m
en

t 
to
 e
ar
ni
ng

s”
, 

fr
om

 o
ng

oi
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 o
r 
re
pa

id
 a
t 
an

 a
gr
ee

d 
am

ou
nt
 d

ep
en

de
nt
 o
n 

th
e 

cl
ai
m
an

t’s
 c
ur
re
nt
 c
irc

um
st
an

ce
s.
 I
n 

re
ce

nt
 y
ea

rs
, 
C
A
F
T
 h

av
e 

be
co

m
e 

m
or
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 i
n 

ov
er
pa

ym
en

t 
re
co

ve
ry
 p
ro
ce

ss
. 
If 
 w

e 
ha

ve
 i
de

nt
ifi
ed

 t
ha

t 
a 
cl
ai
m
an

t 
ha

s 
re
al
is
ab

le
 a
ss

et
s,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 b
ee

n 
ab

le
 t
o 
in
st
ig
at
e 
a 
fin

an
ci
al
 i
nv

es
tig

at
io
n,
 a
llo
w
in
g 
C
A
F
T
 

O
ffi
ce

rs
 to

 u
se

 th
ei
r 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 
po

w
er
s 
un

de
r 
th
e 
P
ro
ce

ed
s 
of
 C
rim

e 
A
ct
 2
00

2 
to
 o
bt
ai
n 
re
st
ra
in
t o

rd
er
s.
 T
w
o 
ex

am
pl
es

 o
f C

A
F
T
 a
ct
io
n 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 th

is
 a
re
;  

E
xa

m
pl
e 
A
: M

r 
B
yt
iq
i h

ad
 £
47

,7
00

 in
 a
 s
af
et
y 
de

po
si
t b

ox
 th

at
 h
e 
ha

d 
no

t d
ec

la
re
d 
w
he

n 
cl
ai
m
in
g 
ho

us
in
g 
an

d 
co

un
ci
l t
ax

 b
en

ef
it.
 T
he

 c
la
im

 w
as

 r
ea

ss
es

se
d 
ta
ki
ng

 th
is
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
in
to
 a
cc

ou
nt
 a
nd

 r
es

ul
te
d 
in
 a
 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
be

ne
fit
 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t 
of
 £
30

,0
65

.7
1.
 A

 r
es

tr
ai
nt
 o
rd
er
 w

as
 o
bt
ai
ne

d 
at
 W

oo
d 
G
re
en

 C
ro
w
n 
C
ou

rt
 in

 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1 
by

 C
A
F
T
 F
in
an

ci
al
 In

ve
st
ig
at
or
s 
to
 e
ns

ur
e 
th
at
 th

e 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t w
as

 p
ai
d 
of
f i
n 
fu
ll.
 

34



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

E
xa

m
pl
e 
B
: 
M
s 
W
es

t 
ha

d 
fa
ile

d 
to
 d
ec

la
re
 t
ha

t 
sh

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 in

 e
m
pl
oy

m
en

t 
si
nc

e 
Ju

ne
 2
00

8 
an

d 
al
so

 t
ha

t 
sh

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 a
 jo

in
t 
ow

ne
r 
of
 a
 p
ro
pe

rt
y 
si
nc

e 
M
ay

 2
00

3.
 

T
hi
s 
re
su

lte
d 
in
 a
 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
be

ne
fit
 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t 
of
 £
21

,5
41

.9
6.
 A

 r
es

tr
ai
nt
 o
rd
er
 w

as
 o
bt
ai
ne

d 
fr
om

 W
oo

d 
G
re
en

 C
ro
w
n 
C
ou

rt
 i
n 
Ju

ly
 2
01

1 
by

 C
A
F
T
 

F
in
an

ci
al
 In

ve
st
ig
at
or
s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 p
ro
pe

rt
y 
M
is
s 
W
es

t j
oi
nt
ly
 o
w
ne

d.
 A
s 
a 
re
su

lt 
of
 th

e 
re
st
ra
in
t o

rd
er
, M

s 
W
es

t r
ep

ai
d 
th
e 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t i
n 
fu
ll.
   
   
   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  B

en
ef

it 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

T
ea

m
 p

re
ve

nt
, 
id
en

tif
y,
 i
nv

es
tig

at
e,
 d
et
er
 a
nd

 s
an

ct
io
n 
or
 p
ro
se

cu
te
 p
er
so

ns
 t
ha

t 
co

m
m
it 
be

ne
fit
 f
ra
ud

 i
n 
B
ar
ne

t. 
T
he

y 
ar
e 
fu
lly
 

qu
al
ifi
ed

 p
ro
fe
ss

io
na

l i
nv

es
tig

at
io
n 
of
fic

er
s 
w
ho

 o
pe

ra
te
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 
w
ith

 b
ot
h 
th
e 
D
W
P
’s
 F
ra
ud

 a
nd

 E
rr
or
 S
tr
at
eg

y 
an

d 
 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’
s 
C
ou

nt
er
 F
ra
ud

 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
as

 
w
el
l a

s 
re
le
va

nt
 le

gi
sl
at
io
n.
  

  
 

3
0

,8
6
7

3
2
,4

6
4

3
4

,0
2

1

2
9
,0
0
0

2
9
,5
0
0

3
0
,0
0
0

3
0
,5
0
0

3
1
,0
0
0

3
1
,5
0
0

3
2
,0
0
0

3
2
,5
0
0

3
3
,0
0
0

3
3
,5
0
0

3
4
,0
0
0

3
4
,5
0
0

Caseload

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e

a
r

B
a
rn

e
t 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 C

a
s

e
lo

a
d

 2
0

0
9
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£
2
1

8
m

£
2

3
9

m

£
2
6
8

m

£
0

£
5
0

£
1
0
0

£
1
5
0

£
2
0
0

£
2
5
0

£
3
0
0

Amount paid out in Benefit 

(millions)

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
e

a
r

B
a
r
n

e
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

P
a
id

 o
u

t 
in

 £
M

il
li
o

n
s

 

2
0
0

9
 t

o
 2

0
1

2

 
 

 In
 r
ec

en
t y

ea
rs
, t
he

 n
um

be
r 
of
 b
en

ef
it 
cl
ai
m
an

ts
 in

 th
e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
ha

s 
   
   
   

 
D
ue

 to
 th

e 
in
cr
ea

se
 in

 b
en

ef
it 
cl
ai
m
an

ts
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f b

en
ef
it 
th
at
 

35



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

in
cr
ea

se
d 
by

 1
0.
2%

. T
hi
s 
re
fle

ct
s 
th
e 
co

nt
in
ui
ng

 n
at
io
na

l e
co

no
m
ic
  

 
 

B
ar
ne

t 
ha

s 
pa

id
 o

ut
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

ris
en

 b
y 

23
%
 i
n 

th
e 

sa
m
e 

pe
rio

d,
 f
ur
th
er
 

do
w
nt
ur
n 
re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a
n 
ev

er
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 H
ou

si
ng

  a
nd

  C
ou

nc
il 
T
ax

  
 

 
re
fle

ct
in
g 
th
e 
cu

rr
en

t n
at
io
na

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l s
itu

at
io
n.
 

B
en

ef
it 
ca

se
lo
ad

 fo
r 
lo
ca

l a
ut
ho

rit
ie
s 
al
l o

ve
r 
th
e 
co

un
tr
y.
  

 
 

 
 

 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 . 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
. 

   

3,
47
8,
63
7

1,
13
1,
63
2

3,
33
2,
86
0

1,
06
6,
91
1

7,
68
2,
86
6

1,
74
4,
51
1

0

2
0
0
0
0
0
0

4
0
0
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0
0
0

8
0
0
0
0
0
0

1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Overall (£) identified as 

Fraud and Error

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

Y
ea
r

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

F
ra

u
d

 a
n

d
 E

rr
o

r 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

B
ar

n
et

's
 B

en
ef

it
s 

S
ys

te
m

 2
00

9 
to

 2
01

2

S
e
ri
e
s
1

S
e
ri
e
s
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
9 1

8
1
1

7
9

3
2

5

9
1

2
4

2
6

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

1
2
0

Num ber o f Sanctio ns

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0

1
1
/1

2

Y
e
a
r

S
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s

A
d
 P

e
n
s

G
u
ilt

y

C
a
u
tio

n
s

 

 B
ar
ne

t’s
 c
om

bi
ne

d 
le
ve

l o
f i
de

nt
ifi
ed

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
er
ro
r 
fo
r 
20

11
/1
2 
ha

s 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
 

T
he

 2
01

0/
11

 b
en

ch
m
ar
ki
ng

 r
es

ul
ts
 a
ga

in
st
 L
on

do
n 
lo
ca

l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
fr
au

d 
te
am

s 
sh

ow
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly
 o
n 
pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

rs
. T

hi
s 
is
 m

os
tly

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
w
ay

 in
 w
hi
ch

 ‘e
rr
or
’  
   
   
   
th
at
 w
ith

 th
e 
re
su

lts
 a
bo

ve
 B
ar
ne

t a
re
 p
la
ce

d 
on

ce
 a
ga

in
 in

 th
e 
to
p 
qu

ar
te
r 
fo
r 
ov

er
al
l 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 r
ec

or
de

d 
by

 th
e 
B
en

ef
its

 S
er
vi
ce

. T
he

 im
pl
em

en
ta
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
ne

w
   
   
   
  a

ch
ie
ve

m
en

t o
f s

an
ct
io
n 
nu

m
be

rs
 a
nd

 to
p 
fo
r 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f n

um
be

r 
of
 s
an

ct
io
ns

 
C
iv
ic
a 
- 
O
pe

n 
R
ev

en
ue

s 
B
en

ef
its

 S
ys
te
m
 in

 2
01

1 
ha

s 
en

ab
le
d 
th
e 
B
en

ef
its

   
   
   
   
pe

r 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
of
fic

er
 to

 h
av

e 
de

m
on

st
ra
tin

g 
th
at
 w
or
ki
ng

 p
ro
ce

du
re
s 
ar
e 

S
er
vi
ce

 to
 h
av

e 
m
or
e 
ac

cu
ra
te
 s
ta
tis

tic
al
 d
at
a 
   
   
   
   
   
  

ef
fic

ie
nt
, e

ffe
ct
iv
e 
an

d 
va

lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on

ey
. T

hi
s 
de

m
on

st
ra
te
s 
th
at
 w
or
ki
ng

 p
ro
ce

du
re
s 
   
 

ar
e 
ef
fic

ie
nt
, e

ffe
ct
iv
e 
an

d 
va

lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on

ey
. 

 
  

 

36



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

 C
A
F
T
 h
av

e 
an

 e
xc

el
le
nt
 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w
or
ki
ng

 r
el
at
io
ns

hi
p 
w
ith

 D
W
P
. T

hi
s 
ha

s 
re
su

lte
d 
in
 1
2 
su

cc
es

sf
ul
 jo

in
t p

ro
se

cu
tio

ns
 d
ur
in
g 
20

11
/1
2,
 a
s 
w
el
l a

s 
2 
jo
in
t c

au
tio

ns
 a
nd

  
1 
jo
in
t a

dm
in
is
tr
at
iv
e 
pe

na
lty
.  
T
he

se
 fi
gu

re
s 
ar
e 
in
cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 
to
ta
l a

bo
ve

. O
ng

oi
ng

 in
to
 2
01

2/
13

, w
e 
ha

ve
 1
99

 c
ur
re
nt
 in

ve
st
ig
at
io
ns

 b
ei
ng

 c
ar
rie

d 
ou

t b
y 
th
e 
te
am

. I
n 
 

ad
di
tio

n 
to
 th

es
e 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
ns

, w
e 
al
re
ad

y 
ha

ve
 in

ve
st
ig
at
ed

 a
nd

 p
as

se
d 
fo
r 
pr
os

ec
ut
io
n 
15

 c
as

es
 th

at
 a
re
 w
ith

 o
ur
 le

ga
l t
ea

m
 a
nd

 w
e 
ha

ve
 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
12

 c
as

es
 th

at
 w
e 
 

ha
ve

 in
ve

st
ig
at
ed

 jo
in
tly

 w
ith

 th
e 
D
W
P
 a
nd

 a
re
 w
ith

 th
ei
r 
le
ga

l t
ea

m
 fo

r 
pr
os

ec
ut
io
n.
  T

hi
s 
le
ve

l o
f p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
de

m
on

st
ra
te
s 
ou

r 
su

cc
es

sf
ul
 jo

in
t w

or
ki
ng

 p
ra
ct
ic
es

 a
nd

  
ou

r 
ai
m
 to

 d
et
er
 a
nd

 s
ee

k 
pu

ni
sh

m
en

t f
or
 th

e 
m
or
e 
se

rio
us

 o
ffe

nd
er
s 
of
 b
en

ef
it 
 fr
au

d 
in
 o
ur
 b
or
ou

gh
.
 
 
 

   B
en

ef
it

 F
ra

u
d

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
 C

as
e 

S
tu

d
ie

s:
  

 
 A

 j
o

in
t 

p
ro

se
cu

ti
o

n
 b

et
w

ee
n

 C
A

F
T

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

D
W

P
’s

 C
o

u
n

te
r 

F
ra

u
d

 I
n

ve
st

ig
at

io
n

 S
er

vi
ce

 O
rg

an
is

ed
 (

C
F

IS
) 

is
 t

h
e 

ca
se

 o
f 

M
r 

Je
rr

y 
Z

aa
n

d
am

: 
 C

A
F
T
 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
an

 
en

qu
iry

 f
ro
m
 t
he

 o
rg
an

is
ed

 f
ra
ud

 t
ea

m
 w

ith
in
 C

F
IS
 c
on

ce
rn
in
g 
a 

M
r 
Je

rr
y 
Z
aa

nd
am

. 
T
he

 a
lle

ga
tio

n 
w
as

 t
ha

t 
th
is
 w

as
 n
ot
 h
is
 r
ea

l 
na

m
e 

an
d 
he

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
us

in
g 

nu
m
er
ou

s 
fa
ls
e 
id
en

tit
ie
s 
to
 c
la
im

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
be

ne
fit
, 
al
on

g 
w
ith

 v
ar
io
us

 D
W
P
 b
en

ef
its

. 
T
he

 i
nv

es
tig

at
io
n 
sh

ow
ed

 t
ha

t 
M
r 
Z
aa

nd
am

’s
 r
ea

l 
na

m
e 
w
as

 M
r 

O
lu
se

yi
 J
er
em

ia
h 
A
de

ba
yo

 a
nd

 h
e 
ha

d 
fr
au

du
le
nt
ly
 c
la
im

ed
 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
be

ne
fit
 t
ot
al
lin

g 
£2

6,
19

9.
97

. 
 T

he
se

 o
ffe

nc
es

 w
er
e 
pa

rt
 o
f 
34

 o
ffe

nc
es

 t
ha

t 
M
r 

A
de

ba
yo

 w
as

 c
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 f
ou

nd
 g
ui
lty

 o
f 
at
 C

ro
w
n 
C
ou

rt
. 
 H

e 
w
as

 s
en

te
nc

ed
 t
o 
5 
ye

ar
s 
an

d 
8 
m
on

th
s 
im

pr
is
on

m
en

t 
an

d 
it 
w
as

 fo
un

d 
th
at
 h
is
 B
rit
is
h 

na
tio

na
lit
y 
w
as

 fa
ls
el
y 
ob

ta
in
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
na

m
e 
A
de

ba
yo

 a
s 
he

 h
ad

 p
re
vi
ou

sl
y 
be

en
 d
ep

or
te
d 
un

de
r 
an

ot
he

r 
na

m
e.
 U
K
B
A
 a
re
 d
ea

lin
g 
w
ith

 h
is
 im

m
ig
ra
tio

n 
st
at
us

.  
   
 

A
 jo

in
t 

p
ro

se
cu

ti
o

n
 b

et
w

ee
n

 C
A

F
T

 a
n

d
 D

W
P

’s
 lo

ca
l C

o
u

n
te

r 
F

ra
u

d
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n

 S
er

vi
ce

 (
C

F
IS

) 
is

 t
h

e 
ca

se
 o

f 
M

is
s 

L
o

rr
ai

n
e 

R
u

ss
el

l:
  C

A
F
T
 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
a 
re
fe
rr
al
 

fr
om

 C
F
IS
 t
ha

t 
th
e 
cl
ai
m
an

t 
m
ay

 h
av

e 
a 
pa

rt
ne

r 
liv
in
g 
in
 t
he

 p
ro
pe

rt
y.
 M

is
s 
R
us

se
ll 
ha

d 
be

en
 c
la
im

in
g 
ho

us
in
g 
an

d 
co

un
ci
l t
ax

 b
en

ef
it 
si
nc

e 
19

91
. 
 M

is
s 
R
us

se
ll 
w
as

 
in
te
rv
ie
w
ed

 u
nd

er
 c
au

tio
n 
on

 t
w
o 
oc

ca
si
on

s 
an

d 
de

ni
ed

 t
ha

t M
r.
 A
la
n 
C
ar
lto

n 
ha

d 
be

en
 li
vi
ng

 in
 th

e 
pr
op

er
ty
 w

ith
 h
er
 o
n 
a 
fu
ll 
tim

e 
ba

si
s.
 S
he

 s
ta
te
d 
th
at
 h
e 
so

m
et
im

es
 

st
ay

ed
 t
he

re
, 
bu

t 
it 
w
as

 n
ot
 h
is
 m

ai
n 
re
si
de

nc
e.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 
fr
om

 t
he

 e
vi
de

nc
e 
ga

th
er
ed

, 
he

r 
cl
ai
m
 f
or
 i
nc

om
e 
su

pp
or
t, 
ho

us
in
g 
be

ne
fit
 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
be

ne
fit
 w

er
e 

ca
nc

el
le
d 
ba

ck
 t
o 
23

 F
eb

ru
ar
y 
20

04
. 
T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t 
am

ou
nt
ed

 t
o 
£2

2,
55

9.
67

 a
nd

 t
he

 i
nc

om
e 
su

pp
or
t 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t 
w
a 
£3

4,
24

1.
92

. 
M
is
s 

R
us

se
ll 
pl
ea

de
d 
gu

ilt
y 
at
 W

oo
d 
G
re
en

 C
ro
w
n 
C
ou

rt
 t
o 
th
re
e 
ch

ar
ge

s 
of
 d
is
ho

ne
st
ly
 o
bt
ai
ni
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 w
as

 s
en

te
nc

ed
 t
o 
6 
m
on

th
s 
im

pr
is
on

m
en

t, 
su

sp
en

de
d 
fo
r 
18

 
m
on

th
s.
 S
he

 w
as

 a
ls
o 
or
de

re
d 
to
 u
nd

er
ta
ke

 2
00

 h
ou

rs
 u
np

ai
d 
w
or
k 

A
 C

A
F

T
 p

ro
se

cu
ti

o
n

 i
s 

th
e 

ca
se

 o
f 

M
r 

an
d

 M
rs

 O
p

o
ku

-A
n

n
an

e:
 C

A
F
T
 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
a 
re
fe
rr
al
 f
ro
m
 t
he

 b
en

ef
its

 t
ea

m
 i
n 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 
w
ith

 t
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 c
la
im

 o
f 
M
r 
B
en

 O
po

ku
-A
nn

an
e 
an

d 
M
rs
 R

eb
ec

ca
 O

po
ku

-A
nn

an
e.
 T
he

re
 w

er
e 
co

nc
er
ns

 t
ha

t 
th
ey

 h
ad

 n
ot
 d
ec

la
re
d 
in
co

m
e 
or
 b
an

k 
ac

co
un

ts
 o
n 
th
ei
r 
be

ne
fit
 

cl
ai
m
. 
 F
ur
th
er
 c
he

ck
s 
w
er
e 
un

de
rt
ak

en
 a
nd

 i
t 
w
as

 f
ou

nd
 t
ha

t 
bo

th
 M

r 
an

d 
M
rs
 O

po
ku

-A
nn

an
e 
ha

d 
do

ne
 w

or
k 
th
at
 t
he

y 
ha

d 
no

t 
de

cl
ar
ed

 a
nd

 a
ls
o 
fa
ile

d 
to
 d
is
cl
os

e 

ba
nk

 a
cc

ou
nt
s 
th
at
 t
he

ir 
ea

rn
in
gs

 w
er
e 
go

in
g 
in
to
. 
T
hi
s 
re
su

lte
d 
in
 a
 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
be

ne
fit
 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t 
of
 £
14

,2
44

.4
2.
 M

rs
 O

po
ku

-A
nn

an
e 
w
as

 c
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 

tw
o 
of
fe
nc

es
 o
f 
fa
ili
ng

 t
o 
no

tif
y 
B
ar
ne

t 
of
 c
ha

ng
es

 i
n 
he

r 
ci
rc
um

st
an

ce
s 
th
at
 s
he

 k
ne

w
 w

ou
ld
 a
ffe

ct
 h
er
 b
en

ef
it 
en

tit
le
m
en

t. 
S
he

 p
le
ad

ed
 g
ui
lty

 a
nd

 w
as

 o
rd
er
ed

 t
o 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
14

0 
ho

ur
s 
un

pa
id
 w

or
k 
fo
r 
ea

ch
 o
ffe

nc
e,
 t
o 
ru
n 
co

nc
ur
re
nt
ly
. 
M
r 
O
po

ku
-A
nn

an
e 
w
as

 c
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 t
hr
ee

 o
ffe

nc
es

 o
f 
fa
ili
ng

 t
o 
no

tif
y 
B
ar
ne

t 
of
 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 h
is
 

ci
rc
um

st
an

ce
s 
th
at
 h
e 
kn

ew
 w

ou
ld
 a
ffe

ct
 h
is
 b
en

ef
it 
en

tit
le
m
en

t. 
H
e 
pl
ea

de
d 
gu

ilt
y 
an

d 
w
as

 s
en

te
nc

ed
 t
o 
4 
w
ee

ks
 i
m
pr
is
on

m
en

t, 
su

sp
en

de
d 
fo
r 
12

 m
on

th
s.
 T

he
 

su
sp

en
de

d 
se

nt
en

ce
 o
rd
er
 a
ls
o 
ha

d 
a 
co

m
m
un

ity
 r
eq

ui
re
m
en

t o
f 1

80
 h
ou

rs
 o
f u

np
ai
d 
w
or
k.
  

  

37



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

    C
or

po
ra

te
 F

ra
ud

 te
am

 d
ea

l w
ith

 t
he

 in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
of
 a
ny

 c
rim

in
al
 a
nd

 f
ra
ud

 m
at
te
rs
 (
ex

ce
pt
 b
en

ef
it 
fr
au

d)
 a
tte

m
pt
ed

 o
r 
co

m
m
itt
ed

 w
ith

in
 o
r 
ag

ai
ns

t 
B
ar
ne

t 
su

ch
 

as
 in

te
rn
al
 e
m
pl
oy

ee
 fr
au

ds
, f
ra
ud

s 
by

 s
er
vi
ce

 r
ec

ip
ie
nt
s 
an

d 
an

y 
ex

te
rn
al
 fr
au

ds
. T

he
 te

am
 o
pe

ra
te
 in

 a
cc
or
da

nc
e 
w
ith

 B
ar
ne

t’s
 C
ou

nt
er
 F
ra
ud

 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
an

d 
re
le
va

nt
 

in
ve

st
ig
at
iv
e 
le
gi
sl
at
io
n.
 C
A
F
T
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w
or
k 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w
ith

 th
e 
U
K
B
A
 a
nd

 P
ol
ic
e 
to
 e
ns

ur
e 
th
at
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic
 p
ur
se

 is
 a
de

qu
at
el
y 
pr
ot
ec

te
d.
 

 T
he

 t
ab

le
 b
el
ow

 d
et
ai
ls
 t
he

 n
um

be
r 
of
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 t
ha

t 
w
er
e 
m
ad

e 
to
 C

A
F
T
 d
ur
in
g 
20

11
/1
2 
(8
7 
ca

se
s)
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 t
he

 o
ng

oi
ng

 in
ve

st
ig
at
io
ns

 t
ha

t 
w
er
e 
ca

rr
ie
d 
fo
rw

ar
d 
at
 

th
e 
cl
os

e 
of
 2
01

0/
11

 (
24

 c
as

es
).
 C

A
F
T
 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 
de

al
 w

ith
 a
 v
ar
ie
ty
 o
f 
is
su

es
 a
nd

 a
re
 o
fte

n 
re
qu

es
te
d 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 i
nt
el
lig
en

ce
 r
ep

or
ts
 f
or
 t
he

 P
ol
ic
e,
 o
th
er
 l
oc

al
 

au
th
or
iti
es

 a
nd

 a
dv

ic
e 
an

d 
as

si
st
an

ce
 t
o 
se

rv
ic
es

 w
ith

in
 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 
on

 m
at
te
rs
 t
ha

t 
do

 n
ot
 n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 
eq

ua
te
 t
o 
cr
im

in
al
 a
ct
iv
ity

 b
ut
 a
re
 s
til
l 
is
su

es
 o
f 
co

nc
er
n 
th
at
 

re
qu

ire
 C

A
F
T
 e
xp

er
t 
ad

vi
ce

. 
T
he

se
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr
ev

en
ta
tiv
e 
fr
au

d 
ad

vi
ce

, 
br
ea

ch
es

 o
f i
nt
er
na

l p
ro
ce

du
re
s 
an

d 
di
sc
ip
lin

ar
y 
is
su

es
. 
  
T
hi
s 
el
em

en
t 
of
 C

A
F
T
 w

or
k 
is
 d
iff
ic
ul
t t
o 

br
ea

kd
ow

n 
in
to
 s
ta
tis

tic
al
 r
ep

or
tin

g 
as

 it
 is

 s
o 
va

rie
d,
 b
ut
 is

 h
ow

ev
er
 li
st
ed

 b
el
ow

 u
nd

er
 a
dv

ic
e 
an

d 
as

si
st
an

ce
 g
iv
en

.  
  D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 

T
ot
al
 

nu
m
be

r 
of
 

ca
se
s 

re
fe
rr
ed

 fo
r 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 

in
 2
01

0/
11

 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c
as
es
 

ca
rr
ie
d 

ov
er
 fr
om

 
20

10
/1
1 

N
um

be
r 
of
 

ne
w
 c
as
es
 

20
11

-1
2 

re
fe
rr
ed

 fo
r 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
 

T
ot
al
 

nu
m
be

r 
of
 

ca
se
s 

20
11

-1
2 

cl
os
ed

 

In
su
ffi
ci
en

t 
ev
id
en

ce
 to
 

pr
oc
ee

d 
w
ith
 

In
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
 

C
lo
se
d 

in
su
ffi
ci
en

t 
A
ss
et
s 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
fo
r 

a 
fin
an

ci
al
 

In
ve
st
ig
at
io
n
 

P
as
se
d 
to
 

P
ol
ic
e 
/ 

S
er
io
us
 

O
rg
an

is
ed

 
C
rim

e 
A
ge

nc
y 

(M
on

ey
 

La
un

de
rin

g)
 

to
 

in
ve
st
ig
at
e
 

C
lo
se
d 

A
dv
ic
e 
gi
ve
n 

to
 s
er
vi
ce
  
 

C
lo
se
d 

N
o 
F
ra
ud

 

D
is
m
is
se
d 

as
 a
 r
es
ul
t 

of
 C
A
F
T
 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n
 

C
lo
se
d 

F
ra
ud

 
P
ro
ve
n
 

P
la
nn

in
g,
 H
ou

si
ng

 &
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

  
9 

26
 

  
9 

  
  

9 
7 

3 
  

D
ep

ut
y 
ch

ie
f e

xe
c 
S
er
vi
ce

 
  

9 
23

 
  

5 
2 

  
5 

9 
1 

2 

C
om

m
er
ci
al
 s
er
vi
ce

s 
  

2 
8 

  
1 

  
  

6 
2 

1 
 

A
du

lt 
S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi
ce

s 
  

1 
4 

  
2 

  
  

1 
  

  
1 

C
hi
ld
re
n'
s 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
  

1 
8 

  
2 

  
  

3 
1 

2 
  

C
hi
ef
 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
  

0 
12

 
  

3 
  

  
2 

2 
1 

1 

C
or
po

ra
te
 G

ov
er
na

nc
e 

  
2 

5 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  

38



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

B
ar
ne

t H
om

es
 

  
0 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
1 

  

T
ot
al
 

90
 

24
 

87
 

86
 

22
 

2 
0 

27
 

22
 

9 
4 

     T
he

 9
 c
as

es
 a
bo

ve
 c
at
eg

or
is
ed

 a
s 
‘d
is
m
is
se

d 
as

 a
 r
es

ul
t o

f a
 C
A
F
T
 in

ve
st
ig
at
io
n’
 r
el
at
e 
to
: 

 O
p

er
at

io
n

 Q
U

E
S

T
 w

as
 a
n 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
in
to
 I
lle
ga

l 
w
or
ke

rs
 s
ec

ur
in
g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
w
ith

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 
as

 C
iv
il 
E
nf
or
ce

m
en

t 
O
ffi
ce

rs
 w

or
ki
ng

 w
ith

in
 t
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 
an

d 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 D

ire
ct
or
at
e.
 A

d
e 

O
R

E
S

A
N

Y
A

 w
as

 a
rr
es

te
d 
by

 t
he

 U
K
B
A
 d
es

pi
te
 c
la
im

in
g 
th
at
 t
he

 d
et
ai
ls
 t
ha

t 
sh

e 
su

pp
lie
d 
w
er
e 
co

rr
ec

t. 
S
he

 w
as

 t
ak

en
 t
o 
he

r 
ho

m
e
 

ad
dr
es

s 
w
he

re
 a
 p
re
m
is
es

 s
ea

rc
h 
w
as

 c
on

du
ct
ed

. 
 H
er
 r
ea

l d
oc

um
en

ts
 w

er
e 
re
co

ve
re
d 
an

d 
it 
w
as

 c
on

fir
m
ed

 t
ha

t 
he

r 
re
al
 n
am

e 
is
 A
de

bu
ko

nl
a 
A
la
ba

 O
R
E
S
A
N
Y
A
. 
A
t 

th
at
 p
oi
nt
, 
sh

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 t
ha

t 
sh

e 
us

ed
 h
er
 s
is
te
r’s

 i
de

nt
ity

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 t
o 
se

cu
re
 a
 p
os

iti
on

 o
f 
C
iv
il 
E
nf
or
ce

m
en

t 
O
ffi
ce

r 
w
ith

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.
 A

s 
a 
re
su

lt,
 s
he

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ta
in
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
U
K
B
A
 w

hi
ls
t 
re
m
ov

al
 f
ro
m
 t
he

 U
K
 is

 b
ei
ng

 c
on

si
de

re
d.

 O
la

d
o

ki
n

 A
W

O
N

U
S

I 
w
as

 a
rr
es

te
d 
by

 t
he

 U
K
B
A
 a
nd

 c
on

fir
m
ed

 t
o 
th
em

 t
ha

t 
hi
s 
re
al
 n
am

e 
w
as

 
O
la
le
ka

n 
A
br
ah

am
 O

D
U
W
A
Y
E
 (
do

b 
26

/0
2/
72

).
 H

e 
al
so

 c
on

fir
m
ed

 t
ha

t 
he

 h
ad

 u
se

d 
a 
fa
ls
e 
id
en

tit
y 
do

cu
m
en

t 
to
 s
ec

ur
e 
th
e 
po

si
tio

n 
of
 a
 C

iv
il 
E
nf
or
ce

m
en

t 
O
ffi
ce

r 
w
ith

 
th
e 
C
ou

nc
il.
  
H
e 
al
so

 c
on

fir
m
ed

 t
ha

t 
he

 w
as

 r
ea

lly
 a
n 
‘o
ve

rs
ta
ye

r’ 
an

d 
di
d 
no

t h
av

e 
le
av

e 
to
 b
e 
in
 t
he

 U
K
. A

s 
a 
re
su

lt,
 h
e 
ha

s 
be

en
 d
et
ai
ne

d 
by

 th
e 
U
K
B
A
 w
hi
ls
t 
re
m
ov

al
 

fr
om

 th
e 
U
K
 is

 b
ei
ng

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

 A
A

50
 -
 w

as
 a
 p
ro
ac

tiv
e 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
re
la
tin

g 
to
 t
he

 v
er
ifi
ca

tio
n 
of
 id

en
tit
y 
do

cu
m
en

ts
 s
up

pl
ie
d 
by

 a
 C

iv
il 
E
nf
or
ce

m
en

t 
O
ffi
ce

r 
w
or
ki
ng

 w
ith

in
 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’
s 
E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

an
d 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 D

ire
ct
or
at
e.
 A
 t
em

po
ra
ry
 m

em
be

r 
of
 s
ta
ff 
by

 t
he

 n
am

e 
of
 A
rs
en

 F
un

di
 s
ub

m
itt
ed

 a
n 
ap

pl
ic
at
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
pe

rm
an

en
t 
po

si
tio

n 
of
 C

iv
il 
E
nf
or
ce

m
en

t 
O
ffi
ce

r.
 

T
he

 a
pp

lic
at
io
n 
fo
rm

 w
as

 p
ro
vi
de

d 
al
on

g 
w
ith

 h
is
 p
as

sp
or
t 
an

d 
a 
ch

an
ge

 o
f 
na

m
e 
de

ed
 d
at
ed

 1
st
 D

ec
em

be
r 
20

10
 s
ho

w
in
g 
th
e 
na

m
e 
ch

an
ge

 f
ro
m
 E
dd

y 
N
du

w
im

an
a 
to
 

A
rs
en

 F
un

di
. 
A
s 
a 
re
su

lt 
of
 c
on

du
ct
in
g 
an

 ‘
E
nh

an
ce

d 
ve

tti
ng

 p
ro
ce

du
re
’ 
C
A
F
T
 d
is
co

ve
re
d 
th
at
 t
he

 a
pp

lic
an

t 
ha

d 
fa
ile

d 
to
 d
ec

la
re
 t
he

 f
ac

t 
th
at
 h
e 
ha

d 
an

 ‘
un

sp
en

t’ 
cr
im

in
al
 c
on

vi
ct
io
n 
fo
r 
T
he

ft 
an

d 
D
ec

ep
tio

n.
 U

po
n 
qu

es
tio

ni
ng

, 
th
e 
su

sp
ec

t 
co

nf
irm

ed
 t
ha

t 
he

 h
ad

 f
ai
le
d 
to
 d
ec

la
re
 t
he

 c
on

vi
ct
io
n.
 T
he

 in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
co

nc
lu
de

d 
th
at
 h
e 

ha
d 
ch

an
ge

d 
hi
s 
na

m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of
 h
id
in
g 
th
is
 in

fo
rm

at
io
n 
fr
om

 a
ny

 p
ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
em

pl
oy

er
. T

he
 e
m
pl
oy

ee
 w
as

 d
is
m
is
se

d.
 

O
p

er
at

io
n

 M
IR

A
G

E
 w

as
 a
n 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
in
to
 th

e 
un

la
w
fu
l a

cc
es

s 
of
 t
he

 D
W
P
’s
 C

us
to
m
er
 I
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
S
ys

te
m
, 
by

 a
 m

em
be

r 
of
 t
he

 B
en

ef
its

 A
dm

in
is
tr
at
io
n 
T
ea

m
 w

ith
in
 

th
e 
D
ep

ut
y 
C
hi
ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce

. 
F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
re
ce

ip
t 
of
 a
 l
et
te
r 
fr
om

 t
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
fo
r 
W
or
k 
&
 P

en
si
on

s 
(D

W
P
) 
se

cu
rit
y 
te
am

, 
al
er
tin

g  
th
e 
C
ou

nc
il 
to
 a
 p
ot
en

tia
l 

se
cu

rit
y 
br
ea

ch
, 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
ns

 w
er
e 

ca
rr
ie
d 

ou
t 
in
to
 a

 B
en

ef
it 
O
ffi
ce

r’s
 u

sa
ge

 o
f 
th
e 

D
W
P
 -
 C

us
to
m
er
 I
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

S
ys

te
m
 (
C
.I.
S
) 
w
hi
ch

 i
s 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le
 b

y 
sp

ec
ifi
c 

m
em

be
rs
 o
f 
st
af
f 
w
ith

in
 t
he

  
C
ou

nc
il 
fo
r 
th
e 
so

le
 p
ur
po

se
 o
f 
ad

m
in
is
te
rin

g 
H
ou

si
ng

/C
ou

nc
il 
T
ax

 B
en

ef
it.
 (
H
B
/C
T
B
).
  
T
he

 in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
re
ve

al
ed

 t
ha

t 
C
IS
 r
ec

or
ds

 r
el
at
in
g 

to
 4
1 
in
di
vi
du

al
s 
w
er
e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 b
et
w
ee

n 
th
e 
1s

t  J
an

 2
01

0 
an

d 
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
in
 r
es

pe
ct
 o
f w

hi
ch

 w
e 
w
er
e 
un

ab
le
 to

 e
st
ab

lis
h 
an

y 
lin

k 
be

tw
ee

n 
a 

cu
rr
en

t 
or
 p
re
vi
ou

s 
cl
ai
m
 f
or
 b
en

ef
it 
to
 th

e 
C
ou

nc
il.
 T
he

 e
m
pl
oy

ee
 a
tte

nd
ed

 a
n 
in
te
rv
ie
w
 u
nd

er
 c
au

tio
n 
an

d,
 w

he
n 
qu

es
tio

ne
d 
re
ga

rd
in
g 
hi
s 
us

e 
of
 th

e 
C
.I.
S
 s
ys

te
m
, 
fu
lly
 

ad
m
itt
ed

 t
ha

t 
he

 h
ad

 u
se

d 
th
e 
sy

st
em

 o
n 
si
x 
se

pa
ra
te
 o
cc

as
io
ns

 f
or
 v
ar
io
us

 n
on

 w
or
k 
re
la
te
d 
pe

rs
on

al
 r
ea

so
ns

. 
 F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
a 
di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 
he

ar
in
g,
 t
he

 e
m
pl
oy

ee
 w

as
 

di
sm

is
se

d.
 

 

39



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

O
p

er
at

io
n

 M
O

N
T

A
N

A
 w

as
 a
n 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
in
to
 I
lle
ga

l w
or
ke

rs
 s
ec

ur
in
g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
w
ith

 th
e 
C
ou

nc
il’
s 
cl
ea

ni
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r.
 T
hi
s 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
w
as

 c
on

du
ct
ed

 o
n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 t
he

 C
om

m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce

s 
D
ire

ct
or
at
e 
an

d 
to
ok

 p
la
ce

 b
ot
h 
at
 N

or
th
 L
on

do
n 
B
us

in
es

s 
P
ar
k 
an

d 
at
 B
ar
ne

t 
H
ou

se
. 
T
he

 o
bj
ec

t 
of
 t
he

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
w
as

 f
or
 U

K
B
A
 a
nd

 C
A
F
T
 

of
fic

er
s 
to
 id

en
tif
y 
an

d 
de

ta
in
 a
ny

 il
le
ga

l w
or
ke

rs
 /
 c
le
an

er
s 
em

pl
oy

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
cl
ea

ni
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 
to
 c
le
an

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’
s 
of
fic

e 
pr
em

is
es

. A
ll 
cl
ea

ne
rs
 (
14

 a
t 
B
ar
ne

t 
H
ou

se
 

an
d 
15

 a
t 
N
LB

P
) 
w
er
e 
de

ta
in
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

ir 
de

ta
ils
 w

er
e 
ve

rif
ie
d 
vi
a 
th
e 
H
om

e 
O
ffi
ce

 I
m
m
ig
ra
tio

n 
S
ys

te
m
. 
 A
t 
B
ar
ne

t 
H
ou

se
, 
6 
cl
ea

ne
rs
 w

er
e 
id
en

tif
ie
d 
an

d 
co

nf
irm

ed
 a
s 

ill
eg

al
 w

or
ke

rs
, 
4 
of
 t
he

se
 w

er
e 
re
le
as

ed
 o
n 
re
po

rt
in
g 
re
st
ric

tio
ns

 a
nd

 2
 w

er
e 
ar
re
st
ed

 a
nd

 d
et
ai
ne

d.
 A

t 
N
LB

P
, 
2 
cl
ea

ne
rs
 w

er
e 
id
en

tif
ie
d 
an

d 
co

nf
irm

ed
 a
s 
ill
eg

al
 

w
or
ke

rs
 a
nd

 r
el
ea

se
d 
on

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
re
st
ric

tio
ns

, 
4 
w
er
e 
de

ta
in
ed

 f
or
 t
he

 p
ur
po

se
 o
f 
co

nd
uc

tin
g 
ho

us
e 
se

ar
ch

es
 t
o 
ob

ta
in
 t
ra
ve

l d
oc

um
en

ts
 f
or
 v
er
ifi
ca

tio
n.
  
W
hi
ls
t 
th
es

e
 

ill
eg

al
 w

or
ke

rs
 w

er
e 
no

t 
di
re
ct
ly
 e
m
pl
oy

ed
 b
y 
B
ar
ne

t 
C
ou

nc
il,
 it
 w

as
 d
ee

m
ed

 t
o 
be

 a
 h
ig
h 
ris

k 
si
tu
at
io
n 
th
at
 c
ou

ld
 h
av

e 
a 
se

ve
re
 d
et
rim

en
ta
l e

ffe
ct
 o
n 
th
e 
in
te
gr
ity

 a
nd

 
re
pu

ta
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
C
ou

nc
il.
 

 O
p

er
at

io
n

 P
R

IZ
M

 w
as

 a
n 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
in
to
 t
he

 f
ra
ud

ul
en

t 
ac

tiv
iti
es

 o
f 
th
e 
B
ur
sa

ry
 O

ffi
ce

r 
w
or
ki
ng

 in
 o
ne

 o
f 
th
e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 
sc

ho
ol
. 
 T
hi
s 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
w
as

 c
on

du
ct
ed

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of
 t
he

 C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
D
ire

ct
or
at
e.
 T
he

 in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
re
vo

lv
ed

 a
ro
un

d 
th
e 
fo
rg
in
g 
in
 a
ut
um

n 
20

10
 o
f 
an

 a
ut
ho

ris
at
io
n 
fr
om

 t
he

 s
ch

oo
l's
 C

ha
ir 
of
 G

ov
er
no

rs
 b
y 

th
e 
sc

ho
ol
’s
 B
ur
sa

ry
 O

ffi
ce

r 
fo
r 
a 
pa

y 
aw

ar
d 
to
 h
im

se
lf 
ba

ck
da

te
d 
to
 A
pr
il 
20

10
 a
nd

 a
ga

in
 in

 a
ut
um

n 
20

11
 b
ac

kd
at
ed

 t
o 
A
pr
il 
20

11
. 
It 
w
as

 f
ur
th
er
 f
ou

nd
 t
ha

t 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
ch

oo
l’s
 b
an

k 
ac

co
un

ts
 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
m
ad

e 
in
to
 t
he

 B
us

in
es

s 
M
an

ag
er
’s
 o
w
n 
ba

nk
 a
cc

ou
nt
 v
ia
 i
nt
er
ne

t 
ba

nk
in
g.
 T

he
 B

ur
sa

ry
 O

ffi
ce

r 
w
as

 i
nt
er
vi
ew

ed
 u
nd

er
 

ca
ut
io
n 
an

d 
ad

m
itt
ed

 fo
rg
in
g 
si
gn

at
ur
es

 to
 o
bt
ai
n 
a 
pa

y 
ris

e 
as

 w
el
l a

s 
m
ak

in
g 
un

au
th
or
is
ed

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 h
im

se
lf 
fr
om

 th
e 
sc

ho
ol
’s
 b
an

k 
ac

co
un

t. 
 

 O
p

er
at

io
n

 M
U

S
T

A
N

G
: 
A
s 
a 
re
su

lt 
of
 a
n 
on

go
in
g 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
it 
w
as

 d
is
co

ve
re
d 
th
at
 a
n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 i
n 
th
e 
H
ou

si
ng

 S
up

pl
y 
T
ea

m
 h
ad

 s
up

pl
ie
d 
fa
ls
ifi
ed

 q
ua

lif
ic
at
io
n 

ce
rt
ifi
ca

te
s 
in
 o
rd
er
 t
o 
se

cu
re
 a
 m

an
ag

er
’s
 p
os

iti
on

 w
ith

in
 a
 C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic
e.
  
C
A
F
T
 c
ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
ba

ck
gr
ou

nd
 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
ve

tti
ng

 c
he

ck
s 
w
hi
ch

 r
ev

ea
le
d 
th
at
 t
he

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
‘s
tr
uc

k 
of
f’ 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r 
of
 th

e 
R
oy

al
 In

st
itu

te
 o
f C

ha
rt
er
ed

 S
ur
ve

yo
rs
 (
R
IC
S
),
 a
nd

 h
ad

 s
up

pl
ie
d 
a 
fo
rg
ed

 c
er
tif
ic
at
e.
 T
he

 e
m
pl
oy

ee
 w
as

 d
is
m
is
se

d.
 

 A
A

38
: 
R
el
at
es

 to
 a
 r
ef
er
ra
l f
ro
m
 a
n 
H
R
 O

ffi
ce

r 
re
ga

rd
in
g 
an

 e
m
pl
oy

ee
 a
t a

 b
or
ou

gh
 s
ch

oo
l w

ho
 w
as

 u
si
ng

 a
 fa

ls
e 
na

m
e 
to
 o
bt
ai
n 
a 
C
R
B
 c
he

ck
. 
T
hi
s 
ch

ec
k 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at
 

sh
e 
ha

d 
no

 p
re
vi
ou

s 
co

nv
ic
tio

ns
. 
H
ow

ev
er
, 
fu
rt
he

r 
ch

ec
ks

 b
y 
C
A
F
T
 id

en
tif
ie
d 
he

r 
re
al
 n
am

e 
an

d 
co

nf
irm

ed
 t
ha

t 
sh

e 
ha

d 
a 
co

nv
ic
tio

n 
fo
r 
fr
au

d 
un

de
r 
a 
di
ffe

re
nt
 n
am

e.
 

th
e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 w
as

 d
is
m
is
se

d.
 

 A
A

78
: 
R
el
at
es

 t
o 
a 
te
m
po

ra
ry
 m

em
be

r 
of
 s
ta
ff 
w
or
ki
ng

 in
 t
he

 a
ss

is
te
d 
tr
av

el
 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
w
ho

 w
as

 c
au

gh
t 
at
te
m
pt
in
g 
to
 p
os

t 
je
w
el
le
ry
 t
o 
a 
fr
ie
nd

 u
si
ng

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 
po

st
 

fa
ci
lit
ie
s.
 H
er
 T
em

po
ra
ry
 c
on

tr
ac

t w
as

 te
rm

in
at
ed

. 
 T
he

 4
 c
as

es
 a
bo

ve
 c
at
eg

or
is
ed

 a
s 
‘F
ra
ud

 p
ro
ve

n’
 r
el
at
e 
to
: 

 O
p

er
at

io
n

 N
E

O
N

: 
A

 F
in
an

ci
al
 I
nv

es
tig

at
io
n 
un

de
r 
th
e 
P
ro
ce

ed
s 
of
 C

rim
e 
A
ct
 2
00

2 
re
la
tin

g 
to
 a
 b
en

ef
it 
fr
au

d 
ca

se
 w

he
re
 a
n 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t 
in
 e
xc
es

s 
of
 £
21

,0
00

 w
as

 
re
co

ve
re
d 
in
 it
s 
en

tir
et
y 
as

 a
 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 c
la
im

an
t’s

 h
ou

se
 b
ei
ng

 “
re
st
ra
in
ed

” 
fo
r 
co

m
pe

ns
at
io
n 
pu

rp
os

es
. 

 O
p

er
at

io
n

 O
D

Y
S

S
E

Y
: 

A
 F
in
an

ci
al
 I
nv

es
tig

at
io
n 
un

de
r 
th
e 
P
ro
ce

ed
s 
of
 C

rim
e 
A
ct
 2
00

2 
re
la
tin

g 
to
 a
 b
en

ef
it 
fr
au

d 
ca

se
 w

he
re
 a
n 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t 
in
 e
xc

es
s 
of
 £
7,
30

0 
w
as

 
re
co

ve
re
d 
in
 it
s 
en

tir
et
y 
as

 a
 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 c
la
im

an
t’s

 b
an

k 
ac

co
un

t b
ei
ng

 “
re
st
ra
in
ed

” 
fo
r 
co

m
pe

ns
at
io
n 
pu

rp
os

es
. 

 O
p

er
at

io
n

 R
IO

: 
A

 F
in
an

ci
al
 I
nv

es
tig

at
io
n 
un

de
r 
th
e 
P
ro
ce

ed
s 
of
 C

rim
e 
A
ct
 2
00

2.
 A

 B
ar
ne

t 
co

un
ci
l 
ch

eq
ue

 w
as

 i
ss

ue
d 
bu

t 
in
te
rc
ep

te
d 
in
 t
he

 p
os

t 
an

d 
al
te
re
d 
to
 r
ea

d 
£1

,3
00

. 
C
A
F
T
 w

er
e 
ab

le
 t
o 
ob

ta
in
 t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt
 o
pe

ni
ng

 d
et
ai
ls
 a
nd

 s
ta
te
m
en

ts
 r
el
at
in
g 
to
 t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt
 th

at
 th

e 
ch

eq
ue

 w
as

 p
ai
d 
in
to
 a
nd

 f
re
ez

e 
al
l f
un

ds
 in

 t
ha

t 
ac

co
un

t. 
It 
w
as

 fo
un

d 
th
at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

t w
as

 o
pe

ne
d 
us

in
g 
fo
rg
ed

 id
en

tit
y 
do

cu
m
en

ts
. A

s 
a 
re
su

lt 
C
A
F
T
 r
ec

ov
er
ed

 th
e 
fu
nd

s 
an

d 
th
e 
ac

co
un

t w
as

 c
lo
se

d 
by

 th
e 
ba

nk
. 

40



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

 O
p

er
at

io
n

 P
R

O
W

L
E

R
: 

A
 J
oi
nt
 C

A
F
T
 /
 U

K
B
A
 c
as

e 
re
su

lti
ng

 f
ro
m
 a
 “
sh

am
 w

ed
di
ng

”.
 C

A
F
T
 w

er
e 
ab

le
 t
o 
su

pp
ly
 in

fo
rm

at
io
n 
to
 t
he

 U
K
B
A
 r
eg

ar
di
ng

 a
n 
Is
ra
el
i m

al
e 
w
ho

 
w
as

 c
la
im

in
g 
to
 b
e 
a 
ho

lid
ay

 m
ak

er
 in

 t
he

 U
K
. 
C
A
F
T
 w

er
e 
ab

le
 o
bt
ai
n 
ev

id
en

ce
 t
ha

t 
th
e 
m
al
e 
w
as

 in
 f
ac

t 
liv
in
g 
an

d 
w
or
ki
ng

 in
 t
he

 U
K
 a
nd

 h
ad

 o
pe

ne
d 
2 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
fr
om

 w
hi
ch

 h
e 
w
as

 r
ec

ei
vi
ng

 a
 v
er
y 
si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

co
m
e.
 T
he

 s
us

pe
ct
 w
as

 a
rr
es

te
d 
an

d 
re
m
ov

ed
 fr
om

 th
e 
U
K
 

 
 T
hi
s 
ch

ar
t 
sh

ow
s 
th
e 
nu

m
be

r 
of
 n
ew

 c
as

es
 b
y 
D
ire

ct
or
at
e 
re
fe
rr
ed

 t
o 

C
A
F
T
 i
n 
th
e 
ye

ar
 2
01

1/
12

. 
It 
is
 c
le
ar
 t
o 
se

e 
th
at
 t
he

 n
um

be
r 
of
 c
as

es
 

re
la
tin

g 
to
 t
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 
P
la
nn

in
g 
an

d 
R
eg

en
er
at
io
n 
D
ire

ct
or
at
e 
(2
6 

ca
se

s)
 e
xc

ee
ds

 a
ll 
ot
he

r 
D
ire

ct
or
at
es

. 
T
hi
s 
is
 m

ai
nl
y 
du

e 
to
 t
he

 f
ac

t 
th
at
 C

A
F
T
 h
av

e 
ca

rr
ie
d 
ou

t 
a 
nu

m
be

r 
of
 p
ro
ac

tiv
e 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
ns

 a
s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of
 t
he

 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w

e 
ha

ve
 w

ith
 t
he

 U
K
B
A
 a
nd

 t
he

 P
ol
ic
e 
w
hi
ch

 
ha

d 
di
re
ct
 im

pa
ct
s 
on

 a
re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 ‘S
tr
ee

t S
ce

ne
s’
 a
nd

 P
ar
ki
ng

. 
 T
he

 D
ep

ut
y 
C
hi
ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce

 (
23

 c
as

es
) 
sh

ow
ed

 a
n 
in
cr
ea

se
 

on
 p
re
vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s,
 m

ai
nl
y 
du

e 
to
 t
he

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 p
ro
ac

tiv
e 
w
or
k 
w
ith

in
 

th
e 

‘R
eg

is
tr
at
io
n 

an
d 

N
at
io
na

lit
y’
 d

ep
ar
tm

en
t 
th
at
 w

as
 c
on

du
ct
ed

 b
y 

C
A
F
T
 a
nd

 th
e 
U
K
B
A
 in

to
 s
ha

m
 m

ar
ria

ge
s.
 

 W
hi
ls
t 
th
e 
re
m
ai
ni
ng

 D
ire

ct
or
at
es

 s
ho

w
 a
 l
ow

er
 n
um

be
r 
of
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
, 
it 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at
 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

no
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

re
vi
ew

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 

C
A
F
T
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
fin

an
ci
al
 y
ea

r 
20

11
/1
2 
in
 th

es
e 
ar
ea

s.
 

 P
la
nn

ed
 f
or
 2
01

2/
13

 a
re
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 p
ro
ac

tiv
e 
co

un
te
r 
fr
au

d 
re
vi
ew

s;
 

so
m
e 

cr
os

sc
ut
tin

g 
an

d 
so

m
e 

ta
rg
et
ed

 w
ith

in
 s
pe

ci
fic
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 
C
om

m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce

s,
 A
du

lt 
S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 
an

d 
B
ar
ne

t H
om

es
.  

    
A
ls
o 
in
cl
ud

ed
  
w
ith

in
 t
he

 n
um

be
r 
of
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 s
ho

w
n 
ar
e 
6 
w
hi
st
le
bl
ow

in
g 
ca

se
s 
w
hi
ch

 C
A
F
T
 d
ea

lt 
w
ith

. 
T
hi
s 
nu

m
be

r 
is
 b
ro
ke

n 
do

w
n 
in
to
 3
 c
as

es
 w

ith
in
 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

P
la
nn

in
g 
an

d 
R
eg

en
er
at
io
n,
 1
 c
as

e 
in
 C

om
m
er
ci
al
 S

er
vi
ce

s,
 1
 c
as

e 
in
 C

hi
ld
re
ns

 S
er
vi
ce

s 
an

d 
1 
ca

se
 i
n 
th
e 
D
ep

ut
y 
C
hi
ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce

. 
 A

ll 
of
 t
he

se
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 

be
en

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

ve
st
ig
at
ed

 a
nd

 r
es

ol
ve

d 
ac

co
rd
in
g 
to
 th

e 
w
hi
st
le
bl
ow

in
g 
po

lic
y.
   
  

 A
dd

ito
na

ly
 i
n 
20

11
/1
2,
 t
he

re
 h
av

e 
be

en
 5
 a
ut
ho

ris
at
io
ns

 f
or
 s
ur
vi
el
la
nc

e 
in
 a
cc
or
da

nc
e 
w
ith

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’
s 
po

lic
y 
on

 c
ov

er
t 
su

rv
ie
lla

nc
e,
 a
ll 
ha

ve
 b
ee

n 
co

nd
uc

te
d 
by

 
C
A
F
T
 o
ffi
ce

rs
 a
nd

 r
el
at
e 
to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 
on

go
in
g 
in
te
rn
al
 in

ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
w
hi
ch

 w
e 
ar
e 
un

ab
le
 to

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
at
 th

is
 ti
m
e.
   
   
 

Environment, Planning & Regen  

Deputy Chief Executive Serv. 

Chief Executive Serv.

Commercial Serv

Childrens Serv.

Corp Gov

Adults

B
H

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

N
u
m

b
e
r
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
a
s
e
s
 2

0
1
1
-
1
2

41



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

  
  
  

 
 
 

 
Jo

in
t 

P
ro

 A
ct

iv
e 

P
la

n
 –

 C
A

F
T

, I
n

te
rn

al
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

 D
ur
in
g 
th
e 
la
st
 y
ea

r,
 C
A
F
T
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 w
or
k 
cl
os

el
y 
w
ith

 In
te
rn
al
 A
ud

it 
(I
A
) 
an

d 
R
is
k 
M
an

ag
em

en
t (
R
M
) 
on

 th
e 
w
or
k 
st
re
am

s 
w
ith

in
 th

is
 p
la
n 
an

d 
to
 p
ro
du

ce
 a
 n
ew

 jo
in
t 

an
nu

al
 w

or
k 
pl
an

. 
T
hi
s 
pl
an

 s
ig
ni
fie

s 
th
e 
w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 
no

w
 w

or
k 
in
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
i.e

. 
a 
jo
in
ed

 u
p 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 in

 e
ns

ur
in
g 
th
e 
C
ou

nc
il 
is
 m

ak
in
g 
th
e 
m
os

t 
of
 t
he

 r
es

ou
rc
es

 a
nd

 
kn

ow
le
dg

e 
of
 a
ll 
ou

r 
se

rv
ic
es

 a
nd

 th
at
 th

er
e 
ar
e 
ro
bu

st
 p
ro
ce

ss
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
its
 in
te
rn
al
 c
on

tr
ol
 a
nd

 a
nt
i f
ra
ud

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

 T
he

 le
ve

l o
f p

ro
ac

tiv
e 
an

ti-
fr
au

d 
w
or
k 
is
 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o
n 
ho

w
 m

uc
h 
re
ac

tiv
e 
w
or
k 
is
 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
an

d 
as

 a
 r
es

ul
t n

ot
 a
ll 
ar
ea

s 
pl
an

ne
d 
w
er
e 
fu
lly
 r
ev

ie
w
ed

 in
 2
01

1-
12

.  
 

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
an

d
 H

ea
lt

h
  

A
re

a 
o

f 
re

vi
ew

 
 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

o
rk

 
S

ta
tu

s 
 

S
el
f D

ire
ct
ed

 S
up

po
rt
 

(D
ire

ct
 P
ay

m
en

ts
) 

C
A
F
T
 in

st
ru
ct
ed

 P
W
C
 s
pe

ci
al
is
t a

nt
i f
ra
ud

 / 
D
ire

ct
 p
ay

m
en

t s
pe

ci
al
is
ts
 to

 u
nd

er
ta
ke

 
th
is
 a
ud

it 
to
 e
ns

ur
e 
th
e 
ar
ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
di
re
ct
 p
ay

m
en

ts
 a
re
 fi
t f
or
 p
ur
po

se
, i
n 

re
la
tio

n 
to
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud

 m
ea

su
re
s.
 

 

D
ra
ft 

re
po

rt
 
ha

s 
be

en
 
is
su

ed
. 

T
he

 
re
vi
ew

 
id
en

tif
ie
d 
a 

nu
m
be

r 
of
 i
ss

ue
s 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 

to
 t
he

 
co

nt
ro
ls
 i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t 
fr
au

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

di
re
ct
 
pa

ym
en

ts
 
pr
oc

es
s.
 
T
he

se
 

is
su

es
 r
el
at
e 

to
 c
on

tr
ol
s 
to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t 
fr
au

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m
en

ts
 
pr
oc

es
s,
 
th
e 

ro
bu

st
ne

ss
 o

f 
di
re
ct
 p

ay
m
en

ts
 m

on
ito

rin
g,
 a

nd
 

fr
au

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
am

on
gs

t 
st
af
f 
in
vo

lv
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s.
 O

ve
ra
ll,
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
re
 r
eq

ui
re
d 
to
 

im
pl
em

en
t 
a 

nu
m
be

r 
of
 
re
co

m
m
en

da
tio

ns
 
to
 

im
pr
ov

e 
th
e 

ov
er
al
l 

co
nt
ro
l 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
t, 

he
ig
ht
en

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 
fr
au

d 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
co

nt
ro
ls
 i
n 
pl
ac

e 
to
 d
et
ec

t 
an

d 
pr
ev

en
t 
fr
au

d 
in
 

th
is
 a

re
a.
 C

A
F
T
 w

ill
 f
ol
lo
w
 t
hi
s 
up

 i
n 

20
12

 a
s 

w
el
l 
as

 p
ro
ac

tiv
el
y 
w
or
ki
ng

 w
ith

 t
he

 s
er
vi
ce

 t
o 

en
su

re
 
th
at
 
an

y 
ne

w
 
sc

he
m
es

 
/ 
pr
oc

ed
ur
es

 
ad

dr
es

s 
fr
au

d 
ris

ks
.  

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
er

vi
ce

 

A
re

a 
o

f 
re

vi
ew

 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 o
f 

W
o

rk
 

S
ta

tu
s 

42



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

 N
ur
se

ry
 F
un

di
ng

  
(N

E
F
 G

ra
nt
s)
 

P
ro
ac

tiv
e 
co

un
te
r 
fr
au

d 
w
or
k 
to
 r
ev

ie
w
 n
ur
se

ry
 fu

nd
in
g 
an

d 
co

rr
ec

t u
se

 o
f g

ra
nt
s.
 

  

D
ue

 t
o 
a 
re
fe
rr
al
 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fr
om

 t
he

 s
er
vi
ce

 a
re
a,
 

C
A
F
T
 h
av

e 
re
vi
ew

ed
 c
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
ce

du
re
s 
as

 p
ar
t 

of
 d

ea
lin

g 
w
ith

 t
he

 r
ef
er
ra
l. 
In
iti
al
 f
in
di
ng

s 
ar
e 

th
at
 t
he

 c
ur
re
nt
 p

ro
ce

du
re
s 
in
 p

la
ce

 a
re
 f
it 
fo
r 

pu
rp
os

e 
w
ith

 
pr
ev

io
us

 
re
co

m
m
en

da
tio

ns
 

im
pl
em

en
te
d 
an

d 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
as

 t
he

y 
en

ab
le
d 
th
is
 

fr
au

d 
to
 b
e 
de

te
ct
ed

. 
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
fu
lly
 c
on

fir
m
ed

 
at
 c
on

cl
us

io
n 
of
 in

ve
st
ig
at
io
n.
   

 C
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s 
A

n
ti

 F
ra

u
d

 w
o

rk
 / 

re
vi

ew
s 

- 
T
he

 p
ro
ac

tiv
e 
pl
an

 a
nt
i-f
ra
ud

 p
la
n 
co

ve
rs
 in

ve
st
ig
at
io
ns

 in
to
 a
ll 
“in

te
rn
al
” 
in
st
an

ce
s 
of
 s
us

pe
ct
ed

 fr
au

d,
 c
or
ru
pt
io
n 
an

d 
m
on

ey
 

la
un

de
rin

g,
 o
ng

oi
ng

 p
ro
ac

tiv
e 
an

ti-
fr
au

d 
w
or
k 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
N
at
io
na

l F
ra
ud

 In
iti
at
iv
e 
(N

F
I)
 c
oo

rd
in
at
io
n 
an

d 
In
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
an

d 
fr
au

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
tr
ai
ni
ng

.  

A
re

a 
o

f 
re

vi
ew

 
 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

o
rk

 
S

ta
tu

s 
 

F
ra
ud

 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
tr
ai
ni
ng

  
C
A
F
T
 w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 fr
au

d 
an

d 
an

ti 
m
on

ey
 la

un
de

rin
g 
tr
ai
ni
ng

 th
ro
ug

h 
e-
le
ar
ni
ng

 
m
at
er
ia
ls
. 

 In
 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
e 
le
ar
ni
ng

 C
A
F
T
 d
el
iv
er
ed

 fu
rt
he

r 
tr
ai
ni
ng

 to
 M

em
be

rs
, F

in
an

ce
 

an
d 
H
R
 th

es
e 
w
er
e 
sp

ec
ia
lis
t  
be

sp
ok

e 
tr
ai
ni
ng

 a
nd

 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
se

ss
io
ns

 o
n 

F
ra
ud

, A
nt
i M

on
ey

 la
un

de
rin

g 
an

d 
ro
le
s 
an

d 
re
sp

on
si
bi
lit
ie
s.
 

T
he

re
 w

as
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 
la
un

ch
 o

f 
th
is
 t
ra
in
in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

go
od

 
fe
ed

ba
ck

 
re
ce

iv
ed

 
on

 
tr
ai
ni
ng

 
pa

ck
ag

e,
 s
o 
fa
r:
 

11
3 

M
an

ag
er
s 

ha
ve

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul
ly
 
un

de
rt
ak

en
 

th
e 
M
an

ag
er
s 
E
di
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
co

ur
se

 

55
7 
S
ta
ff 
ha

ve
 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly
 u
nd

er
ta
ke

n 
th
e 
A
ll 

S
ta
ff 
E
di
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
co

ur
se

 

N
F
I c

o-
or
di
na

tio
n 
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 N
F
I c

o-
or
di
na

tio
n 
an

d 
su

pp
or
t i
nc

lu
di
ng

 d
at
a 
up

lo
ad

in
g,
 tr
ai
ni
ng

, 
as

si
st
an

ce
 a
nd

 in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
of
 r
el
ev

an
t m

at
ch

es
 in

 a
cc
or
da

nc
e 
w
ith

 A
ud

it 
C
om

m
is
si
on

 ti
m
el
in
es

.  
 

 T
he

 C
A
F
T
 c
o-
or
di
na

te
 th

e 
A
ud

it 
C
om

m
is
si
on

’s
 N
at
io
na

l F
ra
ud

 In
iti
at
iv
e 
(N

F
I)
 

ex
er
ci
se

. A
fte

r 
su

bm
itt
in
g 
B
ar
ne

t’s
 v
ar
io
us

 d
at
a 
se

ts
, w

e 
ha

ve
 s
o 
fa
r 
re
ce

iv
ed

 
ba

ck
 1
9,
78

9 
m
at
ch

es
. T

he
 m

at
ch

es
 r
el
at
e 
to
 d
is
cr
ep

an
ci
es

 in
 d
at
a 
w
hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 

be
 e
rr
or
s 
or
 in

di
ca

to
rs
 o
f f
ra
ud

ul
en

t a
ct
iv
ity

.  
T
he

 m
at
ch

es
 a
re
 p
rio

rit
is
ed

 b
y 
th
e 

N
F
I, 
ba

se
d 
on

 th
e 
ac

cu
ra
cy
 o
f t
he

 m
at
ch

 a
ga

in
st
 th

e 
va

rio
us

 d
at
a 
se

ts
  

 A
ll 
re
tu
rn
s 
to
 A
ud

it 
C
om

m
is
si
on

 w
er
e 
co

m
pl
et
ed

 in
 J
an

ua
ry
 2
01

2.
   

D
ue

 
to
 
th
e 

vo
lu
m
e 

of
 
m
at
ch

es
 
in
vo

lv
ed

 
w
e 

co
nc

en
tr
at
ed

 o
n 
th
e 
hi
gh

 p
rio

rit
y 
m
at
ch

es
 w

hi
ch

 
am

ou
nt
 
to
 
15

,1
59

 
m
at
ch

es
, 

a 
su

bs
ta
nt
ia
l 

am
ou

nt
 
of
 
th
es

e 
m
at
ch

es
 
re
la
te
 
to
 
H
ou

si
ng

 
B
en

ef
it 

M
at
ch

es
 
(3
04

1)
, 
C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 
S
in
gl
e 

P
er
so

n 
D
is
co

un
t 

(3
85

6)
 
an

d 
B
lu
e 

B
ad

ge
 
/ 

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 T
ra
ve

l M
at
ch

es
 (
1,
79

1)
.  

 T
o 
da

te
, t
he

 e
xe

rc
is
e 
ha

s 
id
en

tif
ie
d 
ov

er
  

£1
62

,9
32

 o
f 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 r
el
at
in
g 

to
 v

ar
io
us

 
co

un
ci
l 

pa
ym

en
ts
 
su

ch
 
as

 
ho

us
in
g 

be
ne

fit
 

pa
ym

en
ts
, 
pe

ns
io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts
 a

nd
 c
ar
e 

ho
m
es

 

43



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

pa
ym

en
ts
. 
W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr
en

tly
 i
n 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 
of
 

re
co

ve
rin

g 
£9

7,
85

3,
 T

he
re
 i
s 

on
go

in
g 

w
or
k 

in
 

th
is
 a

re
a 

by
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic
e 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
C
A
F
T
, 
an

d 
th
er
e 
ar
e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 1
,1
93

  
op

en
 in

ve
st
ig
at
io
ns

 in
 

C
A
F
T
 r
el
at
in
g 
to
 N
F
I m

at
ch

es
. 

 

P
ay

ro
ll 
pa

ym
en

t c
la
im

s 
C
he

ck
 s
am

pl
e 
of
 h
ig
h 
ov

er
tim

e 
cl
ai
m
s,
 s
le
ep

 in
, c

al
l o

ut
 p
ay

m
en

ts
 e
tc
 to

 
su

pp
or
tin

g 
do

cu
m
en

ta
tio

n.
 T
o 
in
cl
ud

e 
a 
fo
cu

s 
on

 h
ig
he

r 
ris

k 
ar
ea

s.
 

 

U
na

bl
e 
to
 c
om

pl
et
e 
th
is
 r
ev

ie
w
 d
ue

 to
 le

ve
ls
 o
f 

re
-a
ct
iv
e 
w
or
k.
 

U
K

B
A

 P
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 +
 

V
et
tin

g 
&
 R
ig
ht
 to

 w
or
k 
in
 

th
e 
U
K
 

 

 
 

E
ns

ur
in
g 
ar
ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a
re
 r
ob

us
t, 
w
ith

 a
gr
ee

d 
ta
rg
et
ed

 te
st
in
g 
to
 v
er
ify

 
co

m
pl
ia
nc

e 
w
ith

 c
he

ck
s 
th
at
 C
ou

nc
il 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 
ha

ve
 th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 w
or
k 
in
 th

e 
U
K
, 

ut
ili
si
ng

 U
K
B
A
 e
m
be

dd
ed

 o
ffi
ce

r 
an

d 
U
K
B
A
 in

te
lli
ge

nc
e 
in
 th

is
 a
re
a.
  

 La
st
 y
ea

r 
C
A
F
T
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 w

or
k 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 U

K
B
A
 f
or
 t
he

 t
hi
rd
 y
ea

r 
an

d 
co

nt
in
ue

 t
o 
be

 o
ne

 o
f 
fiv

e 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or
ou

gh
s 
w
ith

 a
 U

K
B
A
 O

ffi
ce

r 
em

be
dd

ed
 

w
ith

in
 a
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y.
 T
he

 in
di
ca

tio
ns

 a
re
 t
ha

t 
th
e 
B
ar
ne

t 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi
p 
ha

s 
be

en
 

th
e 

m
os

t 
su

cc
es

sf
ul
 o

f 
th
e 

fiv
e 

bo
ro
ug

hs
 a

nd
 h

as
 p

ro
ve

n 
re
su

lts
 f
or
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 
an

d 
U
K
B
A
.  
 

 T
he

 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 d
em

on
st
ra
te
s 
va

lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on

ey
 fo

r 
th
e 
C
ou

nc
il 
du

e 
to
 th

e 
m
in
im

al
 

co
st
s 
in
cu

rr
ed

 (
ju
st
 th

e 
co

st
 o
f o

ffi
ce

 a
cc
om

m
od

at
io
n 
of
 th

e 
of
fic

er
) 
an

d 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
su

cc
es

sf
ul
 o
ut
co

m
es

, e
sp

ec
ia
lly
 a
s 
w
e 
no

w
 h
av

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te
 a
cc

es
s 
to
 

im
m
ig
ra
tio

n 
re
co

rd
s,
 a
ss

is
ta
nc

e 
an

d 
ad

vi
ce

 w
he

n 
re
qu

ire
d.
  W

hi
ls
t w

e 
ar
e 
un

ab
le
 

to
 r
ep

or
t o

n 
U
K
B
A
 s
uc

ce
ss
es

, w
e 
ha

ve
 s
um

m
ar
is
ed

 b
el
ow

 a
 p
ro
 a
ct
iv
e 
ex

er
ci
se

 
th
at
 w
as

 c
ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 
th
e 
la
st
 y
ea

r 
by

 C
A
F
T
 / 
U
K
B
A
 in

to
 ‘S

ha
m
 M

ar
ria

ge
s’
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 C
A
F
T
 / 
U
K
B
A
 ta

rg
et
 w
or
k 
in
 th

is
 a
re
a.
 

 A
s 

a 
re
su

lt 
of
 
an

al
ys

in
g 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

be
in
g 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 
ou

r 
U
K
B
A
 o
ffi
ce

r 
 i
t 
w
as

 a
pp

ar
en

t 
th
at
 t
he

 L
on

do
n 

B
or
ou

gh
 o

f 
B
ar
ne

t’s
 R

eg
is
te
r 

O
ffi
ce

 
in
 
B
ur
nt
 
O
ak

 
w
as

 
be

in
g 

ta
rg
et
ed

 
by

 
im

m
ig
ra
tio

n 
of
fe
nd

er
s 

w
ho

 
w
er
e 

en
te
rin

g 
in
to
 

‘S
ha

m
 
M
ar
ria

ge
s’
 
as

 
a 

w
ay

 
to
 
fa
ci
lit
at
e 

an
d 

le
gi
tim

is
e 

th
ei
r 
st
ay

 i
n 

th
e 

U
K
. 
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 f
ro
m
 

C
A
F
T
, 
U
K
B
A
 a
nd

 P
ol
ic
e 
ca

rr
ie
d 
ou

t 
a 
nu

m
be

r 
of
 
jo
in
t 
op

er
at
io
ns

 
by

 
at
te
nd

in
g 

th
e 

R
eg

is
te
r 

O
ffi
ce

 o
n 
th
e 
da

te
 a
nd

 t
im

e 
of
 t
he

 w
ed

di
ng

s 
to
 

id
en

tif
y 
an

d 
ca

pt
ur
e 

im
m
ig
ra
tio

n 
of
fe
nd

er
s 
an

d 
to
 p
re
ve

nt
 a
n 
ab

us
e 
of
 t
he

 m
ar
ria

ge
 c
er
em

on
y 

pr
oc

es
s.
 T

he
se

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

al
l 
su

cc
es

sf
ul
 

an
d 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 7

 i
m
m
ig
ra
tio

n 
of
fe
nd

er
s 

be
in
g 

ar
re
st
ed

. 
O
f 
th
es

e,
 3
 h
av

e 
be

en
 r
em

ov
ed

 f
ro
m
 

th
e 
U
K
 a
nd

 4
 a
re
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 b
ei
ng

 d
ea

lt 
w
ith

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

w
ith

 
th
e 

st
at
ut
or
y 

im
m
ig
ra
tio

n 
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
. 
A
dd

iti
on

al
ly
, 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

be
ca

m
e 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
le
ad

in
g 
to
 t
he

 id
en

tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 a
 f
ur
th
er
 

2 
su

sp
ec

ts
 w

ho
 w

er
e 
in
vo

lv
ed

 i
n 
be

ne
fit
 f
ra
ud

. 
A
s 
a 
re
su

lt 
of
 t
he

 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
, 
th
e 
U
K
B
A
 h
av

e 
m
an

ag
ed

 t
o 

re
m
ov

e 
a 

nu
m
be

r 
of
 i
m
m
ig
ra
tio

n 
of
fe
nd

er
s 

fr
om

 
w
ith

in
 
th
e 

B
or
ou

gh
, 
su

ch
 
as

 
fa
ile

d 
as

yl
um

 s
ee

ke
rs
, 
ov

er
st
ay

er
s 

an
d 

ill
eg

al
 

w
or
ke

rs
. R

es
ea

rc
h 
ca

rr
ie
d 
ou

t b
y 
th
e 
C
A
F
T
 In

te
l 

44



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti 
F

ra
u

d
 T

ea
m

  
A

nn
ua

l R
e

po
rt

 2
01

1
/1

2 
 

te
am

 
he

lp
ed

 
th
e 

U
K
B
A
 
to
 
id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

tr
ac

e 
th
es

e 
of
fe
nd

er
s 
w
ho

 w
er
e 
po

si
ng

 a
s 
cl
ai
m
an

ts
, 

st
ud

en
ts
 a

nd
 e

m
pl
oy

ee
s,
 s
om

e 
of
 w

ho
m
 w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to
 b
e 
w
or
ki
ng

 in
 lo

ca
l s
ch

oo
ls
. 

  

B
ar

n
et

 H
o

m
es

 
P
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 –
 to

 C
om

ba
t 

T
en

an
cy
 F
ra
ud

 in
 B
ar
ne

t. 
 

 

La
st
 y
ea

r 
C
A
F
T
 a
nd

 B
ar
ne

t 
H
om

es
 w

or
ke

d 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 t
o 
co

m
ba

t 
“T
en

an
cy
 

F
ra
ud

” 
w
ith

in
 t
he

 B
or
ou

gh
. 
T
hi
s 

pa
rt
ne

rs
hi
p 

pl
ac

ed
 o

ne
 f
ul
ly
 q

ua
lif
ie
d 

F
ra
ud

 
In
ve

st
ig
at
or
 o
n 
se

co
nd

m
en

t 
to
 t
he

 B
ar
ne

t 
H
om

es
 O

ffi
ce

 in
 G

ra
ha

m
e 
P
ar
k,
 a
lo
ng

 
w
ith

 a
 p
ar
t t
im

e 
in
ve

st
ig
at
or
 fr
om

 B
ar
ne

t H
om

es
 s
ta
ff.
  

 A
 C
or
po

ra
te
 P
la
n 
T
ar
ge

t w
as

 s
et
 -
 T

o 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 B
ar

ne
t H

om
es

 to
 r

ec
ov

er
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
w

he
re

 te
na

nc
y 

fr
au

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 c

om
m

itt
ed

”.
 T
he

 ta
rg
et
 w
as

 to
 r
ec

ov
er
 

18
 p
ro
pe

rt
ie
s 
in
 a
 y
ea

r)
. 

  

T
he

 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 h

as
 p

ro
ve

n 
to
 b

e 
a 

su
cc
es

s,
 

w
ith

 1
9 
pr
op

er
tie

s 
re
co

ve
re
d 
w
ith

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
.  

 A
s 

w
el
l 

as
 
re
co

ve
rin

g 
th
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
th
e 

pa
rt
ne

rs
hi
p 

ra
is
ed

 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
of
 t
en

an
cy

 f
ra
ud

 
th
ro
ug

h 
a 

pu
bl
ic
ity

 
ca

m
pa

ig
n,
 
se

tti
ng

 
up

 
a 

de
di
ca

te
d 

te
na

nc
y 

fr
au

d 
ho

tli
ne

 
an

d 
w
or
ki
ng

 
cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 r
eg

is
te
re
d 

so
ci
al
 l
an

dl
or
ds

 i
n 

th
e 

bo
ro
ug

h.
  

T
he

 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 h
as

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
in
to
 2
01

2/
13

, 
bu

t 
w
ith

ou
t 
th
e 

C
A
F
T
 
se

co
nd

ed
 
of
fic

er
. 
W
e 

ar
e 

w
or
ki
ng

 c
lo
se

ly
 w

ith
 t
he

m
 a

nd
 u
til
is
in
g 

va
rio

us
 

C
A
F
T
 
of
fic

er
s 

as
 
an

d 
w
he

n 
re
qu

ire
d.
 
T
he

re
 

cu
rr
en

tly
 
is
 
on

e 
pa

rt
 
tim

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

te
na

nc
y 

fr
au

d 
of
fic

er
 b
as

ed
 a
t B

ar
ne

t H
om

es
.  
 

M
ov

in
g 
in
to
 2
01

2/
13

, 
C
A
F
T
 h
av

e 
em

ba
rk
ed

 o
n 

a 
ne

w
 
w
or
ki
ng

 
re
la
tio

ns
hi
p 

w
ith

 
th
e 

B
ar
ne

t 
G
ro
up

 
an

d 
its

 
su

bs
id
ia
ry
 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 
B
ar
ne

t 
H
om

es
 
an

d 
Y
ou

r 
C
ho

ic
e 

B
ar
ne

t 
– 

th
is
 
w
ill
 

ex
pa

nd
 th

e 
w
or
k 
of
 C
A
F
T
.  

   
 

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
 
  

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012 

Subject Exception Recommendations Report and 
Progress Report up to 6

th
 June 2012 

Report of Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk 
Management 

Summary Members are asked to note the progress against internal audit 
recommendations and work completed to date on the Internal 
Audit Annual Plan 2012-13 

 

Officer Contributors Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk Management 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected None 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Appendix A: Internal Audit Progress Report (up to 6th June 
2012) 

Appendix B: Work completed to date for June 2012 

Appendix C: Work in progress for June 2012 

Appendix D: Internal Audit Recommendations quarter 1 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Maryellen Salter, Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk 
Management  020 8359 3167 

AGENDA ITEM 8

47



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1 That the Committee note the progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 
2012-13 to 6th June 2012 and the actions being taken to address some 
cases of non implementation of high priority recommendations.  

 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 

2.1 At the Audit Committee meeting on 11 March 2010 Members accepted that 
there would be progress reports to all future meetings of the Committee and, 
that for all “limited” or “no assurance” audits, there should be a brief 
explanation of the issues identified.  It was also resolved at the meeting of the 
21st September 2010 that where an audit had limited assurance that greater 
detail be provided than previously. 

2.2 At the meeting of the Committee on the 17th February 2011 it was decided 
that a report would be prepared quarterly regarding those internal audit 
recommendations not implemented.   

2.3 The Committee also requested that the table of priority 1 recommendations 
should in future indicate what date recommendations were made to service 
areas and the implementation date. 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 All internal audit planned activity is aligned with the Council’s objectives, 

particularly the “Better Services with Less Money” priority, and, thus, supports 
the delivery of those objectives by giving an auditor judgement on the 
effectiveness of the management of the risks associated with delivery of the 
service. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 All Internal Audit activity is directed toward giving assurance about risk 

management within the areas examined. By so doing the aim is to help 
maximise the achievement of the Council’s objectives. Internal Audit does this 
by identifying areas for improvement and agreeing actions to address the 
weaknesses. 

 
4.2      Internal Audit work contributes to increasing awareness and understanding of 

risk and controls amongst managers and thus, leads to improving 
management processes for securing more effective risk management. 

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Effective systems of audit, internal control and corporate governance provide 

assurance on the effective allocation of resources and quality of service 
provision for the benefit of the entire community. Individual audits assess, as 
appropriate, the differential aspects on different groups of individuals. 

 
 

48



 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 
Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
6.1 When risk, and assurances that those risks are being well managed, is 

analysed alongside finance and performance information it can provide 
management with the ability to measure value for money.  

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1 Section 151 Local Government Act 1972 provides that ‘6every local authority  

shall make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial 
affairs6’ 

 
 Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 - 'A 
 relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its 
 accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the 
 proper practices in relation to internal control.’ 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The Constitution Part 2 Paragraph 3.3 recognises that the annual audit 

opinion plays an essential part in advising the Council that risk management 
procedures and processes are in place and operating effectively. 

 
8.2 The Constitution Part 3 Responsibilities for Functions - the Audit Committee 

terms of reference paragraph 2 states that the Committee can consider 
summaries of specific audit reports as requested. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The two internal audit reports for progress and exception audit 

recommendations have been combined for this reporting period as only 5 
weeks have passed since the last meeting of the audit committee.   

 
9.2 Since the last report the internal audit service has finalised 5 reports and all of 

these received satisfactory assurances. Information on the audit work carried 
out in the 5 week period has been included in Appendices A, B and C. 

 
9.3 A number of recommendations that was due at the end of June are still in 

progress, however our early assessments have been included for the audit 
committee to review (appendix D). This shows that 54% had been 
implemented at the time of reporting (6th June 2012), however it should be 
noted that some were due by the end of the month. 

 
9.4 The Committee’s role is to review the progress to date and challenge where 

appropriate the progress made.  Directors and/or Assistant Directors were 
asked to attend the Committee where an amber rating had been received on 
the assessment of progress to discuss work to date and work planned to 
cover off any perceived risk. 

49



 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MCG and JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) SS 

 

50



 

1 

Appendix A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

London Borough of Barnet 
 

Internal Audit & Risk Management 
 

Progress Report 2012-13 – Quarter 1 
(up to reporting deadline of 6

th
 June 2012) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maryellen Salter, Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk Management 
 
 
 
 
 

51



 

 

1. Introduction 

 
The Internal Audit Plan was agreed by the Audit Committee on the 26th April 
2012. This report follows the principles previously accepted by the Committee, in 
that all audit reports with limited or no assurance will be summarised into key 
messages with some detail. Information is also presented regarding the corporate 
risks. 

2. Final Reports Issued  

 
This report covers the period from 26th April to the 6th June 2012 and represents a 
5 week period. The Internal Audit service has over this period issued 5 reports in 
accordance with the 2012-13 Internal Audit Plan. The full list of completed audits 
during this period is included within Appendix A. All of the reports issued in the 
current period were given satisfactory assurance and therefore there is no 
detailed analysis of audit findings to report over this period. 

3. Work in progress and effectiveness review 

 
Appendix B includes a list of all of those audits at the planning, fieldwork, or draft 
reporting stages.   
 
As we are not at the end of the quarter for reporting purposes a number of the 
performance indicators have not been finalised, however of those reports issued 
they have all been issued within 10 days of finalising fieldwork and the service 
has had a number of performance indicators returned, of which the average rating 
is 5 (Excellent).  

4. Liaison with Officers and External Audit 

The Internal Audit Service is committed to the managed audit approach.  Part of 
this includes regular liaison with External Audit to ensure that our work can be 
relied upon as part of the financial accounts audit.  External Audit carried out an 
assessment of PwC as part of their review of the internal audit service to ensure 
they could rely on their findings. 
 
Regular meetings have occurred with senior officers regarding implementing 
action plans in accordance with the agreed timeframe. 

52



 

 

5. Changes to our plan 

Since the Internal Audit Plan was approved the following audits have been 
cancelled, deferred or are additional to the original audit plan agreed in April 
2012. 
 

Type 
 

Audit Title Reasons 

Deferred Housing Needs and 
Resources 

Deferred until Quarter 2 to ensure Internal 
Audit and CAFT resources could be used 
at the same time. 

Deferred SAP Access Controls Deferred until quarter 2/3 and the scope of 
the audit may change depending on 
incorporating aspects of this review in 
financial system reviews. 

 

6. Risk Management 

 
Quarter 1 reporting of risk coincides with the performance reporting timeline and 
when the next risk and fraud forum is scheduled which is 11th July 2012.  Since 
the end of April there have been workshops and training sessions ran on the 
revised risk management strategy and policy statement.  There is also due to be 
an Assistant Director challenge session in June to improve the links between 
corporate objectives and the identification of risks relating to those.  The Cabinet 
Member for Resources and Performance continues to challenge senior managers 
on quarterly performance reports, which includes risks. 
 
 
 

53



 

 

Appendix B: 2012-13 work completed during quarter 1 including 
assurance levels as at 6th June 2012 
 

Audit Opinions on Completed Audits during the period 
 

   

  Systems Audits Assurance 

1 
Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan (reported in April 
2012) Limited 

   

  School Audits Assurance 

1 Chalgrove Primary School Satisfactory 

2 Moss Hall Nursery Satisfactory 

3 St Margaret’s Nursery Satisfactory 

4 Monken Hadley Primary School Satisfactory 

 
 
 
 
 
 

54



 

 

Appendix C: Work in progress  
 
The following work is in progress at the time of writing this report (6th June 2012) 

Work in progress  
 

   

  Systems Audits Status 

1 Business Continuity Drafting report 

2 Children in Care Fieldwork 

3 Children’s Data Quality review Fieldwork 

4 Highways Fieldwork 

5 Voluntary Sector Grants Fieldwork 

   

  School Audits Status 

1 Hampden Way Nursery Drafting report 

2 Barnfield Fieldwork 

3 Frith Manor Fieldwork 

4 Holly Park Drafting report 

5 Summerside Drafting report 

 

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
, 
2
0
1
2
-1
3
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
u
e
 

A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
: 
D
a
ta
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 (
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
) 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 I
C

O
 a

n
d
 L

B
B
 &

 M
e
tr
o
p
o
lit

a
n
 

P
o
lic

e
 C

C
T
V
 C

o
d
e
s
 o

f 
P
ra

c
ti
c
e
: 

 a
) 
T
h
e
 C

C
T
V
 s

y
s
te

m
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

a
u
d
it
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

, 
it
 i
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 

T
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 j
u
s
ti
fy

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 u

s
e
 

o
f 
C

C
T
V
, 
w

h
ic

h
 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

  b
) 
A
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 m

a
n
u
a
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 
 

 c
) 
A
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 2

9
 F

o
rm

, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 b

e
fo

re
 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 i
s
 g

ra
n
te

d
. 
 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

C
T
V
 s

y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

9
 

fo
rm

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

s
ta

ff
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
: 

A
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 m

a
n
u
a
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 d
a
te

: 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

P
a
rt
ia
ll
y
 m

e
t 

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

C
T
V
 s

y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

9
 f
o
rm

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 m

a
n
u
a
l 

re
m

a
in

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
: 

A
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 d
a
te

: 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
: 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 

T
h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u
s
e
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 (
C

E
S
 

–
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

o
f 
 O

p
e
n
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 u

s
e
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
: 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 
 S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 

57



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

O
p
e
n
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 r
is

k
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 u

s
e
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 

re
la

te
d
 u

s
e
r 
ro

le
s
/f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
-a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

la
te

d
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 a

n
d
 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
In

 p
a
rt
ic

u
la

r,
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 q

u
a
lit

y
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 (
fo

r 

v
a
lid

it
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
) 
o
f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

e
x
e
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
o
u
n
ts

 s
o
u
rc

e
d
 

fr
o
m

 a
 r
e
c
o
rd

 o
f 
a
ll 

e
x
e
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

d
is

c
o
u
n
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 

O
p
e
n
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

. 

T
h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 s

ta
ff
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

r 
w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 f
a
m

ily
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 

re
s
tr
ic

ti
n
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
is

a
b
lin

g
 l
e
a
v
e
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

p
ro

m
p
tl
y
 d

is
a
b
le

d
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

  -
 D

a
ta

 f
o
r 
q
u
a
lit

y
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 

O
p
e
n
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 t
h
e
re

b
y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
/s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
a
c
tu

a
l 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 N

N
D

R
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
 

- 
 S

e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
r 
(r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

re
fu

n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
) 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 
re

fu
n
d
s
 w

a
s
 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
/d

is
a
b
le

d
 

- 
 T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
T
a
x
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
/d

is
a
b
le

d
 

- 
A
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 f
o
r 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 d

is
a
b
lin

g
 t
h
e
m

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

- 
th

e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 /
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n
tr
o
l 
T
e
a
m

. 
 

- 
th

e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

re
s
tr
ic

t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

c
o
n
fl
ic

ts
 o

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

fo
rm

s
 (
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
) 
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 D
a
te
 

1
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

 

re
s
tr
ic

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 O

p
e
n
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 

s
y
s
te

m
, 
w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
tu

rn
e
d
 i
n
 d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
fo

rm
s
. 
F
o
rm

s
 t
o
 c

a
p
tu

re
 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
tr
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 f
o
r 
th

o
s
e
 r
e
tu

rn
e
d
. 

 A
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
in

g
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r
a
te

s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

b
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
n
tr
o
l 
T
e
a
m

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
in

g
, 
h
a
s
 s

ta
rt
e
d
. 
  

58



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3
: 
D
a
ta
 S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

R
is
k
s
 a
n
d
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

It
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

C
IT

R
IX

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 p
a
tc

h
e
s
 a

re
 a

p
p
lie

d
 

o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

. 
A
 r
e
g
u
la

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
. 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
rm

o
re

, 
th

e
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd

 s
h
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 
d
ir
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
C

h
a
n
g
e
 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
B
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 

a
 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll.
 

A
n
y
 R

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 
C

h
a
n
g
e
 (
R

F
C

) 
ra

is
e
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 

(C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 
 

P
a
rt
ly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

T
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

o
ff
lin

e
 t
o
 a

p
p
ly

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 p
a
tc

h
e
s
. 
 

 D
a
te

s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

ff
lin

e
 t
o
 

a
p
p
ly

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 p
a
tc

h
e
s
 h

a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
. 
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
p
p
ly

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 p
a
tc

h
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 C

it
ri
x
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 d

a
te

s
. 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 T
h
e
 p

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 r
o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

a
g
re

e
d
/s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
 

d
o
w

n
ti
m

e
s
. 
 

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 3

 t
im

e
s
 t
o
 a

p
p
ly

 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
a
tc

h
e
s
  
(e

.g
. 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
C

it
ri
x
 a

n
d
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ry
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
tc

h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l)
 

  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4
: 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 –
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P
la
n
s
 I
T
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
  

T
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
-

o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

fi
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
p
p
o
rt
 I
T
 

a
n
d
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
s
. 
  

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
  

T
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 I
T
 a

n
d
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
o
s
e
 p

la
n
s
. 
  
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 I
T
 D

is
a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 p
la

n
 a

n
d
 a

 v
ia

b
le

  
 

P
a
rt
ly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 I
T
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
p
p
o
rt
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
s
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
. 
T
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

la
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 

 M
o
n
th

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 I
S
, 
E
s
ta

te
s
 a

n
d
 H

R
. 

59



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

p
la

n
 w

a
s
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

u
t 
h
a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 

 F
o
r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
, 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 w

a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
fu

rt
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 

th
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 r
e
m

o
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili
ty

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 f
it
 

fo
r 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
. 
 

 

 F
o
r 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
p
p
o
rt
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
, 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 u

ti
lis

in
g
 2

 f
lo

o
rs

 a
t 
B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
u
s
e
 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
  

 F
o
r 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
p
p
o
rt
 I
T
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

la
n
, 
th

e
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 I
S
 a

re
 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
T
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
IT

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

  
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

la
n
. 
IS

 
B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
/m

a
d
e
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
ili
e
n
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 I
S
 

D
is

a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 (
D

R
) 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 
  

  R
e
v
is
e
d
 d
u
e
 d
a
te
: 
to
 b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5
: 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t,
 P
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 c
la

ri
fy

 i
f/
w

h
e
re

 

d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
is

 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 

W
h
e
re

 d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

s
 

a
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 
ro

le
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
o
le

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 

(C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t
h
re

e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

b
u
ild

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 
a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
b
a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 

th
e
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
: 

 

•
 

T
o
o
ls

  

•
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
  

•
 

P
e
o
p
le

  

P
a
rt
ly
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 W
h
ils

t 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

lig
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
e
n
tr
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 

in
 p

u
tt
in

g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 t
o
o
ls

. 
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 d
a
te
: 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

60



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

o
f 
C

P
T
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
. 
  

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

, 
m

o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
e
a
m

s
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 t
o
o
ls

 a
s
p
e
c
t,
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 

o
f 
th

e
 S

A
P
 s

y
s
te

m
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 

it
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
m

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.
 

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 c

o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 

te
m

p
la

te
s
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
th

e
 

d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 p

re
s
e
n
tl
y
. 
E
.g

. 
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 w

h
e
re

 a
ll 

d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
re

 
ta

k
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

-T
ra

in
in

g
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
m

o
d
u
le

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 a

 s
e
t 
o
f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 
te

m
p
la

te
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 

T
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

le
a
r 
ro

le
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
s
 

a
n
d
 C

P
T
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
a
re

a
s
 

o
f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
w

ill
 s

ta
y
e
d
 d

e
v
o
lv

e
d
 

a
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
s
t 
c
e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
. 
 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 6
: 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
P
R
) 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

o
d
e
ls

 w
ill
 b

e
 

d
e
c
id

e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 E

P
R

 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
te

rm
 v

a
lu

e
s
. 
 

P
a
rt
ly
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

o
d
e
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 d

e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 

61



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 
th

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
in

im
u
m

 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

m
in

im
u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 

R
u
le

s
 (
C

P
R

s
),
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 w
ill
 b

e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 w
it
h
 v

a
lu

e
s
 e

q
u
a
l 
to

 a
n
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
 C

P
R

 l
im

it
s
 f
o
r 
te

rm
 a

n
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

. 
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
tr
a
in

in
g
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
th

e
m

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

  
C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
ill
 b

e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 (
e
.g

. 
o
n
e
 

to
 o

n
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 t
e
a
m

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
) 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in

g
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

o
d
e
l.
 

 

o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

. 
M

o
d
e
ls

 w
ill
 r
a
n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

/m
o
n
th

ly
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 
to

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
lo

w
 v

a
lu

e
, 
le

s
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

. 
  

 A
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
te

d
 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 E

-L
e
a
rn

in
g
 f
o
rm

a
t.
 F

u
rt
h
e
r 
c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 
ty

p
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e
 n

a
tu

re
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ilo
te

d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 b

y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 1

-1
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

E
P
R

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 (
e
.g

. 
m

in
u
te

s
) 
fi
le

d
 i
n
 a

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

R
e
p
o
s
it
o
ry

. 
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
: 

 C
o
m

p
le

te
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 (
3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
) 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 d
u
e
 d
a
te
: 
3
0
/6
/2
0
1
2
 (
tr
a
in
in
g
),
 1
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
2
 (
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
) 
 

62



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 7

: 
E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 

L
is
t,
 S
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

P
a
y
 a

n
d
 D

a
ta

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 H

R
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

, 
p
a
rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

te
m

m
in

g
 f
ro

m
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
. 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 (
a
u
d
it
 t
ra

ils
) 
o
f 
s
u
c
h
 c

h
e
c
k
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r
e
ta

in
e
d
. 
  

 A
 k

e
y
 o

u
tp

u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr
e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 f
o
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
: 

- 
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
e
rr
o
r 
/ 

d
is

c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
fu

tu
re

 

in
p
u
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

t 
s
o
u
rc

e
 p

re
v
e
n
ts

 

d
is

c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

- 
fo

rm
a
l 
s
ig

n
-o

ff
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 o

f 
u
p
d
a
te

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
lis

ts
. 
  

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
g
re

e
d
. 
T
h
e
 P

a
y
 &

 D
a
ta

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

S
A
P
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 f
u
lly

 
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

 m
a
d
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

in
p
u
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
e
r.
 A

u
d
it
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r
e
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 S

A
P
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 f
o
rm

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
rd

 i
n
p
u
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
e
r 
 

A
s
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

 a
b
o
v
e
. 
H

R
 

w
ill
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
e
v
is

e
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t.
 N

e
w

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 

in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

A
P
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

fo
rm

 w
ill
 b

e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 
H

R
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
H

o
ld

e
r 
to

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 a

n
d
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 D
P
R

/ 
G

F
C

 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 

e
n
s
u
re

 o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
y
 a

ll 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
lis

ts
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 F
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o
 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 v

a
lid

it
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

. 
 A
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
e
c
k
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ig
n
-o

ff
, 
w

a
s
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 8
: 
E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 

L
is
t,
 D
a
ta
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

H
R

 s
h
o
u
ld

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 

a
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

H
R

 w
ill
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
e
v
is

e
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t.
 N

e
w

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 

in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

A
P
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

fo
rm

 w
ill
 b

e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

 F
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o
 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 v

a
lid

it
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 

63



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
s
h
o
u
ld

 

d
e
fi
n
e
 t
im

e
fr
a
m

e
s
 f
o
r 
re

v
ie

w
s
, 
th

e
 u

s
e
 

o
f 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 o

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 r
e
v
ie

w
. 
 I
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

fo
r 
w

h
o
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T
h
e
 r
o
le

 o
f 
B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs

 i
n
 f
a
c
ili
ta

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
. 
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 
H

R
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
H

o
ld

e
r 
to

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 a

n
d
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 D
P
R

/ 
G

F
C

 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 

e
n
s
u
re

 o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
y
 a

ll 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
lis

ts
. 
T
h
e
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

w
ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
lis

ts
. 
H

R
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
d
s
 

o
f 
S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

. 
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 9
: 
P
a
rk
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
R
e
c
o
rd
s
 R
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 &
 

D
is
p
o
s
a
l 

T
h
a
t 
a
ll 

re
c
o
rd

s
 b

e
 s

to
re

d
 m

a
n
u
a
lly

 o
r 

e
le

c
tr
o
n
ic

a
lly

 i
n
 a

 l
o
g
ic

a
lly

 s
e
a
rc

h
a
b
le

 
fa

s
h
io

n
, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 R

e
c
o
rd

s
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 &

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
G

u
id

e
lin

e
s
, 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.9
.2

3
. 

C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 (
C

S
O

) 

T
h
e
 C

S
O

 t
e
a
m

 i
n
te

n
d
s
 t
o
 s

ta
rt
 

s
c
a
n
n
in

g
 a

ll 
n
e
w

 p
a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

a
c
k
-

s
c
a
n
n
in

g
 a

ll 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r
e
ta

in
e
d
. 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

w
ill
 b

e
 s

to
re

d
 e

le
c
tr
o
n
ic

a
lly

 a
n
d
 

re
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 R

e
c
o
rd

s
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 &

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
G

u
id

e
lin

e
s
. 

 

P
a
rt
ia
ll
y
 m

e
t 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

ta
ff
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
c
a
n
n
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
, 
th

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

is
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
fu

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 w

ill
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
is

 u
p
 f
o
r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
: 

T
h
e
 C

S
O

 b
ra

n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

a
c
k
-s

c
a
n
 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
re

c
o
rd

s
 a

re
 s

to
re

d
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 R

e
c
o
rd

s
 R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 &

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 

G
u
id

e
lin

e
s
. 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 d
a
te

: 
A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
2
 

64



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
0
: 
H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 D
a
ta
 Q

u
a
li
ty
, 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 

a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

A
 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in

g
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 c
h
e
c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
 O

n
c
e
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
, 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
n
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 
 

•
 

S
a
m

p
le

 c
h
e
c
k
s
 t
o
 s

o
u
rc

e
 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 

to
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
, 
v
a
lid

it
y
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 p
ri
o
r 
to

 
re

p
o
rt
in

g
; 

•
 

D
a
ta

 c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 b

y
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
in

g
, 
e
.g

. 
to

 
re

m
o
v
e
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 /
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
t 

re
c
o
rd

s
 o

r 
to

 f
ill
 i
n
 m

is
s
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 w
h
e
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
r 

s
ta

ff
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
d
a
ta

 
c
o
u
n
t.
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

W
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

im
 f
o
r 

d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

d
a
ta

 i
n
p
u
t 
to

 
a
d
h
e
re

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 o

f 
‘r
ig

h
t 
fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
’ 
a
n
d
 w

e
 a

g
re

e
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

m
o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
d
a
ta

 v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
. 
W

e
 

w
o
u
ld

 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
rr
o
rs

 i
n
 d

a
ta

 s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 

in
 y

o
u
r 
s
a
m

p
le

 c
h
e
c
k
 o

f 
Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

d
a
ta

 f
o
u
n
d
 m

in
o
r 
e
rr
o
rs

, 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 

th
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 b

e
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 
m

is
s
ta

te
d
 b

u
t 
w

it
h
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

m
a
rg

in
 o

f 
e
rr
o
r 
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

d
a
y
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 (
ro
ll
in
g
 y
e
a
r)
 

th
is

 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 

y
e
a
r.
 W

h
e
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

p
p
e
a
r 
in

 m
o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 w

a
y
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt
in

g
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 

. 
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 f
o
r 
th

e
 %

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

re
tu
rn
. 
E
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 g
iv

e
n
 a

 

F
u
ll
y
 m

e
t 

T
h
e
 H

R
 D

a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 c

a
rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
a
 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
, 
a
s
 f
o
llo

w
s
: 

 A
v
e
ra
g
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 d
a
y
s
 p
e
r 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 (
ro
ll
in
g
 y
e
a
r)
 

F
ro

m
 q

u
a
rt
e
r 
o
n
e
 o

f 
2
0
1
2
-1

3
, 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 m

a
n
u
a
lly

, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

d
u
p
lic

a
te

/i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 o

r 
m

is
s
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

. 
 

 %
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r
e
tu
rn
  

T
h
e
 r
a
te

 o
f 
re

tu
rn

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 9

1
%

. 
H

R
 h

a
s
 i
n
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 a

 f
u
ll 

c
h
e
c
k
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 l
is

t 
o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 

re
tu

rn
 i
s
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
. 
  

 %
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 s
e
t 
fo
r 
e
li
g
ib
le
 s
ta
ff
 o
n
ly
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
c
h
e
c
k
 e

v
e
ry

 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 

a
n
d
 H

R
 w

ill
 a

s
k
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
a
n
y
 e

x
e
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 r
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
h
e
c
k
 o

f 
e
x
e
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

65



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 l
is

t 
o
f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 n

o
ti
fy

 H
R

 o
f 
a
n
y
 

re
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 
e
x
e
m

p
ti
o
n
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
d
a
ta

. 
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
1
: 
V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

M
o
n
e
y
 –
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 
to

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 t
h
e
 

le
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
B
u
ild

in
g
 1

 L
o
w

e
r 
G

ro
u
n
d
 

F
lo

o
r.
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
le

a
s
e
s
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 u

n
b
ill
e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 

lia
is

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 
to

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
 

a
 f
in

a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
p
a
y
a
b
le

. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
a
c
c
ru

e
 f
o
r 
th

e
 f
u
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 
n
o
t 
m

a
d
e
 s

in
c
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
. 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
ll 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 l
e
a
s
e
. 
 

D
a
y
 t
o
 d

a
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 e

x
is

t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

L
B
B
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
’s

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
, 
a
ls

o
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
in

 p
la

c
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 a

ll 
le

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
. 
 

A
d
e
q
u
a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 f
o
r 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt
ie

s
. 

 

P
a
rt
ly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

  S
ig
n
in
g
 B
u
il
d
in
g
 2
 L
o
w
e
r 
G
ro
u
n
d
 F
lo
o
r 
 

 T
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
B
u
ild

in
g
 2

 L
o
w

e
r 
G

ro
u
n
d
 

F
lo

o
r 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
9
 

M
a
y
 2

0
1
2
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is

 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
c
t 
th

e
 l
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 s

ig
n
e
d
 

la
te

s
t 
3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 
w

ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
p
a
y
a
b
le

. 
  

 P
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 /
 a
c
c
ru
a
ls
 f
o
r 
u
n
b
il
le
d
 

a
m
o
u
n
ts
 

 A
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
3
7
0
K
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r
a
is

e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 B

u
ild

in
g
 2

 l
e
a
s
e
s
 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 2

 L
o
w

e
r 
G

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 
fo

r 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 
o
w

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 1

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8
. 

 A
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
8
5
K
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r
a
is

e
d
 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 
B
u
ild

in
g
 4

  
 

66



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 
to

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 

fo
r 
B
u
ild

in
g
 1

 L
o
w

e
r 
G

ro
u
n
d
 F

lo
o
r.
 

 R
e
v
is
e
d
 d
u
e
 d
a
te
: 
3
0
/6
/2
0
1
2
  

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
2
: 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
y
s
te
m
 –
 L
iq
u
id
lo
g
ic
, 

P
a
s
s
w
o
rd
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 

A
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

 p
o
lic

y
, 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 :
 

•
 

P
a
s
s
w

o
rd

 e
x
p
ir
y
 i
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 

fo
r 
n
o
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 4

5
 d

a
y
s
; 

•
 

In
it
ia

l 
p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

s
 a

re
 s

tr
o
n
g
  
a
n
d
 

n
o
t 
o
f 
a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 f
o
rm

; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
n
e
w

 u
s
e
rs

 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

 a
t 

th
e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
fi
rs

t 
lo

g
 o

n
 i
s
 e

n
fo

rc
e
d
. 

W
h
e
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 l
im

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
a
llo

w
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

 c
o
n
tr
o
ls

 t
o
 b

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 
o
th

e
r 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
(e

.g
. 

s
in

g
le

 s
ig

n
-o

n
) 
o
r 
m

a
n
u
a
l 
(e

.g
. 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic

 p
o
lic

y
 r
e
m

in
d
e
rs

, 
u
s
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

IC
S
 p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 L

B
B
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

 p
o
lic

y
. 

F
u
ll
y
 m

e
t 

S
tr
o
n
g
 p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
, 
w

it
h
 

a
lp

h
a
n
u
m

e
ri
c
 m

in
im

u
m

 l
e
n
g
th

 p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

s
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r,
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

e
m

a
ils

 u
s
e
rs

 e
v
e
ry

 4
5
 d

a
y
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

s
 a

re
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

 p
o
lic

y
. 

67



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
) 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
3
: 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
y
s
te
m
 –
 L
iq
u
id
lo
g
ic
, 

U
s
e
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

: 

•
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls

 t
o
 v

e
ri
fy

 t
h
a
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 C

R
B
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
C

S
; 

•
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

 a
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

ll 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 I
C

S
 a

n
d
 r
e
m

o
v
e
 

th
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
; 

•
 

P
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 I
C

S
 

u
s
e
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

is
a
b
le

 a
n
y
 

th
a
t 
d
o
 n

o
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 o

r 
d
o
 

n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

 j
u
s
ti
fi
a
b
le

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
a
s
 p

e
r 
th

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

lie
n
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

; 
  

•
 

A
p
p
ly

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
s
t 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 a

p
p
lie

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
iv

e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t;
 a

n
d
 

•
 

E
n
s
u
re

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 I
C

S
, 
H

o
rn

b
ill
 a

n
d
 S

w
if
t 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

•
 

L
B
B
 I
S
 w

ill
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

 a
 q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 c

a
re

 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

ll 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

is
a
b
le

 o
n
e
s
 

th
a
t 
a
re

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
. 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 

a
n
d
 s

e
n
t 
to

 P
a
u
l 
K
e
n
n
e
d
y
 

fo
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.
 

•
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
fr
o
m

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T
o
o
l 

(H
o
rn

b
ill
 S

u
p
p
o
rt
w

o
rk

s
) 
is

 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 S

W
IF

T
 a

n
d
 I
C

S
. 

O
ld

 e
n
tr
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

W
o
rk

s
 w

o
n
’t
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
m

. 

•
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

ll 
te

s
t 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 l
o
c
k
e
d
. 
 U

s
e
rs

 g
iv

e
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
o
f 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 U

s
e
r 
lis

t 
to

 b
e
 v

e
ri
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

 

•
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

te
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 
th

a
t 
re

q
u
e
s
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
C

S
: 

F
u
ll
y
 m

e
t 

•
 

A
ll 

T
e
a
m

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

s
ta

ff
 l
is

ts
 t
o
 c

h
e
c
k
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
s
k
 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 I
C

S
, 
H

o
rn

b
ill
 a

n
d
 S

w
if
t 

w
h
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
u
d
it
a
b
le

 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 a
re

 r
e
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

n
e
w

 
u
s
e
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 c
re

a
te

d
. 

•
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th

e
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 a

re
a
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

 e
x
c
e
p
t 

fo
r 
th

e
 S

y
s
te

m
 A

d
m

in
 u

s
e
r.
 

•
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 m
u
s
t 
n
o
w

 a
p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th

e
ir
 s

ta
ff
, 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 a
s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 C

R
B
 

c
h
e
c
k
 i
s
 p

re
s
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 m
e
th

o
d
 

o
f 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 I
S
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
s
k
. 

68



A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

A
re
a
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

w
h
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
a
u
d
it
a
b
le

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 a
re

 r
e
ta

in
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 I
C

S
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
rm

 o
n
 

b
e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 b
u
t 
th

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 w

ill
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
t.
 T

h
is

 f
o
rm

 a
s
k
s
 

fo
r 
c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 C

R
B
 c

h
e
c
k
 i
s
 

p
re

s
e
n
t.
 A

 r
e
c
o
rd

 i
n
 H

o
rn

b
ill
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 
fo

r 
th

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 

w
it
h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
C

S
 w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

a
ll 

re
f 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 I
C

S
. 

 

 

69



70

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Meeting 
Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012 

Subject Internal Audit Annual Opinion 

Report of Assistant Director of Finance – Audit 
and Risk Management 

Summary The Committee is asked to note the content of the 
Annual Opinion for 2011-12. 

 

 
Officer Contributors Maryellen Salter, Assistant Director – Audit and Risk 

Management 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected None 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Full Council 

Enclosures Appendix A: Internal Audit Annual Opinion 2011-12 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Maryellen Salter, Assistant Director – Audit and Risk 
Management, 020 8359 3167 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

71



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1 That the Committee note the contents of the Annual Opinion/Report. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 

 
2.1 The Audit Committee Work Programme which was approved at the meeting 

on 26th April 2012 included the Internal Audit Annual Opinion for inclusion at 
this meeting. 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 All internal audit planned activity is aligned with the Council’s objectives and, 

thus, supports the delivery of those objectives by giving an auditor judgement 
on the effectiveness of the management of the risks associated with delivery 
of the service. 

 
3.2      The Internal Audit Annual Opinion forms part of the Annual Governance 

Statement that is presented to this Committee. 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 All Internal Audit activity is directed toward giving assurance about controls 

put in place by management to mitigate risks they have identified. Specifically 
giving assurance around the design of those controls and the operating 
effectiveness.  

 
4.2      Internal Audit work contributes significantly to increasing awareness and 

understanding of risk and controls amongst managers and thus, leads to 
improving management processes for securing more effective risk 
management.  Internal Audit also makes recommendations to assist 
managers in improving the internal control environment. 

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Effective systems of internal control and corporate governance provide 

assurance on the effective allocation of resources and quality of service 
provision for the benefit of the entire community.  

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None directly as a result of this Report. 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1      None in the context of this report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 

8.1      The Constitution Part 2 Paragraph 3.3 recognises that the annual audit 
opinion plays an essential part in advising the Council that risk management 
procedures and processes are in place and operating properly. 

72



 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 This report summarises the work that Internal Audit has undertaken during 

2011-12 and the key internal control environment strengths and high priority 
recommendations identified within each directorate during the year. 

 
9.2 This annual report has the primary function of giving an overall opinion on the 

internal control environment.  The 2011-12 financial year has evidenced 
improvement in the quality of design and effectiveness of controls in place to 
mitigate risk.  This was particularly evident for fundamental and key financial 
systems in place, for which now satisfactory assurance is given that these are in 
place and operating as designed. 

 
9.3 Overall 51% of audits undertaken were given satisfactory assurance compared 

to the previous year where only 28% received satisfactory assurance. However 
once the fundamental and key financial systems were excluded from this 
analysis it was clear that the overall control environment had not improved 
significantly so as to change the limited assurance on the overall internal control 
environment. As such an overall limited assurance has been given on the 
overall internal control environment but with improvement noted. 

 
9.4 Schools financial management continues to receive satisfactory assurances 

around schools that we have direct responsibility for. We audit schools on a 
three year cycle, and although not directly comparable year on year as the same 
schools are not audited, we have noted a slight reduction on the number of 
schools receiving satisfactory assurances.  

 
9.5 The Audit Committee’s role in receiving this report is to note the overall 

assurance given for the financial year and to focus on the areas noted as 
themes for 2012-13 for improvement, which are: 

 

• Contract management and compliance 

• Data quality 

• Data protection 

• Improved efficiencies within processes  
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MGC and JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) TE 

  
 

73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Appendix 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

London Borough of Barnet 
 

Internal Audit Annual Opinion 2011-12 - Draft 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maryellen Salter, Assistant Director of Finance, Audit and Risk Management 
 
 
 
 
 

75



 

 

Table of Contents 
 
 

1. Introduction and Overview .............................................................................................................................. 1 
2. Overall Summary ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
3. Key themes ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 
4. Service Summaries ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
Appendix A: Guide to assurance and priority ...................................................................................................... 31 
Appendix B: Statement of Responsibility ............................................................................................................ 32 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



 

 

1. Introduction and Overview 
Purpose of this report 
This report summarises the work that Internal Audit has undertaken during 2011-12 and the key internal control environment 
strengths and high priority recommendations identified within each directorate during the year. 

 
Overview of our approach 
In line with CIPFA Best Practice, the 2011-12 Internal Audit plan was risk based, which has been formulated by: 

• Linking with the Directorates’ plans; 

• Risk Management meetings with officers from all Directorates; 

• Assessing the risk management system for adequacy; and 

• Internal Audit’s ‘Cumulative Audit Knowledge and Experience’ 
 
Our role in internal audit is to provide an annual assurance statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
governance processes, risk management and control environment – the ‘system of internal control’. 
 
In broad terms our Internal Audit approach takes into account the following (according to 2010/11 statement of accounts): 
 

• Annual gross revenues of approximately £766m - Internal Audit performs key fundamental audits of all major income 
systems each year (for example council tax, NNDR, parking, Housing Benefits). Our work is focused on the system controls 
(including interfaces) and manual controls such as performance of reconciliations and clearing of suspense accounts. In 
addition, we review the collections of income through an annual review of income and debt management controls. 

• Annual gross expenditure of approximately £1.280bn – Each we year we perform key financial system audits around the 
Councils devolved accounts payable system. We also conduct reviews into the effectiveness of controls over other 
significant areas of spend e.g. payroll, grants, corporate procurement.  

• Long term assets of approximately £1.336bn - The majority of assets are property and so pose less risk to the Council. 
We generally undertake one review in this area each year based on risks identified.  

• Other assets of approximately £232m - We annually review treasury controls and the Councils administration of 
investments.  

 

77



 

 

 

Overview of our work 
The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2011-12 highlighted that a total of 32 systems based audits and 26 school audits were planned. 
We have communicated closely with senior management throughout the year to ensure that the audit reviews actually undertaken 
continue to represent a focus on high risk areas, in the light of new and ongoing developments in the council to ensure the most 
appropriate use of our resources. 
 
As a result of this liaison, some changes were agreed to the plan during the year. Some projects have been added to or deleted 
from the Plan, others have been consolidated or split into separate elements, and the timing of a number of others has been 
changed. Consequently, the total number of audits undertaken in 2011-12 was actually 37 systems based audits and 24 school 
based audits (2 deferred into 2012-13). See Section Overall Summary. 
 
We generally undertake individual audits with one of two objectives in mind. The majority of audits are geared towards providing 
assurance to management on the operation of the Council’s internal control environment. Other audits are geared towards the 
provision of specific advice and support to management to enhance the efficiency, effectiveness and economy of the services and 
functions for which they are responsible. 
 
All audit reports include our recommendations and actions agreed with management that will, if implemented, further enhance the 
control environment and the operation of the controls in practice. 
 
This report sets out the results of the work performed as follows:  
• Overall summary of work performed by Internal Audit including an analysis of report ratings and priority of recommendations  
• Key themes identified during our work in 2011-12 and an update on those themes identified from the previous year 
• Service Summaries providing an overview of audit work done in each department, the assurances given and any high priority 

recommendations raised. 
 
In this report, we have drawn on the findings and assessments included in all of the reports issued, all reports had been finalised in 
full and signed off by the relevant Director/Assistant Director. 

78



 

 

2. Overall Summary 
Overall, as illustrated in the tables below, we have noted an improvement in the percentage of satisfactory assurance reports 
issued compared to limited.  Overall there were more satisfactory audit reports issued (51%) compared to 28% of audit reports in 
the previous year.   

 

 
Based on the internal audit work completed in 2011-12 I can give limited assurance on the Council’s 
overall internal control environment. 
 
However, based on the internal audit work performed I can give satisfactory assurance on the key 
controls in operation within fundamental and key financial systems. 
 

 
Report ratings 
 No of Projects/Audits 

Assurance opinions 2011-12 2010-11 

 No. % No. % 

Substantial -  1 2 

Satisfactory 19 51 11 26 

Limited 14 38 29 67 

No - - 2 5 

Risk Assurance 4 11   

Sub-total 37  43  

Schools audits** 25  34  

Merged audits/no 
opinions 

-  2  

Total Audits 62  79  

Total  62* 100 79** 100 

* the number of audit days planned was 1,007 for 2011-12 
** the number of audit days planned was 917 for 2010-11 

79



 

 

 
 

Fundamental and Key Financial Systems 
Fundamental and key financial systems 2011/12 2010/11 

 No. % No. % 

Substantial    1 9 

Satisfactory 8 80 4 33 

Limited  2 20 7 58 

No   - - 

Total Assurance ratings 10 100 12* 100 

* In 2010-11 the additional ‘systems’ reviewed were debit and credit cards and compliance with financial regulations.  In 2011-12, 
these two areas were considered within each of the key financial systems we reviewed rather than separately. 
 
Positively there was an evident improvement within the controls surrounding fundamental and key financial systems with 80% now 
with satisfactory position; this represents a 90% improvement in comparison to the prior year. 

Analysis of School audit assurances 

The Scheme for Financing Schools states that “the Chief Finance Officer shall arrange an adequate and effective internal audit, 
under his/her independent control, to examine the schools’ accounting, financial and other operations.” The table below outlines the 
assurances given for those 24 schools reviewed.  This is the first year in which comparison can be made between years, as 
previously schools were not given an assurance rating.  The results highlight that there is some slippage of financial management 
capability within Schools, compared to the previous year.  However it is important to note that we are on a three year cycle with 
schools and we are not comparing the same schools year on year 
 

Assurance opinions 2011-12 2010-11 

 No. % No. % 

Substantial 2 1 -  

Satisfactory 18 72 31 91 

Limited 4 16 2 6 

No - - 1 3 

Special Audits 1 1   

Total 25 100 34 100 

80



 

 

 

 
Based on the school audits carried out during 2011-12 I am able to give satisfactory assurance that there 
is an adequate system for financial management processes and controls among the Council’s schools. 
 
 
 
 

81



 

 

3. Key themes 
 
There are a small number of areas that are cross-cutting included within our Internal Audit Plan. By pulling together all summaries 
for the directorates for the year it enables us to draw out key themes that require attention by the Council. 
 

Internal Control and Governance  
 
From a governance point of view, the following areas have been noted as still relevant for the Annual Governance Statement: 
 
Contract Management/Procurement – although improvement has been made since last year towards the Procurement Controls and 
Monitoring Action Plan there is still some progress to be made in making the compliance regime business as usual.  The council 
now have the right data in which to make further efficiencies in contract and category management, and the control framework 
should be embedded to further support these objectives.  
 
Data Quality – although overall arrangements at a corporate level to support data quality have improved there are still instances 
observed where data quality arrangements within services have not met all data quality standards.  It is important as aspects of the 
value chain are outsourced that standards for data quality are understood and developed to ensure data quality issues can be 
identified and flagged with providers prior to placing reliance on data for decision making purposes. 
 
Data protection – during the year a number of improvements occurred to the data protection framework, there is a requirement 
however to sharpen the compliance framework for more proactive targeted improvement to take place.  
 
Focus on internal processes and relevance for the customer – there were a number of opportunities observed across a range of 
services to redesign processes and procedures to better achieve outcomes for the customer/resident/service user.  For example, 
some processes were inefficient in that they did not act as a control to be relied upon by management but rather added additional 
time/resource to the customer journey. 
 
In addition, the following control issues were noted consistently and although not considered a significant governance issue they 
require focus by senior management during 2012-13: 

82



 

 

 
Training and development – common across a number of reviews was the piece meal approach to training and development.  Key 
to an adequate internal control environment is equipping staff with the necessary tools to carry out the tasks that they have been 
assigned.  Whilst training and development had been provided across directorates there was little management oversight of that 
training and development to ensure the right people attended and all training needs had been met.  
 
Audit Recommendations – whilst the direction of travel had improved for implementing audit recommendations on a timely basis, 
there were instances in a number of audits, or from other sources of assurance received by the council, that highlighted some 
recommendations were repeated from previous periods.  It is important that accepted recommendations are actioned in order to 
support the improvement of the internal control environment. 
 
 

Risk Management 
Arrangements for risk management were reviewed by PwC to ensure they could be relied upon as a basis for setting the Internal 
Audit Plan. Based on that review they gave satisfactory assurance that the risk management arrangements were operating as 
intended; this was an improvement to the previous review undertaken in 2009/10 which gave limited assurance that arrangements 
were effective. The service continues to benchmark its risk management arrangements through CIPFA and also within the current 
year the risk management strategy and policy was revised and reported to the Audit Committee. 
 
We do note however from our internal audit work within the services that in some cases controls had not been designed effectively 
to mitigate the risks identified, and therefore more training is planned for 2012-13 to ensure the link is understood between 
achievement of objectives and the management of risk. 
 

Performance of Internal Audit 
All of the 2011-12 Audit Plan was delivered by the end of the financial year (March 2012), over the past two years there has been a 
focus on delivering assurances on a timely basis and this year marks another 3 month improvement to the process. During the year 
the Internal Audit and risk management service has made some further improvements to its performance including: 

• Completing the joint procurement process with London Borough Enfield for IA services, awarding PwC the contract for 
the next three years; 

• Completing an internal restructure to enable the service to meet the needs of stakeholders; 

• Refocused the audit approach to ensure focus on key risks;  

83



 

 

• Improved quality assurance processes in place; 

• Revising the risk management strategy and policy statement to align with the new models of delivery the council is 
progressing towards; and 

• Training on risk management processes and procedures, including the use of JCAD the risk management system 
 
We continually request feedback from senior management and service managers to ensure we address any perceived or actual 
weaknesses. This year we received 16 performance questionnaires back following completion of audits. These questionnaires gave 
a rating from 1 (Excellent) to 5 (Unacceptable), we set a target for the Internal Audit Service to achieve 90% of those to be rated 
over 3.  This year the service achieved 100% (88% in 2010-11) rated satisfactory or above.  As most of the feedback was positive 
there was not too much negative feedback to action however there were the following suggestions: 

• Adjusting the tone within some of the schools audit reports 

• Being clearer in recommendations raised 
There continues to be a need to review the Internal Audit Service and seek to improve the arrangements further.  

84



 

 

4. Service Summaries 
 
The number of audits completed by department and the overall report ratings given is summarised in the table below: 
 

Directorate Substantial Satisfactory Limited No No 
opinion 

Total 

Fundamental and key financial 
systems 

 8 2   10 

Cross cutting  2 3   5 

Integrated Specialist Audits  1    1 

One Barnet     2 2 

Corporate Governance  1    1 

Environment, Planning and 
Regeneration 

 1 3   4 

Commercial Services   2  2 4 

Adults Social Care and Health  2    2 

Children’s Services  3 1   4 

Chief Executive Service  1 1   2 

Deputy Chief Executive Service   2   2 

Total - 19 14 - 4 37 

 

85



 

 

The number of recommendations raised by directorate is noted below and the number of high priority recommendations accepted: 
 

Directorate High 
(Priority 1) 

Medium 
(Priority 2) 

Low 
(Priority 3) 

Total Total 
Priority 1 
Accepted 
(No.) 

Fundamental and key financial 
systems 

2 31 6 39 2 

Cross Cutting 5 20 2 27 5 

Integrated Specialist Audits  1 1 2  

One Barnet 1 15  16 1 

Corporate Governance  5  5  

Environment, Planning and 
Regeneration 

3 17  20 3 

Commercial Services 2 11  13 2 

Adults Social Care and Health  7 1 8  

Children’s Service 3 11 11 25 3 

Chief Executive Service 1 3 2 6 1 

Deputy Chief Executive Service 3 6 1 10 3 

Total 20 127 24 171 20 

 
As at the end of April the priority 1 recommendations were 75% implemented, an improved direction of travel in implementing 
recommendations was demonstrated in the year however the target is to have 90% consistently implemented quarter on quarter. 
 
Compared to last year, there were 234 recommendations raised: 45 high priority, 166 medium priority and 23 low priority 
recommendations raised.  This number of recommendations this year is a positive improvement on last years results, with a smaller 
number of high and medium recommendations raised.  As all recommendations were accepted by management we would expect 
all of these recommendations to be implemented by the time of our follow-up timetable. 

86



 

 

Fundamental and key financial systems 
Each year Internal Audit carries out reviews of the council’s fundamental financial systems, to provide the council with the 
necessary assurance that key financial controls in the fundamental systems are operating satisfactorily and support a robust 
internal control environment. Overall we have noted an improvement in the internal control environment compared to last year.  The 
reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with a summary of key strengths and high priority recommendations 
noted:  

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High priority Recommendations 

Housing 
Benefits 
 
 
 

• Clear and allocated responsibility for key 
processes within Housing Benefits 

• The existence of updated, accessible 
documented procedures for review by Housing 
Benefit staff 

• Adequate and effective staff training and 
development arrangements for ensuring the 
accurate processing of benefit claims 

 

• There were no high priority recommendations 
 
 

Council Tax 
 
 
 
 
 

• Clear and allocated responsibility for key 
processes for Council Tax  

• The existence of documented processes for 
referral for key Council Tax processes  

• Adequate and effective training and 
development arrangements for ensuring 
accurate processing of Council Tax 
exemptions, discounts and disregards. 

• Need to strengthen and complete access 
controls review within the Council Tax teams  

 

NNDR 
 
 

• Clear and allocated responsibility for key 
processes for NNDR  

• The existence of documented processes for 
referral for key business rate processes for 
exemption and relief processes, property 

• There were no high priority recommendations 

 

 

 

87



 

 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High priority Recommendations 

database processes, interface reconciliation, 
refund processing and recovery.     

• Adequate and effective training and 
development arrangements for ensuring 
accurate processing of NNDR relief. 

 

Accounts 
Payable 
 

• All audit recommendations from the previous 
year had been implemented in full for accounts 
payable 

 
 
 

• There were no high priority recommendations 

Payroll 
 
 

• The clear allocation of roles and 
responsibilities for payroll related processes  

• The existence of documented procedures for 
related processes for referral 

 

• Although there were systematic arrangements 
for submitting P45 certificates for leavers, there 
were instances where they had not been 
documented as submitted. This issue had not 
been rectified since the previous year’s audit.  

 
 

LG Pensions 
 

• Our testing confirmed that controls were 
designed and operating effectively for those 
areas of high risk with pensions. 

 

• There were no high priority recommendations  

Treasury 
Management 

 
 
 
 

• Our testing confirmed that controls were 
designed and operating effectively for those 
areas of high risk with treasury management. 

• There were no high priority recommendations  

 

 

 

 

88



 

 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High priority Recommendations 

Cashbook 
 
 
 
 

• Recommendations raised in the previous years 
audit for cashbook control had been 
implemented in full 

• There were no high priority recommendations 

Income and debt 
management 

 
 

 

• All recommendations raised in relation to the 
prior years audits had been implemented in full 
for the income and debt management review. 

• There were no high priority recommendations 

Non-current 
assets (incl. 
Heritage 
Assets) 

• Roles and responsibilities for related 
processing were clear and allocated; and 

• Documented procedures covering key aspects 
of non-current asset processing were in place 
and up to date 

• Effective processes for ensuring the timely 
identification of Heritage assets in line with the 
Code definition for Heritage assets; 

• Effective processes for measurement of 
Heritage Assets at fair value where possible 

• There were no high priority recommendations  

 

 

 

 

89



 

 

Integrated Specialist Audits 
The reviews undertaken during the year used for strategic support and projects with a high degree of specialist input, this included: 
 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

Risk 
Management 

• There is a risk management strategy in place 
that had been revised annually. 

• The risk management system (JCAD) is being 
used across the Council with all risks being 
maintained on it. The internal controls checklist 
is currently being included on JCAD. 

• From our work performed it was clear that the 
use of JCAD and the monitoring and updating 
of risks is being met within the Council through 
the activity highlighted in JCAD on the five 
risks registers reviewed in this audit. We noted 
the following trends: 

• 54% of the risks had reduced their 
risk score since being inputted 
onto the risk register; 

• 31% of the risks had the same 
score as when they were inputted 
onto the risk register; and 

• 15% of the risks had a score 
which had worsened since they 
were inputted onto the risk 
register. 

• All previous audit recommendations had been 
implemented. 

• There were no high priority recommendations. 

 
 

 

90



 

 

Cross Cutting 
The reviews undertaken during the year as listed below are cross cutting in that they cross over more than one service.  The 
strengths and any high priority recommendations identified from these reviews are noted below: 
 

Assurance and 
title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

Access to 
housing and 
effect on 
homelessness 
 

• Our audit focused on the processes and 
controls in place for assessing applicants for 
housing assistance in the Council, the 
fulfilment of statutory obligations and the 
maintenance of accurate and complete 
information. There were no high priority issues 
found as a part of this audit 

• The controls relating to referrals to Broadway 
Housing (formally Threshold Housing Advice) 
were appropriately designed and operating 
effectively, with no issues noted from those 
tested as part of this review. 

• The LEAN review had been effective in 
delivering efficiencies and responding to the 
customer 

• There were no high priority recommendations. 

Domestic 
Violence 

• Following the December 2010 Co-ordinated 
Action Against Domestic Abuse (CAADA) 
quality assurance process Barnet implemented 
an action plan. The latest CAADA assessment 
in July 2011 illustrated a significant 
improvement, reflecting the successful 
implementation of many of these actions.  

• Within the housing directorate there is a 
domestic violence policy which clearly explains 

• There was no overriding mapping document 
which illustrated the assessment and referral 
process across the Council and how the support 
agencies and directorates link together.  

• From review of the procedures in Housing we 
understand that there were some specific 
procedures covering domestic violence and the 
approach required. This was considered to be an 
area of good practice in the Council. However, 

 

 

91



 

 

Assurance and 
title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

the process to be followed when a domestic 
violence case is identified. Additionally, 
mandatory training on domestic violence has 
been provided to all housing needs officers 
and induction training on domestic violence is 
provided to new starters.  

• There is a signed Multi-Agency Risk 
Assessment Conference (MARAC) information 
sharing agreement in place making partners 
aware of the information they are able to share 
with other agencies in support of domestic 
violence cases.  

within Children’s Service and Adults Social Care 
and Health, the domestic violence process was 
incorporated within the safeguarding procedures 
that were followed and there was no specific 
domestic violence policy. Consequently there 
was a lack of clarity over the referral process 
required to be followed.  

• There were differences in the risk assessment 
tools for referrals being used in the directorates, 
with the Housing Social Care Direct Team not 
using any initial assessment tool.  

 

Complaints • There is clear guidance on the internet for 
residents to use if they wish to make a 
complaint 

• There is a SAP Customer Relations 
Management (CRM) model in place for 
recording and logging complaints received by 
the Council 

• Directors receive reports on a quarterly basis 
on complaints management performance 
across service areas 

• The Council had not communicated its strategy 
for dealing with complaints as well as internal 
procedures which set out how council officers 
should manage corporate complaints 

 

Carbon 
Reduction 
Commitment 
 
 
 

• The evidence pack informing the Footprint 
Report and the Annual Report has been 
prepared in line with the Guidance in the 
Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy 
Efficiency Scheme Evidence pack (Guidance). 

 
 

• There were no high priority recommendations 

 

 

92



 

 

Assurance and 
title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

Data Protection 
 
 
 

• There was evidence of good staff awareness 
of the current data protection requirements and 
recent non-compliance issues, supported by a 
willingness to act on the ICO 
recommendations, in order to further improve 
practices and support compliance with the 
Data Protection Act 1998.  

• Staff indicated a good level of awareness 
regarding the security and confidentiality of 
personal information and were aware of the 
importance of reporting IT security incidents, 
disposing personal data securely (shredding) 
and dealing with Subject Access Requests.  

• There are Policies and Procedures in place on 
the Council’s Corporate Governance Intranet 
site, which detail the requirements of the 
current DPA and explaining Council processes 
to staff.  

• The Council’s Information Security Policy 
provides guidance to staff on the security 
methods for data transfer. 

 

• Council contract terms and conditions require 
specific clauses on compliance with the data 
protection legislation. However, current service 
contract monitoring checks do not seek 
confirmation of contractors’ compliance with the 
DP contract terms and conditions.  

• Clear desk requirements were not fully in place, 
in two service teams visited at Barnet House.  

• Whilst personal data collected, processed and is 
secured appropriately by the Council, we found 
that there is no consistent approach adopted by 
service areas to ensure that retention periods 
are being implemented and adhered in line with 
the current Records Retention and Disposal 
Guidelines.  

• A review of the CCTV arrangements was 
required across the Council. 

 

 

 

93



 

 

One Barnet Programme Controls 
 

One Barnet encompasses a number of projects that are sponsored by Directors; our internal audit plan has covered a number of 
projects embedded with the services within the current year: Customer Services risk management, and Right to control, these have 
been reported within the service summaries and both received satisfactory assurance.  
 
In addition, we reviewed on number of projects and the programme overall against PwC methodology that suggest a well managed, 
effective programme will have fit-for-purpose controls that address the 12 points in the table below. 
 
Since commencement of PwC (October 2011) there has been two reviews 
undertaken (quarter 3 and 4) covering management controls designed for 
the One Barnet programme. The scope of these review included: 

• Programme scope and change control 

• Programme dependencies 

• Programme governance 

• Project governance 

• Programme and project capacity and capability 

• Change management 

• Risk and issues management 
 
Out of those reviews there was one action that required immediate action: 

• Management should take steps to standardise and optimise usage 
of the corporate risk management tool, JCAD, within the 
programme, with a particular focus on risk actions and risk scoring.   

We are pleased to note that this recommendation had been implemented 
with appropriate training and quality checking role established within the 
programme.  All recommendations raised for the One Barnet Programme 
are followed up regularly through-out the year and reported to the One 
Barnet Programme Board. 

Twelve 

Elements of 
Project 

Management 

Excellence

Clear scope 

Managed 
risks and 

opportunities

Delivery - enabling 
plans

Focused
benefits 

management 

High -
performing 

teams

Smart 
f inancing

Integrated 

suppliers 

Active 

quality 

management 

Strong 
governance 

and

reporting

Agile change  

control 

Embedded life-
cycle assurance and 

learning

Engaged

stakeholders

94



 

 

Corporate Governance 
 

The reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with the strengths and weaknesses identified of each review. 
 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
Areas for development 

Elections 
 

• Policies and procedures are in place to ensure 
compliance with legislative and statutory 
requirements 

• Roles and responsibilities are formally 
documented for the Elections Registration 
Office and in line with legislative requirements 

• Reconciliations are performed on a regular 
basis, this includes reconciling to prime 
documents such as notice of death 

• Arrangements are in place to monitor 
performance of the Electoral Registration 
Office and effectiveness or management 
actions to address poor performance  

• There were no high priority recommendations 
 

 

95



 

 

Environment, Planning and Regeneration 
The reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with the strengths and weaknesses identified of each review. 
 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

Budget 
Monitoring 
 
 
 
 

• Responsibility for budget monitoring clear and 
allocated to budget (cost centre) managers  

• Confirmation of Senior Management challenge 
and planned challenge of budget managers 
following outturn.  

• The reporting of the budget overspends to 
Chief Finance officer in line with the Financial 
Regulations  

• Confirmation of Chief Finance Officer 
challenge of budget  

• A systematic process, understood by officers 
interviewed, undertaken sufficiently in advance 
of the budget reporting deadline for identifying 
and challenging budget savings proposals  

• Confirmation of the prior engagement with 
stakeholders associated with the savings items 

 

• There were no high priority recommendations 
 
 

New Homes 
 
 
 
 

• There were processes in place for the 
allocation of responsibilities for the delivery of 
key outputs under the New Homes Bonus, 
arrangements for the monitoring of 
Regeneration delivery and the reporting and 
review of related performance.     

 

• There was no formal strategy or clear mandate 
in place focussed on maximising the economic 
and social benefits of the New Homes Bonus 
Scheme.  As a result of this operational delivery 
had not integrated the policy aspects of the New 
Bonus Scheme in with current regeneration 
activity.   

 

 

 

96



 

 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

Contract 
Management 
 
 
 
 

• Responsibility for the administration of aspects 
of the Environment, Planning and 
Regeneration (EPR) contract register were 
documented and allocated; and 

• Where formal contracts were available and 
where applicable, identified variations had 
been authorised by the Members and officers 
with appropriate level of seniority. 

 

• There was a lack of contract management 
activity and governance evidenced for two 
contracts we selected with values of less than 
£1m.  

• There was a lack of training for contract 
managers observed 

• There was not always formal record of meetings 
held reflecting Key Performance Information 
(KPI) output and discussions, and resulting 
actions that were agreed within the meetings 

 
Parking  
 
 
 
 

• We confirmed Civica-produced system-specific 
guidance, the provision of training for taking 
card payments by telephone, the allocation of 
roles and responsibilities for and the 
undertaking of key functions such as income 
reconciliations and charge backs and the 
correct allocation of income to profit centres. 

 

• There has been a failure to retain permit 
application supporting documentation for 
sufficient time period, in accordance with the 
Records Retention & Disposal Guidelines, or in a 
structured manner. As a result of this finding we 
were unable to review the effectiveness of the 
controls in operation as an audit trail only existed 
for 3 months and the filing of records for the 
three month period was completed on an ad hoc 
basis.  

  

 

 

 

97



 

 

Commercial 
The reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with the strengths and weaknesses identified of each review. 
 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

IT penetration 
testing 
 
 
 
 

 • Little progress has been made to address the 
issues identified in the External Penetration 
Testing (testing of the externally facing 
infrastructure – Internet). Of the 17 issues 
identified none have been fully remediated. 

• Some progress has been made in addressing 
the issues that were identified as part of the 
Internal Penetration Testing (testing of 
infrastructure within the Barnet IT environment). 
Of the 37 issues identified; 

• 20 have been resolved and 

• 17 remain open (five high and 12 
medium severity.) 

• In addition, three high severity vulnerabilities 
identified during the March 2010 Penetration 
Testing were identified again during the 
Penetration Tests carried out in March 2011. 

 

Review if 
Children’s and 
Adults contracts 
 
Conclusions and 
recommendations 
only 

• It was clear that the commissioners have to 
navigate a complex legal and regulatory 
environment when making placements. 
Special meetings are convened to discuss 
user needs and placement options. Minutes 
are taken and an audit trail is preserved. 

• The adult residential/nursing care market has 

• There were a number of recommendations 
made to improve Part B of the Contract 
Procedure Rules (CPRs) to provide more clarity 
to Adults and Children’s Services. 

 

98



 

 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

 
 
 
 
 

grown organically over the years, but now the 
Council is beginning to use the weight of its 
purchasing power to influence the market and, 
in particular, to negotiate rates. 

• Children’s contracts in all instances are 
reviewed annually. Care plans are obviously 
reviewed much more frequently and to the 
extent that they reveal any issues with the 
provider, then the Authority will inspect or 
undertake further monitoring. 

• Placement teams keep a handle on budgets 
and social workers keep an eye on users’ care 
plans. The two teams work together to ensure 
that changes made operationally are reflected 
contractually and vice versa; and that invoices 
raised are validated accordingly. 

Procurement 
Controls and 
Monitoring Action 
Plan 
 
 
 
 

We monitored the progress throughout the year 
against the Procurement Controls and Monitoring 
Action Plan. At each review there had been 
improvement in arrangements noted.  Specifically 
since our review in December there have been some 
improvements made in the processing of transactions 
in compliance with the Contract Procurement Rules 
(CPRs). In particular, there are now some areas 
where no findings were noted with the control design 
and the operating effectiveness of the system. This 
includes:  

• Protocols for monitoring spend and ensuring 
staff responsibilities are in place across 

• Although a training package for contract 
management has been developed, and there are 
minor amendments to be made to bring it fully in 
line with the CPRs, it has not yet been rolled out 
to relevant staff members. Without consistent 
training delivered to all staff members who are 
involved in procurement, the CPRs may not 
become culturally embedded within the Council. 
We note however that procure to pay training 
had occurred to relevant staff, or access turned 
off, as reported in December.  

 

 

99



 

 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

directorates. These were reviewed and are in 
line with the CPRs.  

• No findings were noted in substantive testing 
of contract extensions in relation to the 
procedures to ensure that contract extensions 
are considered in the same way as new 
contracts, and go through a process to ensure 
they are appropriately extended for the 
Council.  

 
 

Value for money 
– Facilities 
Management 
 
 
 
 

 • There is a lease in place, for Building 2 Lower 
Ground Floor, and the lease contract has not 
been signed, despite the Council starting the 
tenancy in January 2008.  

• Only two meetings with the lessor could be 
confirmed as occurring during 2011-12, despite 
the requirement for them to be held every six to 
eight weeks by Council procedures during 2011-
12.  

 
 

 
 

 

100



 

 

Adults Social Care and Health 
The reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with the strengths and weaknesses identified of each review. 
 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

Right to control 
 
 

• Controls were found to be appropriately 
designed and operating effectively in the 
Statutory Requirements area 

• There were no high priority recommendations, 
however opportunities exist to streamline 
procedures and focus on controls 

 

Fairer 
Contributions 
 
 
 
 

• No issues with the design of controls or the 
operating effectiveness of controls in the Policy 
Implementation. 

• There were no high priority recommendations, 
however opportunities exist to streamline 
procedures and focus on controls 

 

 

 

101



 

 

Children’s Service 
The reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with the strengths and weaknesses identified of each review. 
 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

Apprenticeships 
 
 
 
 

• The London Borough of Barnet offers a unique 
Apprenticeship programme that is currently in 
its third year, with plans for further 
development.    The Scheme is not offered by 
other London Borough Councils and is one 
work stream that contributes to the objectives 
of the Children’s Service.  As part of the 
2011/12 cohort, a total of five apprentices have 
been appointed by the Council.   

• There were no high priority recommendations, 
however opportunities exist to streamline 
procedures and focus on controls 

 

Schools 
placements 
 
 
 
 

• The service is a member of the Pan London 
eAdmission systems, which allows interfaces 
to existing Local Admissions Systems, via the 
Pan London Register, so that applications can 
be transferred directly without the need for 
manual entry.  

• The take-up of online services is a government 
priority and the expectation is that local 
authorities will increase the proportion of 
applications for school places being made 
online for the 2012 secondary transfer round to 
at least 80%. Last year Barnet achieved a 
take-up of 76% for 2011, which was the 
highest within the Pan London Group of 
authorities.  

• Places are only ‘offered’ for each school based 
on the published criteria to decide which 

• Schools Admissions guidance provided to 
parents and carers, requests for copies of proof 
of the child’s age (if not attended a Barnet 
Primary school) and/or address (if change in the 
last 2 years). A sample check of 30 paper and 5 
on-line applications found that in 10 cases the 
required number and type of address proofs 
were not received or followed-up by the service.  

 

 

 

102



 

 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Recommendations 

children are eligible for places and the current 
system ensures that no child is ‘offered’ more 
than one school place.  

• Processes are in place for the service to meet 
the National ‘Offers’ day for both secondary 
and primary reception transfers.  

• Staff have been assigned clear roles and 
responsibilities for dealing with and managing 
various aspects of the school placement 
processes. 

 

Foster Carers 
 
 
 
 

 • There were no high priority recommendations, 
however opportunities exist to streamline 
procedures and focus on controls 

IT review of 
Children’s 
Services 
LiquidLogic 
 
 
 

 • The application password security settings do 
not meet the corporate security policies 

• No independent verification that CRB checks 
have been undertaken is performed prior to 
granting access to new users and users from 
third party organisations. There is no periodic 
review of user access and the test environment 
which contains a copy of data from the live 
environment. The live and test environments are 
not monitored to ensure that unauthorised or 
inappropriate access is gained and privacy 
breached. 

 

 

 

103



 

 

Chief Executive’s Service 
The reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with the strengths and any high priority recommendations of each 
review. 

 
Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High priority Recommendations 

Customer 
Services 
Transformation 
Programme – 
Risk 
Management 
 
 
 
 
 

• The Programme and associated projects have 
adopted and developed a standard and 
simplified method of managing projects based 
on PRINCE2.  

• Project governance arrangements are in place 

• The Programme Board and Project teams 
meet to gauge progress, identify concerns, 
discuss risks and confirm tasks for completion.  

• We confirmed that risk management 
processes existed.  

• There is a process to escalate risks to the One 
Barnet Programme Level.  

• There were no high priority recommendations 
raised. 

 

Libraries 
 
 
 
 
 

• Management have in place a governance and 
oversight role in the Library Strategy 
Programme Board, which meets monthly. This 
has been set up to include review of detailed 
management information of both the “business 
as usual” aspect of the strategy, and the 
development of the capital aspects. 

• At the time of our review there has been little 
progress in implementation of the Strategy, with 
a limited operational work plan developed to 
incorporate staff resource, delivery timescales 
and budget.  

 

 

 

 

104



 

 

Deputy Chief Executive’s Service 
The reviews undertaken during the year are listed below along with the strengths and any high priority recommendations from each 
review. 
 
Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Issues 

Establishment 
Lists 
 
 
 
 

• Governance and clarity of roles for ensuring 
validity and accuracy of HR Establishment 
data are stated in the Financial Regulations 
and Scheme of Delegation;  

• There was adequate communication and 
knowledge of the Scheme of Delegation and 
related responsibility to senior managers in 
Services;  

• Responsibility for the update of establishment 
data in HR, clear and allocated to Pay and 
Data Team;  

• The identification in the Council’s risk 
management system, of the issue / risk for 
relating to inaccurate establishment data;  

• The undertaking of specific initiative, 
championed at Senior Management level, to 
review and align HR establishment data to 
SAP Finance budgeted post/cost centre 
structure to address the identified risk;  

• Evidence of the authorisation of recruitment to 
established posts by HR and Finance experts 
for independent confirmation of availability of 
post, hours and budget, prior to recruitment. 

 
 

• Instances where establishment change requests 
by Services were not formally authorised using 
SAP Organisational structure control forms. This, 
coupled with the lack of independent checks of 
establishment list changes has resulted in data 
quality issues with some of the establishment 
lists we reviewed 

• Errors/discrepancies existed within the sample 
we reviewed with Establishment data. In 
addition, there were inconsistent approaches by 
Services to ongoing reviews of their 
Establishment data. 

 
 

 

105



 

 

Assurance and 
Title 

 
Strengths 

 
High Priority Issues 

Data Quality – 
HR data 
 
 
 
 
 

• There is a clear commitment to data quality, 
with Human Resources responsible for data 
quality and for the HR Business Partners to 
provide a central support service to Service 
Teams on data quality issues.  

• There is a Corporate Policy and Guidance on 
Data Quality which provides the framework for 
service-specific arrangements for data quality.  

• Services receive progress performance reports 
and these are followed up by meetings with the 
HR Business Partners to discuss any data 
quality issues.  

• Performance data is also published to 
residents through the council’s website and 
placed on the London Data Store website. 
Both of these initiatives support the council’s 
transparency agenda.  

• Although the methodology for collating, 
calculating and reporting the indicators is 
correct, the weaknesses found during our review 
resulted from effective verification checks not 
always being carried out to confirm the accuracy 
of the indicators to identify possible errors before 
reporting 

 
 

 

106



 

 

Appendix A: Guide to assurance and priority 
 
For each audit, we arrive at a conclusion that assesses the audit assurance in one 
of four categories.  These arise from our assessment of the system of controls, 
which are in place to achieve the system objectives, and our testing opinion: we 
check whether the controls said to be in place are being consistently applied. 
 

 Substantial 

Assurance 

There is a sound system of internal control designed to 
achieve the system objectives. 

The control processes tested are being consistently applied. 

 Satisfactory 

Assurance 

While there is a basically sound system of internal control, 
there are weaknesses, which put some of the client’s 
objectives at risk. 

There is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some 
of the control processes may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 

 Limited 

Assurance 

Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such as to 
put the client’s objectives at risk. 

The level of non-compliance puts the system objectives at 
risk. 

 No 

Assurance 

Control processes are generally weak leaving the 
processes/systems open to significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-compliance with basic control processes 
leaves the processes/systems open to error or abuse. 

 
 

 

 

107



 

 

Appendix B: Statement of Responsibility 

 

We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the 
limitations set out below. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during 
the course of our internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  
This report is a summarisation of the 2011-12 and individual reports for each area 
should be reviewed in detail. Recommendations for improvements should be 
assessed by management for their full impact before they are implemented.   
 
The performance of internal audit work is not and should not be taken as a 
substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound 
management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities 
rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied 
upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to 
identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Auditors, in conducting their work, 
are required to have regards to the possibility of fraud or irregularities.  Even sound 
systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Internal audit procedures are 
designed to focus on areas as identified by management as being of greatest risk 
and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access to 
their accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our audit work and to 
ensure the authenticity of these documents.  Effective and timely implementation of 
our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a 
reliable internal control system.   

108



 
 
 
 
   

 
 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012 

Subject Accounts Audit Approach Memorandum 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Finance 
Officer 

Summary This report advises the Committee of Grant Thornton’s 
audit approach and provides an update on results of 
interim audit work to date 

 

 
Officer Contributors Maria G. Christofi – Assistant Director, Financial Services 

Catherine Peters – Head of Finance, Closing & Monitoring 

Status (public or 

exempt) 

Public 

Wards Affected Not applicable 

For decision by Audit Committee 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Appendix A – Grant Thornton’s Accounts Audit Approach 
Memorandum 
 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Antony Russell, Finance Manager Closing & Monitoring 
(020 8359 7862) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 10

109



1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That Grant Thornton’s Accounts Approach Memorandum be noted. 
 
1.2 That the Committee consider whether there are any areas on which they 

require additional information or action. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Grant Thornton’s Accounts Approach Memorandum for 2010/11 was noted at 

the Audit Committee of 16 June 2011. 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The audit approach memorandum provides additional detail regarding the 

audit approach, as set out in the Audit Plan 2011/12. The audit plan assesses 
fundamental aspects of financial standing and performance management in 
Barnet, which relates to the council’s ‘Better Services with Less Money’ 
corporate priority. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The audit approach memorandum provides an update on accounts audit risk 

assessment. If these risks are not taken into consideration it carries the risk of 
adverse financial and / or reputational consequences. 

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The audit approach memorandum covers the inspection and assessment of all 

services within the authority which, in turn, impact on all members of the 
community. 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 This report sets out the framework for the assessment of the Council’s 

financial reporting, management and standing, as well as value for money. 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 Constitution Part 3, Section 2 details the functions of the Audit Committee 

including “To consider the external auditor’s annual letter” and “To comment 
on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for 
money”. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Accounts Audit Approach Memorandum intends to provide additional 

detail regarding Grant Thornton’s audit approach, as set out in their Audit Plan 
2011/12, as well as an update on their response to key risks from the results 
of interim audit work carried out to date. 

110



 
9.2 Grant Thornton’s audit strategy comprises of: 

 
Planning: 

• Updating their understanding of the council through discussions with 
management and a review of in year internal financial reporting; 

• Identifying and resolving specific accounting treatment actions 
 
Controls Evaluation: 

• Reviewing the design, effectiveness and implementation of internal 
financial controls; 

• Assessing audit risk and developing and implementing an appropriate audit 
strategy; 

• Testing the operating effectiveness of selected controls; 

• Assessing the council’s arrangements for complying with tax legislation 
and Bribery Act requirements;  

• Assessing the effectiveness of internal audit 
 

Substantive Procedures: 

• Reviewing material disclosure issues in the financial statement; 

• Performing analytical review; 

• Verifying all material income and expenditure and balance sheet accounts 
 
Completion: 

• Performing overall evaluation of their work on the financial statements to 
determine whether they give a true and fair view; 

• Determining an audit opinion; 

• Reporting to the Audit Committee through their ISA 260 report and Annual 
Audit Letter 

 
9.3 Grant Thornton will consider an item to be material to the financial statements 

if, through its omission or non-disclosure, the financial statements would no 
longer show a true or fair view. 

 
9.4 Grant Thornton will work with internal audit to ensure the audit approach takes 

account of the risks identified and the work they have conducted, subject to 
our review of the effectiveness of internal audit. 

 
9.5 IT, outsourced systems and internal controls will also be reviewed as part of 

the audit. 
 
9.6 The Audit Approach Memorandum includes as part of its planning and control 

evaluation an update on audit risks identified for 2011/12, outcome of work 
completed to date and further work planned. 

 
9.7 As part of the interim audit, and in advance of the final accounts audit, Grant 

Thornton considered: 

• The effectiveness of internal audit 

• Internal audit’s work on the council’s key financial systems 

• Journal entry controls 

• Walkthrough testing to confirm whether controls are implemented as per 
their understanding in areas where they have identified significant 
accounting assertion risk 

• Review of information technology controls 
 

111



9.8 Grant Thornton have reviewed the work of internal audit and concluded that 
internal audit continues to provide an independent and effective service to the 
council and that they can take assurance from their work in contributing to an 
effective internal control environment at the council. 

 
9.9 No significant issues were noted where walkthrough testing was completed as 

planned and in-year internal controls were observed to have been 
implemented in accordance with Grant Thornton’s documented understanding. 

 
9.10 Grant Thornton’s information systems specialist has performed a high level 

review of the internal controls system. This has concluded that, from the work 
undertaken to date, there are no material weaknesses which are likely to 
adversely impact on the council’s financial statements. 

 
9.11 Grant Thornton have reviewed the council's journal entry policies and 

procedures as part of determining their journal entry testing strategy and have 
not identified any weaknesses which are likely to adversely impact on the 
Council's control environment or financial statements. To date they have 
undertaken detailed testing on journal transactions recorded for the first nine 
months of the financial year, by extracting 'unusual' entries for further review. 
No issues have been identified that require to be reported. 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) TE 

 
 

112



J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	

��
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

113



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

1

C
o

n
te

n
ts

��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��



�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
� 
�
��

!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�

��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�"
#$
�%
�
�
��
�
��
&

��

114



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

2

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��



$


��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


(��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�)
��
�
��
*�
�+
�(
��
��
��
 
�
���
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
,
��
��
��
��
��
�
��


�

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
� 
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

A
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 r

e
m

in
d

e
r

-
�
 
���
.

/
 
�
��
��
��
�
�,
� 
��


��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
�

 
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
���
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
,�

/
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
���
�
�'
��
�
��
��
��
��
0
��
��
��
��
�

�

��
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
(��
�
�
��
	�

��
��
�
�0
�
��
 
��


��
���

��
��
��
��
'�
�'
�
�

/
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
���
,�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
 


�
�

�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
� 


�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��

��
�
�
��
	�
�

$


�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
(�

��
��
	�

�
� 
��


��


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
1
��
�
��
��
2
3
��
��
��
��
�

4
�
'�
�
�(
�3
��
��
�
�1
��
�
��
��
�
(��
�
��
�
��
�
�
���
�

�
�
�
�
�
�5
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

/�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�

�
%
�
�
�
��
���


��
�
	

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
 
��


��
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
'
�
 
�

�
��
��
�,
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
	

/#
�
�
��
�,
��
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�'
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

P
la

n
n

in
g

/�
'
�
 
��
	�
�

�
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�
��
��
�
���
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
	�
#$
(�

 


�
�
�

,
���
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��

/�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
'
�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
���
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
	
,

/$
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

/�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
��
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�,
��
	�
 
��


��
�5
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
0
�
,�
�
��
�

�
7
�
��
�
�
��

/�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��
�
��
#�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

/�
'
�
 
��
	�
�
��
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
�
���
��
�
���
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��

/)
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
,�
��
��
��
'
�
 

/8
�
��
,�
�
	�
��
���
��
�
��
���
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
5�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�0
��
��
�
��



��
��
��
�
�
��
(��
��
��
	�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
� 


�


�
��
�
�
��
�
'�
�
�
�
���
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��


S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

v
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 

/)
�
��
��
��
	�
�
'
��
���
'
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
 


�


�
��


,
�

	�
'
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
'�
 

/1
�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

/�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��


�
�
�
�
��
�%
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
	

��
�
��
#4
�
��
9*
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

115



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

3

M
a

te
ri

a
li

ty
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�0
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�(
�

�

��
�
	

��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
2�
��
��
�
��
�
(�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
� 
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
	
��
�

�
 
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�'
�
 
�

�
��
�
��
���
,�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
'
���
��
��
�
��
� 
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��#
��
��
��


�
��
�
�
��


��
�
	

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
,�
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
,�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�

��
��
:
��
��

�
��
�
��
���
,�
 
���
�0
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

$


�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�'
��
�
��
�,
��
�
�
���
��
	
	�
	
��
(
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�,
�
�
�

��
�
(��
��
,�
�
��
	�

� 
��


��
�
,�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
;�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

��
�
�(
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�0
,�
,�
�
���
�,
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�(
��
�
�
��
��
��
	�

,�
�
��
'�
 
��


��
��


,
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
���
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
 
�'
��
�
�
�
�,
�0
�
�
�
��
��
�
,�
;�
�
	
�
��
�
�0
�
�
��
�
��
��
0
,�
��
��

�
��
�
�
(��
�
��
5
��
�
�
��
�
,�
��
�
��


��
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
6�

�
�
��
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
�
��
��


�	


�
�'
��
�
�
�
�,
�
7
�
��
�,
�0
�
;�
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��


�
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
-
�
 
�
��
� 
��


��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
'
�
 
��
�

,
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
'
��
��
��
��


�

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
(��
�
0
;
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
'�
 
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��

-


�
�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
���
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
 
�
� 
�
��
(��
��
�
�,
�0
�
�
�
��
�0
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
 
��


��


�
 
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
'�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�,
��
�
�
���
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
-


�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
��


��
� 
���
�0
�
��
�
��
��
��
�,
��
�
��
�
�
���
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
IT

 s
y
s

te
m

s
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
���
�
��
�
�
�
5�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�,
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
���
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
,�
�
��
�
��
��
��
	
��
�
�
0
�
��
�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�$


�
�
�
�,
�0
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
��
��
�
��
,�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
,�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
�
(��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
��
��
	�
,(
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��


��
7
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
 
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�


�
�
��
	
,�
"#
$
&�
�
'�
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
5�
�,
��
��
�

�
�
'
��
���
#$
�
�
'�
��
�
�
�
�(
�

 
�


�'
�
��
'�
�'
�
��
�
�
��
���
��
$
�


�
�
��
	
,�
�
��
��
4
�
'�
�
��
"$
�
4
&�
�
��
��
�
0
�
��

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
� 
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
 
��
��
�

�
�
'
��
���
#$
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
'�
��
�
�
�
��

In
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls
�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
7
�
��
�
�

��
� 
�
'
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�
��
�
��

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�,
��
�
��
��
��

 
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
���
��
��
��
�
�
��
�$


�
�
�
�
(� 
�
 
���
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
'�
 
��
�
��


�


�	


��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

#�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
 


�


�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�'
�
0

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
(� 
�

 
���
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
0
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
7
�
��
,�
��
�
��
0
�
�'
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�(
��
�
�
(�

 


�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
(
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
��
��


��
�
	

��
�-


�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�,
��
�,
�0
�
	�
��
�
(� 
�
 
���
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
,�
�
��
��
	�
��
,�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�

��
� 
�
�
�,
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�0
�
�
,�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

<
�
 
'
�
(��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
� 
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
0
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�,
��
���
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
2�
�
�
�
���
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
	
�
��
��
��
�
(��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�0
�
�

��
�
��
'
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
�
�
�
5�
�
��
'
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
 
�

5
�
��
�
��
�	


��
��
�
��
�,
�

$


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
� 
�
��
��
��
�0
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�	
�
!�

116



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

4

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

/
$


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
%
�
�
�
��
��

��
�0

�
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
7
�
��
�
��
,�
�

��
�
	�
� 
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

/
-
�


�'
�
�
'�
 
�
�7
�
��
�
��
,�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
�,
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
	�
�
��

/
-
�


�'
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
���
��
��
,�
 
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
��
�
���
 
2�
�
��
'
�
 
�

/
�
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
��


�
%
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�'
�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
	
��
(�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�*
��
+
��
�

0
�
�
	
��
��

A
ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

/
$


�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
 
���
�0
�
�
'�
 
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

/
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
��
'
�
 
� 
���
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��


�

0
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
(�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�

�

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
'
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
'
��
�

Is
s
u

e
A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 d
a
te

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e
d

#�
��
�
,�
��
�
��
��
�
��
���
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�	


��
0
�
 

�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
(� 
�
 
���
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
#4
�
�9
*�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
�
��


��
	
�
� 
��


�=
�
'
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
��
�
��
��
�
� 
�
��
� 
�


�'
�
�
'�
 
�
��


�

�
,�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
���
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�)
��
�
��
*�
�+
��
��
�
�
�

�'
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

$
�0
�
��
�0
�
�
 
��


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
� 
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

-
�
 
���
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
���
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$


�
�
�%


��
	
�
� 
��


�=
�
'
��
��
�
�"
#4
�
�

�9
*&
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

T
a
b

le
 1

. 
K

e
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s

117



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

5

/
$


�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�;
�
�
	
�
�
��
�

 
��
��
��
��
��
�
� 
��


�%
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

/
>
,
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�;
�
�
	
�
�
��
� 
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
�

��
��
�
�
�
)
��
�
�
�,
(�)
��
�
��
��
�
�?
7
�
��
�
�
��
")
)
?
&�
'�
��
��
��
�
�(
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
(��
�
�
��
��
'�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
0
��
��
0
��
�

/
#�
� 
��
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�;
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
*�
�+
��
��
7
�
��
�
�0
,�
�

�
%
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
��
��
�

A
ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

U
s
e
 o

f 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

s

&
 J

u
d

g
e
m

e
n

ts

/
�
���
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�;�
�
	
�
�
��
� 
���
�0
�

�
'�
 
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
	
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

/
$


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
,�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�;�
�
	
�
�
��
� 
���
�

��
��
�0
�
�
'�
 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
��


�
�
7
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�

�
%
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
��
��
�


�'
�
0

�
��
�
�

Is
s
u

e
A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 d
a
te

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e
d

/
$


�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
<
�
�
��
�
	�
�
'
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

"<
�
�
&�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
@�
�
��
�

��
*�
��
 
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

/
-
�


�'
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
�<
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
�*
�*
+
��
(��
�
�
�

�'
�
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��


�

��
��


�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
�

In
c
o

m
e
 a

n
d

e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 &

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g

H
R

A
 s

e
lf

fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 &

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n

e
fi

t

/
$


�
<
�
�
���
��
��
��
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�

��
�
��
�
��
 
���
�0
�
�
'�
 
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��$


��
�
�

�
��
�,
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
� 
���
�0
�
�
0
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
 
��
0
��

�

�
%
�
�
�
��
�� 
���
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
*�
�+
��
�

/
�
�
��
 
�
��
� 
���
��
��
'�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
��
�	
�

�
�
�
�
��
,�
��
�
�
�
��
(�
��
�
�

�	


�'
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��

��
'�
�'
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

/
-
�
�
'�
 
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
	
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�)
��
�
�
�,
�

4
�
'�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
� 


��


�

�	


��	


��
��


�
'�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
	
,�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
,�
�
�
��
��
�
��

/
-
�


�'
�
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
��
'
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��


��
�
��


�
�
��
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
�

N
o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

a
s
s
e
ts

 &

In
c
o

m
e
 a

n
d

e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t

a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

(P
P

E
)

/
-
�
 
���
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��


�
,
��
�

�'
�
0

�
��
�
��
�
��
,�

�
��
�
�
�
���
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�

/
-
�
 
���
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
'�
 
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
2
'�
��
��
��
�
��

/
-
�
 
���
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
�'
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
���
�
��


�'
�
0

�
��
�
��
�
��
,�
��
�
��
�
�

T
a
b

le
 1

. 
K

e
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

118



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

6

/
$


�
�
 
�%
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
��
��
�
�
7
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�,
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
 
��


�3
�
4
��
*�
 
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

 
��


�%
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
�

/
#�
��
��
��
��
��
�(
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�,
�

�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
(��
��
�
�

�

��
� 
���
�0
�
��
���
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
'�
�
�
�
�

N
o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

a
s
s
e
ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r

h
e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

/
-
�
 
���
��
'
�
 
��


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�


�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
 
�
���
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
7
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��

Is
s
u

e
A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 d
a
te

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e
d

/
$


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
� 
��


��
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
� 
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
� 
��


�%
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
�#
��
 
��
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
��
�

��
��
�
��
,�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�'
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�%
#)
3
�
��
�
� 


�


�
�

��
�
�
��


�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�0
�
��
��
�
�
�
�6�
�
20
��
��
�
�

�


�6�
��
�
� 


��


��


�
�
��
��
�
��

/
-
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�	
�
��
��
�
���
��
'�
���
0
�
(��


�

%
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
��
�
�
�,
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
���
,�
��
��
�
�

��
,�
�
�
��

��


�
�
��

N
o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

a
s
s
e
ts

 &

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r

s
c
h

o
o

ls

/
-
�
 
���
��
'
�
 
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

/
-
�
 
���
���
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
'
�
 
��
��
�

�

��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�0
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
��
�
��
�
�

��


�
�
��
�

T
a
b

le
 1

. 
K

e
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

/
-
�


�'
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
���
��
��
,�
 
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
,
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
 


��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
� 
��


��
��


�
�
�'
��
�
�

/
�
�
��
 
�
��
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
	�
��
�
5�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��

��
��
�,
��
�
��
��
��
��
*�
�+
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�

��
��
�
��


�
'�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
'�
�
�

/
$


��
��
�
��
,�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�'
��
�

�
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
�

In
c
o

m
e
 &

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

R
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

/
-
�
 
���
��
'
�
 
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
,
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

$


��
� 
���
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��

��
��
,�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

/
-
�
��
�
��
��
��
 
��
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
<
�
�
%
��
'
�
 
�

��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
,
�

��
5�
��
�
�
�

119



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

7

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
� 
�
��

S
c

o
p

e
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
� 
�
��
(��
�
�
��
�
��
�
'�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
(� 
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
.

•
�

�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��

•
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
6�
� 
�
��
��
�
��


�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
,
��
��
��
��
��
��
,�
�
�
�

•
;�
�
��
��
�
�
��
,�
��
�
��
�
��

•
 
��
��


��
�
	

��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
� 


�


�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
���
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
� 


�
�
 
�


�'
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

•
��
�
'�
 
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�


�
�
��
	,
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

In
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
-
�


�'
�
�
'�
 
�
���
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
6�
��
'
��
���
��
��
�
	
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
��


�
�*
*9
�

%
#)
3
�
�#
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�4
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
'
��
��(
� 
�


�'
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'�
�
�
��
���
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
��
�
'�
�
��
�
��


�

%
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
��


��
� 
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
 
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�0
�
��
�
	�
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
'
���
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
'�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��


�
%
�
�
�
��
���

$
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
��
�
��
�
�(
� 
�
�
'�
 
�
���
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
A�
� 
�
��
��
�
��


�

��
�
��
��
��
��
,�
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
'
�
 
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
�

�
 
���
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�#
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

 
�
��
(� 
�
�
'�
 
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
.

•
�,
��
�
��
 
�
�
��
7
�
��
�
,�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

•
�
,�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�'
�
0

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
'�
��
��
�
�

•
�
,�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�'
�
0

�
��
�
�
�
�

•
 
�
��
�
�
��


�'
�
0

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��

-
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
� 
��


�

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
6�
� 
�
��
��
�
�
(��
�
��
�
��
'�
 
(��


�
�
�
�
��


�
%
#)
3
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

C
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

-
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�%
�
�
�
��
�A�
��
��
�
�0
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
��
�
	
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
(��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
'�
�
�
��
�
� 
�
��
��
	�

�
��
�
��
�
7
�
��
�
��
�
�0
�
�
��
�
�'
��
��
0
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
��
�

$


�
%
�
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
�0
���


�
��
��
��
�
�0
�
��
�
��
��
0
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
�

��
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��
,�
��
��
�
'�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
���
�
�$


�
%
�
�
�
��
��
5
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
'�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
(� 


��


���
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
B�
�
�

�*
��
(��
��
 
�
���
��
�
��
'�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�=
�
'
��
��
�
�4
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

5
�
��
�
��
�
�,
��
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
��
�
'�
�
�
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

120



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

8

W
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
e

s
ti

n
g

-
��
��


��
�
	

��
�
��
� 
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
���
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
� 


��


� 
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��

-
�


�'
�
�
�
��
,
��
0

�
��
0
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
���
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
�,
(��
��
�
��
��
�
�
7
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
,
��
�
�
�
��$


��
� 
�
��
� 
���
�0
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�B
�
�
�
�*
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
��
��
 
���
�0
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��


�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
�

C
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
� 
�
�
�
�
�
�
� 


�
�
 
��
��


��
�
	

��
�
��
�
	�
 
��
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
���
2,
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�
�
�
0
�
�'
�
��
�
�

�'
�

0

�
���
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
� 
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
,�
�
�
��
��
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�	


��
'
�
��
'
�
 
��
��
�

�

	
�
�
��
�#
$
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
'�
��
�
�
�
�(
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
'
��
���
�
'�
 
��
��
�

�

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
,�
�
�
��
-
�


�'
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
���
 
��
�
��
��
�

�

��
��
�
��


��
�

�'
�
0

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
'�
�
�
��
,
��
��-

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
(��
��
�
�

�

�
 
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
(
��


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
 
�
��
�
�
��
 


��


��
�
�

���
�
,�
��
��
�
'
��
�
,�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��


�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

J
o

u
rn

a
l 

e
n

tr
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
-
�


�'
�
�
'�
 
�
��


�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
�;
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
,�
�
�
���
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
;�
�
��
��
�
�
��
,�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
	
,�
��
�
�

�'
�
�
�
��

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
,�
 
�
��
�
�
��
 


��


��
�
��
��
�
,�
��
��
�
'
��
�
,�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��


�

%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
'�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

$
�
��
��
�
 
�


�'
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�;
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�,
�
�(
�0
,�
5
��
��
��
�
	�

6�
�
�
��
��
6�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��


�
��
'
�
 
��C
�
��
��
�
�
�

�'
�
0

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��


��
�

�
7
�
��
�
��
�0
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

121



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

9

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 w

o
rk

$
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�*
��
+
��
(� 
�


�'
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�0
��
�
�

�
'�
 
��
��
��


�
��
���
 
��
	�
��
�
�.

/
8
�
$
�2
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
	
�
�
��
�

��
�0

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�,
� 


�


�
��


,
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�8
�
$
��
��

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
,�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
� 
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��$


��
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
,�
0
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

/
)
�
D
?
�2
�
�
��
)
�
D
?
��
�
�
�

�'
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
 
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
(�

��
�
��


�
��
'
��
	
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
<
�
�
%
��
'
�
 
��
��
�
�
��
,
�
��
5�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


��
��
��
'�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
'
��
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
�$


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
��


��
��
�
��
�(
�



�
 
'
�
� 
�
��
�
� 
��
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
<
�
�
%
��
'
�
 
���

/
3
��
�
�
��
2
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�'
�
�
'�
 
�
��


�
�
'
��
���
��
7
�
��
,�
�
��
�

�

%
�
�
�
��
�6�
��
��
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
��


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�	
�
�
��
�
��
'
�,
��$


��
��
��
��
��
�
��
,�
0
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

$


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

��
� 
�
��
� 
���
�0
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$


�
�
�%


��
	
�
� 
��


�=
�
'
��
��
�
�

"#
4
�
�9
*&
�

122



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

1
0

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

123



A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

1
1

�
���
�
	�
��
��
��

T
im

e
ta

b
le

s
 a

n
d

 m
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

$


�
��
���
 
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
���
�
�

�'
�
0

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
�

 
��


��
��
�	
�
�
�.

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
#�
��
��
�
��
��
�
� 
��


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�)
��
�
��
*�
�+
��
(��


�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
	
�
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
� 
���
���
��
�
�
.

	


�
�
�

�

��

)
�
�,
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
 

B�
�
��
*�
�

%
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
 
��
��
�
�



�
�
��
�
	�
0
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
	

B�
�
�
�*
��

4�
��
�
��
�,
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

��
��
�,
��
*�
�

%
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
��
��


��
�B
�
�
�
�*
��

?
�
	�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�'
��
��
��
�
��
'
�
 
� 
�
��

�*
�B
�
�,
��
*�
�

1
��
��
�#
4�
��
9*
��
�
�
��
��
�
�0
�
��
��
�
�0
,

�@
�B
�
�,
��
*�
�

%
�
��
��
�
��

��
�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�

��
�B
�
�,
��
*�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�%
�
�
�
��
�
�
"#
4�
��
9*
&

��
�4
�
��
�*
��

$


�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�0
,�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��
;
��
��
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��


��
� 
�
��
2�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�,
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
,�
��
��

��

,�
�
��
�
�
�
���
�
��#
��
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��


��
� 
�
 
�
��
��
��
�
�,
� 
��


�,
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
'
��


��
��
��
�
�0
�
���
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	
�
�
��
� 
���
�0
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
�
	

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

�

�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

)
��
��<
�
	

�

?
�
	�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�

$
.�*
�*
�!
!�
@�
��
E9

?
.��
��
��

�
	

�
F
�
��
	�
��
�
�

$


�
�
��
�3
�
��
�

%
��
�
��
4
�'
��
�
�
��
�	
�

$
.�*
!G
�*
�*
!�
9E
�

?
.��


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
F
�
��
	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�3
�
5

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�	
�

$
.�*
�*
�!
!�
@�
��
�G

?
.��
�
��
�
��
�
5F

�
��
	�
��
�
�

1
��
�
���
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�?
5
��
��
'

$
.�*
�*
�!
!�
@�
�*
�G

?
.��
��
�
���
��
�
�
F
�
��
	�
��
�
�

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
$


�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
� 
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
7
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
� 
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
,�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
,
��
2
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�'
�

0

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
� 
��


��
��
�
��
�
��
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�(
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�*
��
�

124



125



126

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012 

Subject Draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 

Report of Director of Corporate Governance 

Summary This report seeks approval of the proposed Draft Annual 
Governance Statement 2011/12 to be included in the annual 
account. 

 

Officer Contributors Maryellen Salter – Assistant Director Finance, Audit and Risk 
Management 

Jeff Lustig – Director of Corporate Governance 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix A – Annual Governance Statement 

For decision by Audit Committee 

Function of Council 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in (if 
appropriate) 

Not applicable 

Contact for further information:  Maryellen Salter – Assistant Director Finance, Audit and Risk 
Management – Tel: 020 8359 3167 or Jeff Lustig, Director of Corporate Governance -Tel: 020 
8359 2008 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 12

127



 

 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1 To comment upon and approve the proposed Draft Annual Governance 
Statement for inclusion with the Statement of Accounts for 2011/12. 

 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 

2.1 Audit Committee 5 December 2007 approved the arrangement for preparing 
an Annual Governance Statement. 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Annual Governance Statement is a public document that shows that the 

council recognises that there are areas for improvement; the Committee’s 
scrutiny of their progress supports the priorities in the 2011/14 Corporate Plan 
of delivering ‘better services with less money’ within which is the further aim 
‘to improve the effectiveness and transparency of decision making within the 
council’. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Council’s approach to the Annual Governance Statement is to have a 

‘live’ system whereby issues are identified and escalated to the appropriate 
level.  The Annual Governance Statement is a process of identifying 
governance issues and suggesting key actions to mitigate potential risks to 
the Council.  These are then monitored throughout the year until resolution. 

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Good governance arrangements are necessary to ensure that the council is 

meeting its equalities and diversity obligations and objectives.  
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 Sound corporate governance is at the heart of effective use of resources.  

Embedding the AGS framework within the business planning and 
performance management framework will ensure a robust corporate approach 
is maintained for the future. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1 The legal matters that are relevant to this report are referred to in paragraph 9 

of the report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include “to oversee the production of 

the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and to recommend its adoption”. 

128



 

 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1.  Background to the Annual Governance Statement 
 
9.1.1  Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (amended 2006) 

requires a local authority to conduct a review at least once a year of the 
effectiveness of its system of internal control and publish an Annual 
Governance Statement each year with the authority’s financial statements. 

 
9.1.2  Circular 03/206 issued by the Department for Communities and Local 

Government (DCLG) in August 2006 stated that proper practice in relation to 
internal control would include guidance in the “Corporate Governance in Local 
Government. A keystone for Community Governance (Framework and 
Guidance Note)” produced by CIPFA/SOLACE in 2001. The CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework was revised in 2007 and it is this Framework which requires 
authorities to produce an AGS rather than a SIC to meet the requirements of 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended). 

 
9.1.3  The CIPFA/SOLACE Framework is titled “Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government”. It sets out the following core principles of corporate 
governance. They are: 
1. Focussing on the purpose of the authority and outcomes for the community 

and creating and implementing a vision for the local area. 

2. Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles. 

3. Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. 

4. Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and managing risk. 

5. Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be 
effective. 

6. Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust 
accountability. 

 
9.1.4  In essence, the AGS is the formal statement that recognises, records and 

publishes the Authority’s governance arrangements as defined in the 
framework. 

 
9.2.  Content of the AGS 
 
9.2.1  The AGS should incorporate a review to ensure that the council has effective 

governance, risk management and internal control processes in place. 
Actions being taken or required to be taken should be identified. 

 
9.2.2  The best practice framework provides guidance on what the AGS should 

contain including: 

129



 

 

• Responsibilities for ensuring there is a sound system of governance 
(incorporating the system of internal control). 

• Indication of the level of assurance that the systems and processes that form 
the governance arrangements can provide. 

• Brief description of the key elements of the systems and processes that 
have been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the 
governance arrangements. 

• An outline of the actions taken, or proposed to deal with significant 
governance issues, including an agreed action plan. 

 
9.2.3 The purpose of the AGS is to report on the Council’s governance 

arrangements and covers all systems processes and controls, spanning the 
whole range of its activities. 

 
9.3.  Process 
 
9.3.1  The Framework requires the AGS to be reviewed at least once a year. The 

AGS document is required to be included in the annual statement of accounts. 
The statutory reporting requirement for the AGS, however, is linked to the 
publication of the Authority’s statement of accounts which is 3 months after 
the deadline for approval (i.e. end of September 2012). 

 
9.3.2  Part of the review process includes this reporting to the Audit Committee, 

which is responsible for assessing that the arrangements in this respect are 
effective to determine if their work during the year has identified issues of 
significant weakness. 

 
9.3.3  If the Committee approves the AGS, it will be incorporated into the statement 

of accounts for 2011/12 which is considered later on the Agenda.  The 
Council’s External Auditors will comment on the robustness of the AGS when 
carrying out the external audit of the 2010/11 accounts. Those comments will 
be reported to the Committee at its meeting in September 2012 in order to 
enable the Committee to take those comments into account before the 
statutory reporting deadline of 30 September 2012. 

 
9.3.4  The draft AGS for 2011/12 is attached at Appendix A.  Further work following 

upon the review may result in updating of the position and some changes to 
the content of the AGS when the matter next comes before the Audit 
Committee in September 2012. 

 
10.  LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 CIPFA/SOLACE - Delivering Good Governance in Local Governance 

Framework. Available at: 
http://www.cipfa.org.uk/panels/corporate_governance/good_gov_briefing.cfm 

 
 
10.2  Any person who cannot view the background papers should telephone 

Maryellen Salter – Assistant Director Finance, Audit and Risk Management - 

130



 

 

Telephone: 020 8359 3167 or  Jeff Lustig, Director of Corporate Governance 
– Telephone: 020 8359 2008. 

 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) JEL 

 
 
 

131



132

This page is intentionally left blank



A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
2
0
1
1
-1
2

1
.
S
c
o
p
e
o
f
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y

•
B
a
rn
e
t
L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
C
o
u
n
c
il
is
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
th
a
t
it
s
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
is
c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
in

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
w
it
h
th
e
la
w
a
n
d
p
ro
p
e
r
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
,
a
n
d
th
a
t
p
u
b
lic

m
o
n
e
y
is
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
e
d
,
p
ro
p
e
rl
y

a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
fo
r,
a
n
d
u
s
e
d
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
lly
,
e
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
a
n
d
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
a
ls
o
h
a
s
a
d
u
ty

u
n
d
e
r
th
e

L
o
c
a
l
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
A
c
t
1
9
9
9

to
m
a
k
e

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

to
s
e
c
u
re

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t
in

th
e
w
a
y
in

w
h
ic
h
it
s
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
a
re

e
x
e
rc
is
e
d
,
h
a
v
in
g
re
g
a
rd

to
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
,

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
a
n
d
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
.

•
In

d
is
c
h
a
rg
in
g
th
is

o
v
e
ra
ll
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty

th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
is

a
ls
o
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

fo
r
p
u
tt
in
g
in

p
la
c
e

p
ro
p
e
r
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

fo
r
th
e
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
o
f
it
s
a
ff
a
ir
s
a
n
d
fa
c
ili
ta
ti
n
g
th
e
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
e
x
e
rc
is
e
o
f

it
s
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
in
c
lu
d
in
g
th
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
ri
s
k
.

•
B
a
rn
e
t
L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
C
o
u
n
c
il
h
a
s
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
a
n
d
a
d
o
p
te
d
a
c
o
d
e
o
f
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
,

w
h
ic
h
is

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t
w
it
h
th
e
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
o
f
th
e
C
IP
F
A
/S
O
L
A
C
E

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
G
o
o
d

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
in
L
o
c
a
l
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.

T
h
is
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t
e
x
p
la
in
s
h
o
w
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
h
a
s
c
o
m
p
lie
d
w
it
h

th
e
c
o
d
e
a
n
d
a
ls
o
m
e
e
ts

th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

o
f
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
4
[2
]
o
f
th
e
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

a
n
d
A
u
d
it

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
3
a
s
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
b
y
th
e
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

a
n
d
A
u
d
it
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
6
in

re
la
ti
o
n
to

th
e

p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
o
f
a
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t
o
f
in
te
rn
a
l
c
o
n
tr
o
l.

•
T
h
e
D
ir
e
c
to
r
o
f
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
h
is
b
ie
n
n
ia
l
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
C
o
d
e
o
f
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
d
u
ri
n
g
2
0
1
0
-1
1
.
T
h
e
C
o
d
e
o
f
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
is
in
c
lu
d
e
d
w
it
h
in

P
a
rt
5
o
f

th
e
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
.

133



2
.
T
h
e
P
u
rp
o
s
e
o
f
th
e
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

•
T
h
e
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk

e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
e
s
th
e
s
y
s
te
m
s
a
n
d
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
,
c
u
lt
u
re

a
n
d
v
a
lu
e
s
,
b
y

w
h
ic
h
th
e
a
u
th
o
ri
ty

is
d
ir
e
c
te
d
a
n
d
c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
a
n
d
it
s
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
th
ro
u
g
h
w
h
ic
h
it
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

to
,

e
n
g
a
g
e
s
w
it
h
a
n
d
le
a
d
s
th
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.
It
e
n
a
b
le
s
th
e
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
to

m
o
n
it
o
r
th
e
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
it
s

s
tr
a
te
g
ic

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

a
n
d

to
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
w
h
e
th
e
r
th
o
s
e

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

h
a
v
e

le
d

to
th
e

d
e
liv
e
ry

o
f

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
,
c
o
s
t-
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

•
T
h
e
s
y
s
te
m

o
f
in
te
rn
a
l
c
o
n
tr
o
l
is
a
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
p
a
rt
o
f
th
a
t
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk

a
n
d
is
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
to

m
a
n
a
g
e

ri
s
k
to

a
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

le
v
e
l.

It
c
a
n
n
o
t
e
lim

in
a
te

a
ll
ri
s
k
o
f
fa
ilu
re

to
a
c
h
ie
v
e
p
o
lic
ie
s
,
a
im
s
a
n
d

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

a
n
d

c
a
n

th
e
re
fo
re

o
n
ly

p
ro
v
id
e

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

a
n
d

n
o
t
a
b
s
o
lu
te

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e

o
f

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
.
T
h
e
s
y
s
te
m
o
f
in
te
rn
a
l
c
o
n
tr
o
l
is
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
a
n
o
n
g
o
in
g
p
ro
c
e
s
s
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
to
id
e
n
ti
fy

a
n
d

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e

th
e

ri
s
k
s

to
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
L
o
n
d
o
n

B
o
ro
u
g
h

o
f
B
a
rn
e
t
p
o
lic
ie
s
,
a
im
s

a
n
d

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
,
to

e
v
a
lu
a
te

th
e
lik
e
lih
o
o
d
o
f
th
o
s
e
ri
s
k
s
b
e
in
g
re
a
lis
e
d
a
n
d
th
e
im
p
a
c
t
s
h
o
u
ld
th
e
y
b
e

re
a
lis
e
d
,
a
n
d
to
m
a
n
a
g
e
th
e
m
e
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
,
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
a
n
d
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
lly
.

•
T
h
e
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk

h
a
s
b
e
e
n
in
p
la
c
e
w
it
h
in
B
a
rn
e
t
L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
C
o
u
n
c
il
fo
r
th
e
y
e
a
r

e
n
d
e
d
3
1
s
t
M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2
a
n
d
u
p
to
th
e
d
a
te
o
f
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l
o
f
th
e
a
n
n
u
a
l
re
p
o
rt
a
n
d
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
.

134



A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
y
c

le

P
la
n

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d

D
o

R
e
v
ie
w

W
h
a
t 
a
re

 w
e
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 o

n
?

�
D

e
liv

e
ry

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n
 w

h
ils

t 
o
b
s
e
rv

in
g
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

�
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s

�
D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

�
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 l
a
w

s
, 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
in

te
rn

a
l 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s

�
K

e
y
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t
o
o
ls

 
a
re

 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 
fo

r 
e
.g

..
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

�
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y

�
D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

is
s
u
e
s

W
h
a
t 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

d
o
 w

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
?

�
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

P
la

n

�
C

A
F

T
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

la
n

�
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

P
la

n

�
O

fs
te

d
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

�
O

th
e
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s

�
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s

�
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

H
o
w

 w
e
 w

ill
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
 

o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
?

O
ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r

�
S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

s
 c

lo
s
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 R

o
le

s

�
D

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 b

o
d
ie

s

�
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

G
ro

u
p

�
C

a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e

�
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s

�
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

�
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

/D
e
liv

e
ry

 
B

o
a
rd

s

�
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

�
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

(C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
)

H
o
w

 w
e
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
?

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

h
a
s
e

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
 

th
a
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
s
ig

h
t 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
: 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
a
u
d
it
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

, 
ta

s
k
 a

n
d
 f
in

is
h
 

g
ro

u
p
s

�
E

n
s
u
re

 s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
ir
 

p
la

n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
q
u
a
lit

y

�
In

te
rn

a
l 
a
n
d
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

s
/L

e
tt
e
rs

�
H

ig
h
lig

h
t 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s

A
n
n
u
a
l

G
o
v
e
r
n
a
n
c
e

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

135



3
. 

T
h

e
 G

o
v
e

r
n

a
n

c
e

 F
r
a

m
e

w
o

r
k

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
ix
 c
o
re
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
IP
F
A
/S
O
L
A
C
E
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
, 
w
it
h
in
 e
a
c
h
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
.

136



P
ri
n
c
ip
le

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

1
. 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 

V
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e

•
M
e
m
b
e
rs
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
, 
h
a
v
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
 c
le
a
r 
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
it
iz
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
:

•
T
h
e
 O
n
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
tr
a
te
g
y 
s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 t
e
n
 y
e
a
r 

v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h

•
O
n
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
s
 t
h
e
 

o
th
e
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 b
o
a
rd
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
a
s
k
e
d
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 in
 t
h
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y

•
T
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

th
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs

•
D
e
liv
e
ry
 B
o
a
rd
s
: 
S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 B
o
a
rd
, 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
, 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 W
e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 a
re
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
h
e
m
e
s

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
u
s
e
s
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 (
q
u
a
lit
y,
 o
u
tp
u
ts
, 
v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y,
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
) 
to
 g
iv
e
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
ti
m
u
la
te
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

•
A
 n
e
w
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
ro
u
n
d
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
s
 

w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
.

•
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 –

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 is
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y 
a
g
a
in
s
t 

th
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
a
ll 
in
 b
y 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s

•
E
x
te
rn
a
lly
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 d
a
ta
: 
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

S
in
g
le
 D
a
ta
 L
is
t,
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

L
G
G
 I
n
fo
rm
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g

•
W
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
a
ta
 o
n
lin
e
 

to
 e
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 u
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t

•
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 

th
e
ir
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t

•
E
m
p
lo
ye
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 H
a
lf
-y
e
a
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

•
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2

137



P
ri
n
c
ip
le

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

2
. 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

a
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

w
it
h
 c
le
a
rl
y
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
o
le
s

•
E
le
c
te
d
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

s
e
p
a
ra
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
c
t 
2
0
0
0
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
s
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

c
la
ri
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
D
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
.

•
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 (
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
a
id
 S
e
rv
ic
e
) 
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 in
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

th
e
m
e
s
.

•
R
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
(s
.1
5
1
 o
ff
ic
e
r)
, 
a
s
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 in
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
h
a
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

o
n
 a
ll 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
m
a
tt
e
rs
, 
fo
r 
k
e
e
p
in
g
 p
ro
p
e
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
, 

a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
ys
te
m
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l

•
T
h
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
, 
in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
is
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
re
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 s
ta
tu
te
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
.

•
F
o
rm
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 r
u
le
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
: 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
D
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
, 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
, 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 R
u
le
s

•
T
h
e
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 R
e
v
ie
w
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 

a
g
re
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 f
u
ll 
c
o
u
n
c
il.

•
P
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 P
a
y 
P
o
lic
y 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
8
 (
1
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
h
o
s
e
 r
e
m
it
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
p
a
y 
a
n
d
 p
a
y 
p
o
lic
y

•
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
o
s
e
 r
e
m
it
 i
t 
is
 t
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts

•
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 e
x
is
t 
w
it
h
in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 

v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y.
  
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 is
 c
o
lla
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y 

a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.

•
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l a
n
d
 k
e
y 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ys
te
m
s
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
lim
it
e
d
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
s
ys
te
m
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l

•
M
o
n
th
ly
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e

•
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y 
b
a
s
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y

W
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
:

•C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t/
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e

•D
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y

•D
a
ta
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n

•P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s

138



P
ri
n
c
ip
le

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

3
. 
V
a
lu
e
s
 o
f 
G
o
o
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 

B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
g
o
o
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rp
in
n
e
d
 b
y 
s
h
a
re
d
 

v
a
lu
e
s
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 in
 t
h
e
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
 o
f 
it
s
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
.

•
O
n
 o
n
lin
e
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y 
a
s
s
is
te
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 d
e
c
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
r 
c
o
re
 v
a
lu
e
s
 o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
e
re
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
1
. 
T
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 s
h
a
p
e
 

th
e
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 d
e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 n
o
w
 a
n
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu
re
. 
T
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
s
 a
re
 p
o
s
it
io
n
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 c
o
re
 o
f 
a
ll 
w
e
 d
o
, 
g
u
id
in
g
 o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
in
g
 o
u
r 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.

•
T
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
c
ts
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n

•
D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
re
 

p
ro
p
e
rl
y 
m
a
d
e
 w
it
h
in
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
D
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n

•
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 o
f 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 e
x
is
t 

a
n
d
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

ye
a
r 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
o
o
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

•
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
 o
f 

in
te
re
s
t

•
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
m
b
e
d
 v
a
lu
e
s
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ff

•
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
a
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 

•
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 v
a
lu
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 

p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
o
d
ie
s
.

•
T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
ts
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 e
q
u
a
lit
y 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 ‘
o
u
r 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
is
 t
h
a
t 
c
it
iz
e
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
re
a
te
d
 e
q
u
a
lly
, 
w
it
h
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
e
c
t,
 h
a
v
e
 e
q
u
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
c
it
iz
e
n
s
; 
a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 q
u
a
lit
y 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 B
e
s
t 
V
a
lu
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
’.
 T
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
re
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 a
c
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 :
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 

d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
c
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 o
u
r 
v
a
lu
e
s
.

•
V
a
lu
e
s
 A
w
a
rd
s
 N
o
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
n
e
l 
m
a
d
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
n
 w
h
o
 e
m
b
o
d
ie
d
 t
h
e
 V
a
lu
e
s
 

A
w
a
rd
s

•
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
G
ro
u
p

•
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
in
u
te
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s

•
M
in
u
te
s
 a
n
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 

o
b
s
e
rv
e
d
 b
y 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
/D
e
p
u
ty
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

O
ff
ic
e
r

•
H
a
lf
-y
e
a
rl
y 
a
n
d
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

R
A
G
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
, 
e
x
p
lic
it
ly
 l
in
k
in
g
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

•
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

fo
r 
th
e
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
, 
th
is
 w
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
le
g
a
l 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e

•
M
e
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
k
ill
 

a
n
d
 c
a
p
a
b
ili
ty
 i
s
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
.

139



P
ri
n
c
ip
le

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

4
. 
M
a
k
in
g
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
rs
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 

d
u
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
e
re
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 h
a
v
in
g
 r
e
g
a
rd
 

to
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

•
T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 p
o
lic
y 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 ‘
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
fr
ie
n
d
’ 
to
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 
T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y 

T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y 
P
a
n
e
ls
, 
w
h
o
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
 5
 e
le
c
te
d
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

w
h
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 in
-d
e
p
th
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
p
o
lic
y 
o
r 
is
s
u
e
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

•
D
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 r
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y 
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 b
y 
th
e
 A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.

•
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 e
x
is
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 m
a
jo
r 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
/p
ro
v
id
e
rs
.

•
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R
is
k
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y 
b
y 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
, 

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
y 
to
 d
a
y 
ri
s
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
x
is
ts
 

a
t 
a
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
w
it
h
 l
e
a
d
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
tr
ig
g
e
r 
p
o
in
ts
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y 
a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a
re
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
 o
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
. 
T
h
e
ir
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 L
e
tt
e
r 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 c
o
m
p
ly
in
g
 w
it
h
 m
in
im
u
m
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
n
 d
a
ta
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y,
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 w
h
ic
h
 a
im
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 f
u
tu
re
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 

m
o
re
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 le
d
 i
n
 p
u
b
lis
h
in
g
 d
a
ta
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
.

•
O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 5
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 

F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
s

-
E
a
rl
y 
In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n

-
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

-
C
a
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t

-
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

In
te
g
ra
ti
o
n

•
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
m
o
n
th
ly
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g

•
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
/B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 R
e
p
o
rt

•
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 L
e
tt
e
r 

2
0
1
0
-1
1

140



P
ri
n
c
ip
le

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

4
. 
M
a
k
in
g
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

(c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
)

•
A
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
o
s
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 i
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
c
y 
o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 T
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 is
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y 
a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
n
 

o
p
p
o
s
it
io
n
 p
a
rt
y 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 t
w
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
.

•
T
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 i
ts
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

•
T
h
e
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
p
e
ra
te
s
 in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 
In
te
rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 o
n
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 ‘
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
u
d
it
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
’ 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
r 
in
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
ff
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 p
la
n
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 r
e
g
is
te
rs
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 m
a
k
e
s
 it
 c
le
a
r 
th
a
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
 s
o
u
n
d
 s
ys
te
m
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l.
  
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 w
o
rk
s
 

w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.

•
T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
n
ti
 F
ra
u
d
 T
e
a
m
 (
C
A
F
T
) 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
 C
A
F
T
 f
u
lf
ils
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 f
u
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
ys
te
m
 o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

d
e
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fr
a
u
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 z
e
ro
 t
o
le
ra
n
c
e
 t
o
 f
ra
u
d
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ty
.

•
T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
A
F
T
 i
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 W
h
is
tl
e
 b
lo
w
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 b
y 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
, 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 o
r 
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 b
y 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 C
o
u
n
te
r 
F
ra
u
d
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 in
 p
la
c
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
te
c
t 
fr
a
u
d
.

•
T
h
e
 s
ys
te
m
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
is
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 o
f 
re
g
u
la
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 a
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
d
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
. 
T
h
e
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y 
is
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 
th
e
 M
T
F
S
 i
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
 b
y 
F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il.

•
W
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
th
e
 C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
a
s
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y 
a
u
d
it
e
d
 b
y 

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 l
im
it
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
o
m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T
h
e
 O
ft
s
e
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
ls
o
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 f
ro
m
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
n
d
 a
n
y 
tr
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

b
o
a
rd
.

•
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
1
-

1
2

•
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
o
rk
p
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm
s
 

o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 s
ti
p
u
la
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 w
a
y 
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 i
s
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d

•
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
n
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

•
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

•
C
A
F
T
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

•
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

•
R
IP
A
 –
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
O
ff
ic
e
 

S
u
rv
e
ill
a
n
c
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l

•
F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
ri
s
k
s
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 

b
a
s
is

•
O
fs
te
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 r
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 

G
o
o
d
 f
o
r 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 L
o
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 
C
h
ild
re
n

•
M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y 
a
n
d
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

W
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
:

•C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

141



P
ri
n
c
ip
le

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

5
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y 
o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
in
g
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 d
ir
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
ta
ff
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
a
s
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 i
n
to
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 m
e
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

tr
a
in
in
g
, 
e
-l
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
th
o
d
s
.

•
M
e
m
b
e
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
ro
le
s
 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 g
o
o
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
n
ti
 F
ra
u
d
, 
A
u
d
it
/p
ro
b
it
y,
 C
o
d
e
 

o
f 
C
o
n
d
u
c
t 
fo
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 &
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
s
e
tt
in
g
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
n
 E
m
p
lo
ye
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y 
to
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 
E
m
p
lo
ye
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
lf
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

a
n
d
 a
re
 r
a
te
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 R
A
G
G
 (
re
d
, 
a
m
b
e
r,
 g
re
e
n
 a
n
d
 g
o
ld
) 
m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 v
a
lu
e
 s
e
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

re
v
ie
w
s
.

•
A
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 w
a
s
 m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
d
 a
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 in
 p
la
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
th
a
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
n
d
u
c
t.
  
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
re
 

w
e
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 n
o
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r.

•
F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 M
a
y 
2
0
1
2
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
, 
in
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
ill
 l
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 g
ro
u
p
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
y 
c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
a
n
d
 a
n
y 

s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
ft
e
r.

•
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
a
ti
n
g
 g
iv
e
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 c
a
rr
yi
n
g
 o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 

w
o
rk
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

•
M
e
m
b
e
r 
ro
le
 P
ro
fi
le
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 r
o
le
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
s
ys
te
m
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

•
A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s

•
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s

142



P
ri
n
c
ip
le

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d

6
. 
E
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fe
e
ls
 i
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
, 
in
v
o
lv
e
 a
n
d
 l
is
te
n
 t
o
 o
u
r 

c
it
iz
e
n
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 
T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 a
ls
o
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 p
u
b
lis
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
o
u
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
in
g
 h
o
w
 w
e
 w
ill
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

•
A
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
u
b
 ‘
B
a
rn
e
t 
C
it
iz
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
’ 
w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
th
is
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 ‘
W
e
 

A
s
k
e
d
, 
Y
o
u
 S
a
id
, 
W
e
 D
id
’ 
fe
e
d
in
g
 b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s

•
W
e
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 d
ia
lo
g
u
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 v
ia
 C
o
m
m
U
n
it
y 
B
a
rn
e
t,
 t
h
e
 u
m
b
re
lla
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 v
ia
 o
u
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y 

th
e
m
e
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 B
re
a
k
fa
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 B
a
rn
e
t 
C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 P
a
n
e
l,
 t
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
is
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
lly
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t,
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
in
g
 h
o
w
 B
a
rn
e
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 f
e
e
l 
o
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
 I
t 
a
ls
o
 a
c
ts
 a
 s
o
u
n
d
in
g
-b
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
.

•
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
ls
o
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 t
h
e
 ‘
id
e
a
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
’ 
w
h
ic
h
 a
s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

•
T
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 w
a
s
 r
e
-l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ts
 i
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 p
u
b
lic
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
.

•
P
le
d
g
e
 b
a
n
k
 is
 a
ls
o
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
w
a
y 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 i
n
te
ra
c
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
‘n
e
w
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
’ 
th
is
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
 b
y 
m
a
k
in
g
 p
a
rt
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y.

•
In
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 a
 R
e
s
id
e
n
t’
s
 

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y 
w
it
h
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 

T
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y 
a
s
k
e
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
lif
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a

•
P
u
b
lic
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 r
u
le
s
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 g
u
id
in
g
 

p
u
b
lic
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
 

•
W
a
rd
 W
a
lk
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
to
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
, 
fo
c
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 k
e
y 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 w
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 in
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

th
e
 ‘
P
la
c
e
’.

•
L
o
c
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
–
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

w
a
s
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 t
o
 d
a
te
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts

•
C
it
iz
e
n
s
 P
a
n
e
l 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 –
h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s

•
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 –
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 B
u
d
g
e
t.
 P
ro
v
id
in
g
 i
n
s
ig
h
t 

fr
o
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
k
e
y 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
.

•
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
t's
 f
o
ru
m
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
a
 s
u
b
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1

•
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y,
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
1

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv
e
y 
in
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

s
c
o
re
s
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
ly
 p
o
o
rl
y 
o
n

w
h
e
th
e
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 f
e
e
l 
in
v
o
lv
e
d

a
n
d
 a
b
le
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 l
o
c
a
l

d
e
c
is
io
n
s

143



4
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
, 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
n
n
u
a
lly
, 
a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

it
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l.
 T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
s
 

in
fo
rm

e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
, 
a
n
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to
ra
te
s
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
ts
 g
ro
u
p
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 (
T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
) 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
.

•
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
v
e
ra
ll,
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 
th
a
t 
o
n
ly
 l
im
it
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
in
 

p
la
c
e
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
A
re
a
s
 o
f 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

n
o
te
d
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
.

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
it
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
n
fo
rm

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 C
IP
F
A
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 R
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
(2
0
1
0
) 
a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 N
o
te
 t
o
 D
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 G
o
o
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t:
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
.

•
A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
re
a
s
 w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 

h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 o
u
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 W

h
e
re
 

th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 o
u
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
-1
2
.

144



C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
0
-1
1
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 m
a
d
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
s
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
:

C
O
N
F
ID

E
N
T
IA
L

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
o
s
it
io
n

C
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
1
-1
2

A
n
 o
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y 
to
 p
u
ll 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
, 
d
a
ta
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

D
ir
e
c
to
r

T
h
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y 
w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
.

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t/
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
–
w
o
rk
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
n
 

a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
c
e
n
tr
a
lly
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 r
u
le
s
 (
C
P
R
).
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

D
ir
e
c
to
r

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
lly
 h
e
ld
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t’
s
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
is
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
. 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 n
o
w
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 g
o
o
d
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
p
ri
l 
a
u
d
it
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
lo
s
e
d
 b
y 
e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
ly
. 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 –

L
im
it
e
d
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
2
, 
c
a
rr
y 
fo
rw
a
rd
 

to
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
.

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 –

p
ro

g
re

s
s

145



C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l

C
O
N
F
ID

E
N
T
IA
L

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
o
s
it
io
n

C
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
1
-1
2

D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
lit
y 
–
a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
ir
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
lia
b
le
, 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
, 

ti
m
e
ly
, 
c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 v
a
lid
 d
a
ta
, 
in
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 t
o
 p
e
rf
o
rm
 ‘s
p
o
t 

c
h
e
c
k
s
’o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
.

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

E
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
 D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
lit
y 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 D
Q
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 e
v
e
n
t 
in
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1
, 
a
n
d
 a
re
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 G
ro
u
p
, 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
, 
s
ta
tu
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

q
u
a
lit
y.
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 g
a
v
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y 
o
f 
th
e
 

H
R
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
d
a
ta
.
K
e
y 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 w
e
re
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
s
ig
n
-o
ff
, 
a
n
d
 e
rr
o
rs
/d
is
c
re
p
a
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 d
a
ta
.
H
R
 w
ill
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
.

N
e
w
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y 
p
o
lic
y 
w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 b
y 
th
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 

p
o
lic
y 
fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y 
h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
d
a
ta
 

q
u
a
lit
y 
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
th
e
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 d
a
ta
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 
th
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 in
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 i
n
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
ro
le
s
.

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 –

lim
it
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

o
n
 H
R
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
, 
c
a
rr
y 

fo
rw
a
rd
 t
o
 2
0
1
2
-1
3

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 –

p
ro

g
re

s
s

146



C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l

C
O
N
F
ID

E
N
T
IA
L

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
o
s
it
io
n

C
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
1
-1
2

O
v
e
rs
ig
h
t 
o
f 
d
e
v
o
lv
e
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 –
w
o
rk
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
t 
a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 b
e
lo
w
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 ‘
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 

g
ra
d
e
’.

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

A
n
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 

A
ll 
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
d
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 y
e
a
r 
to
 

b
e
 c
le
a
r 
a
ro
u
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
b
e
 r
e
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
t 

re
m
a
in
s
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

M
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 –
w
o
rk
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y 
to
 b
e
tt
e
r 
jo
in
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 a
re
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
e
ri
o
d
 a
n
d
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 p
la
n
s
.

A
ll 
D
ir
e
c
to
rs

T
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

o
w
n
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1
. 
T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
a
t 

m
a
p
p
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

to
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
o
lid
a
te
d
 w
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
 T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

a
ls
o
 g
a
v
e
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a
ll 
o
f 
o
u
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
y 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
.

C
o
m
p
le
te

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 –

p
ro

g
re

s
s

147



C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l

C
O
N
F
ID

E
N
T
IA
L

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
o
s
it
io
n

C
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1
2

D
a
ta
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 –
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 

la
rg
e
 s
c
a
le
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 

b
y 
th
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ts
 

o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 

m
a
jo
r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 t
h
e
 

fo
c
u
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
a
p
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

U
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 ’
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 g
ro
u
p
’ 
m
o
d
e
l 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
’ 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
 I
M
S
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 r
o
lli
n
g
 o
u
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 p
la
yi
n
g
 

a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
ro
le
 i
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 b
y 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
c
a
rr
yi
n
g
 o
u
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
u
d
it
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 I
M
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
v
e
ra
g
in
g
 ‘
lo
c
a
l’ 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
 in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
. 
A
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 e
ff
o
rt
s
 a
re
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 I
M
S
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 a
ll 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 M
g
m
t 

a
n
d
 S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
e
m
 v
ia
 f
ir
s
t 

te
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r.
 

In
 J
u
n
e
 a
n
 e
-l
e
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
o
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
e
s
t 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
lic
e
s
, 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
h
a
n
d
lin
g
 p
o
lic
y 
is
 o
n
e
. 
R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

w
ill
 i
n
it
ia
lly
 b
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 I
M
S
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 w
ill
 a
g
a
in
 p
la
y 
a
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 

ro
le
 i
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
is
in
g
/t
a
ilo
ri
n
g
 a
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 

is
s
u
e
s
.

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

–
L
im
it
e
d
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e

Is
s
u
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

ye
a
r,
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
o
m
 N
o
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 in
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r.

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 –

p
ro

g
re

s
s

148



C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l

C
O
N
F
ID

E
N
T
IA
L

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 

O
ff
ic
e
r

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
o
s
it
io
n

C
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1
2

IT
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit
y 
–
a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
v
is
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 I
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
o
rk
 a
ro
u
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 

s
o
m
e
 I
T
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

D
ir
e
c
to
r

T
h
e
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
A
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 B
o
a
rd
 (
IA
B
) 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 I
S
 P
ro
je
c
t 
G
a
te
w
a
y 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 T
h
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 a
ll 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
IT
 

im
p
a
c
t 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l.
 I
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
, 
th
e
 I
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
, 
w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 a
ll 
IT
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
IT
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
th
e
 P
ri
n
c
e
2
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
.

C
o
m
p
le
te
.

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 –
w
o
rk
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y 
to
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 b
y 
a
g
re
e
in
g
 m
u
tu
a
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
, 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 f
o
rm
in
g
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
it
 w
it
h
in
 k
e
y 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
. 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
.

N
e
w
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
2
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
fo
r 
2
4
 M
a
y 
2
0
1
2
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
.

W
o
rk
 is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 

B
ill
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 a
ff
e
c
t 
o
u
r 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
lly
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 F
o
ru
m
s
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 P
la
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 B
ill
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
o
ya
l
A
s
s
e
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 u
n
ti
l 
la
te
 2
0
1
1
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 in
 2
0
1
2
.

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

A
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 P
ro
je
c
t 
B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
rm
e
d
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
, 
th
e
 m
a
in
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 in
 2
0
1
2
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
O
n
-g
o
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 A
c
t.

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
n
o
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 –

p
ro

g
re

s
s

149



C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l

C
O
N
F
ID

E
N
T
IA
L

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 

O
ff
ic
e
r

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
o
s
it
io
n

C
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1
2

A
s
 t
h
e
 O
n
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
s
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 a
 w
a
y 
th
a
t 
c
le
a
rl
y 
d
e
fi
n
e
s
 r
o
le
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 g
o
o
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y 
in
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
. 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/D
e

p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

A
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 b
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

fo
rm
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
fi
n
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
 S
e
n
io
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 w
ill
 r
e
m
a
in
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 u
n
ti
l 
g
o
-l
iv
e
 

d
a
te
 o
f 
th
e
 m
a
jo
r 
o
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 (
N
S
C
S
O
) 
a
n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
D
R
S
).

W
o
rk
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 u
n
ti
l 
g
o
-

liv
e
 d
a
te

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 –

p
ro

g
re

s
s

150



5
. 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1

2

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
s

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
, 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 –
th
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fo
rm
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te
rn
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
g
u
la
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

m
o
d
e
l 
w
h
ic
h
 c
la
ri
fi
e
s
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
.

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

a
n
d
 F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
(c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
)

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2

O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
ro
u
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 –
w
h
ils
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 

m
o
d
e
ls
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
, 
it
s
 o
w
n
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 w
ill
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 s
h
if
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 is
 d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
ro
u
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
.

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

(p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
)

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

D
e
v
o
lv
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 –
th
e
 

L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 d
e
v
o
lv
in
g
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 c
lo
s
e
r 
to
 

lo
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 in
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
W
o
rk
 is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 

m
e
th
o
d
s
 t
o
 g
ra
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 m
o
re
 p
o
w
e
r 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
.

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
a
fe
ty
 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

a
n
d
 F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
1
1
-1
2
 t
o
 c
a
rr
y
 

fo
rw
a
rd
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
.

151



5
. 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1

2

K
e
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 –
th
e
re
 i
s
 m
o
re
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
o
 t
o
 e
m
b
e
d
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y 
to
 ‘
c
lo
s
e
 t
h
e
 

lo
o
p
’ 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn
 f
ro
m
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
.

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
t 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 –
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
D
ir
e
c
to
r

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2

D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
lit
y 
–
e
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y 

p
o
lic
y 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 

d
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y 
p
o
lic
y 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
.

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

M
a
y 
2
0
1
3

D
a
ta
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 –
th
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 D
a
ta
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
a
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 G
ro
u
p
s
 (
D
U
G
G
) 
th
a
t 
s
it
 w
it
h
in
 

e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
. 
T
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y 
in
te
ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
re
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
in
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
.

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

(C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

p
o
rt
fo
lio
)

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

O
n
-g
o
in
g

152



T
o
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
, 
th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
. 
 W

e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

c
o
m
in
g
 y
e
a
r 
to
 t
a
k
e
 s
te
p
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 m
a
tt
e
rs
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 o
u
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

W
e
 a
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 s
te
p
s
 w
ill
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
ir
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
n
e
x
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie
w
.

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il:
 _
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
a
te
: 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
: 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
a
te
: 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

6
. 

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 

153



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

: 
P

u
b

li
s

h
e

d
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 o

f 
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e

�
C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 –
P
a
rt
 5
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n

�
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
h
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 p
a
g
e
 1
8

�
Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

�
In
te
rn
a
l A
u
d
it
, 
R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
A
F
T
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

�
In
te
rn
a
l A
u
d
it
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

�
P
a
y
 P
o
lic
y
 2
0
1
2
-1
3

�
C
A
F
T
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

�
E
x
te
rn
a
l A
u
d
it
 A
n
n
u
a
l A
u
d
it
 L
e
tt
e
r 
2
0
1
0
-1
1

�
O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

�
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 r
e
p
o
rt
s

�
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

�
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 T
e
rm

s
 o
f 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
p
la
n
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

�
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2

�
O
ft
s
e
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
to
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 2
0
1
2

�
C
it
iz
e
n
 P
a
n
e
l A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
2

�
L
o
c
a
l A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h

�
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
n
d
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

�
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
1
1

�
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 f
o
ru
m
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
a
 s
u
b
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
, 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1

�
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
in
u
te
s
, 
a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 2
0
1
1
-1
2

154



 
 
 
 
.   

 
 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 21 June 2012 

Subject Un-audited Statement of Accounts 2011/12 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 

Summary To note the un-audited Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 

 

 
Officer Contributors Maria G. Christofi – Assistant Director, Financial Services 

Catherine Peters – Head of Finance, Closing & Monitoring 

Status (public or 

exempt) 

Public 

Wards Affected Not applicable 

For decision by Audit Committee 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Appendix A – Un-audited copy of Statement of Accounts 
2011/12 (to follow) 
Appendix B - External Auditor’s report under International 
Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 for 2010/11 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Antony Russell, Finance Manager Closing & Monitoring 
(020 8359 7862) 

 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 13

155



 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee review the un-audited Statement of Accounts 

2011/12. 
 
1.2 That the Accounting Policies included in the Statement of Accounts be 

adopted. 
 
1.3 That the Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer, in 

consultation with the Chairman of the Audit Committee, be authorised to 
agree significant changes, if any, to the Statement of Accounts, 
following discussion with the external auditor, and to inform members of 
the Committee accordingly. 

 
1.4 That the Committee consider and advise Officers whether there are any 

areas on which they require additional information or action. 
 
2 RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 The 2010/11 Statement of Accounts were reviewed and approved by Audit 

Committee on 16 June 2011. 
 
3 CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Statement of Accounts 2011/12 outlines fundamental aspects of financial 

standing and performance management in Barnet during the year, which 
relates to the council’s “Better Services with Less Money” corporate priority. 

 
4 RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 These are addressed in the Annual Governance Statement and will form part 

of the Statement of Accounts. The Draft Annual Governance Statement is due 
to be considered elsewhere on this agenda. 

 
5 EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Financial monitoring is important to the management of resources to ensure 

the equitable delivery of services to all members of the community. 
 
6 USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 The Statement of Accounts shows the financial position of the council as at 31 

March 2012. 
 
6.2 No procurement, staffing, IT, property or Sustainability issues will arise from 

implementation of the Recommendations of this report. 
 
7 LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 Pursuant to Regulation 11 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations the Council 

156



must,  as soon as reasonably possible after conclusion of an audit, and in any 
event before the 30th September immediately following the end of a year, 
publish a Statement of Accounts prepared in accordance with regulation 7  
and keep copies available for purchase by any person on payment of a 
reasonable sum. 

 
7.2 In the event of a grant of authority, in accordance with Recommendation 1.3 

(above), the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee, will take account of any legal issues which may arise in the 
exercise of the delegated authority. 

 
8 CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 Constitution Part 3, Section 2 details the functions of the Audit Committee 

including “To review and approve the annual Statement of Accounts. 
Specifically, to consider whether the appropriate accounting policies have 
been followed and whether there are concerns arising from the financial 
statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the 
Council”. 

 
9 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
9.1 The Statement of Accounts represents an important formal corporate statutory 

document.  
 
9.2 The un-audited Statement of Accounts is attached as appendix A. The 

external audit began on 01 June 2012 and it is proposed that the Deputy Chief 
Executive and Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Chairman of this 
Committee agree any significant changes following discussions with the 
auditors. Alongside the audit, the Statement of Accounts and all the supporting 
documents will be open for public inspection for a period across June and July 
2012. 

 
9.3 The 2011/12 accounts have been prepared under International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) in line with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting. 

 
9.4 As in previous years, it is essential that the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement (CIES) is considered alongside the council’s financial 
outturn, included in a note to the accounts and which will be presented to 
Cabinet Resources Committee on 20 June 2012. This shows how the council 
performed against its approved budget for 2011/12. The CIES is reconciled 
back to the outturn via the Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS), which in 
effect contains the technical and other accounting adjustments that ensure 
that certain capital charges (eg, depreciation) do not impact in the council tax 
payer. 

 
9.5 Whilst further explanations of the accounts are contained within the Chief 

Finance Officer’s foreword, it is worthwhile highlighting some of the key points 
for 2011/12: 

 

157



9.5.1 The overall financial position of the council has remained consistent from that 
of 31 March 2011. The general fund balance (excluding schools balances) has 
remained at £15.780m. This is in excess of the council’s target balance of 
£15m. 

 
9.5.2 Earmarked reserves have increased to £65.105m, thereby ensuring that the 

council is in a strong position to cope with the financial risks outlined in the 
2012/13 council budget report. It is important to emphasise that the earmarked 
reserves have been established for specific reasons (i.e. to support the One 
Barnet transformation project, cover the costs of potential corporate risks and 
other service specific projects) and are not for general utilisation. 

 
9.5.3 The Housing Revenue Account balance has increased to £7.806m due to an 

in year surplus of £3.576m in 2011/12. 
 
9.5.4 The value of the impairment of the Icelandic investments that had previously 

been recognised in the accounts was £5.969m. In the 2011/12 Accounts this 
impairment has been reduced by £2.825m to £3.144m.  The value of the 
impairment has reduced in 2011/12 compared to previous years due to 
payments received by local authorities during 2011/12 and payments expected 
to be received in the future, as projected by CIPFA’s impairment calculator. 

 
9.6 The Statement of Accounts also includes group account statements for the 

council and its subsidiary companies. The draft accounts of Barnet Homes Ltd 
have been consolidated into the Group Accounts. The Barnet Group Ltd and 
Your Choice (Barnet) Ltd were in operation for two months of the year 
2011/12. However, they will produce 14 month accounts at the end of 2012/13 
that will be consolidated into the council’s 2012/13 Group Accounts. 

 
9.7 Appendix B is the external auditors report to those charged with governance 

for 2010/11, under the International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260. All issues 
raised by the external auditor have been addressed in the statements or the 
processes of the council. 

 
10 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) SCS 

 
 

158



2
5

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
1

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	

��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
��


�
�
��


��
	
�
��

��


��

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
� 
!

159



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

1

C
o

n
te

n
ts

"#
$
%
��
��
�
��
�
&
&
��
'

�
�#

(
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��

)
*#

+
��
�
�
��
��
&
�
�
'

"�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
#

�


�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
� 

�-
�
#

�
�
�
��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��

�/
�
#

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�0

160



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

2

"#
�$
%
��
��
�
��
�
&
&
��
'

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
�


��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�1

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
1
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�1
�
2

�
�

�
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�3

4
��
�
5
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�!
#��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�

�	


��	


��
�

�
6
'�

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
&
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
'
��
�
�
�
��
	�

*"
�8

��
�

��
 "

"#

�


��
��
�
�
��
�&


��
��


�
&
��
�
��
�
�'
��
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��

 �
��
�
�
��
� 

!�
��
��
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
��
�
&
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�7�


�
�
�

�

��
	
�
�2
��


�	
�
�
��
��
�
79�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
#
��


�

�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
� 

9��
�
�
�

�
2
�2
�


��
�
�
��
�

��
	
�
��


&

9��
�
��
�
��
�
��

��
�&

�
�
��
�
��
���
�
��
�
�
�
�
�%
��
#

�


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
��
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�

2


��


��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�*
"�
8
��
�

��
 "

"9
��
�
�
���
��
��
��
&
�

��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
'
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
#��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
6�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
2


�


�
9��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
9��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�:�
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
2

��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
#

3
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
:�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�5
��
��
��
�
2
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
,
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�&

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�2


�


�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
#

A
u

d
it

 c
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

s
	
��


�
�
�

��
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
2
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�2
��


��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�*
"�
8
�'
��
 "

"�
��
�
�

��
��
&
�
��
'�
�
	�
2
�
�6
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�;
�
�
�
� 

""
#��



��
��
��
��
&
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�

��
�

�
�
�&

��
��
�
�
�2
�
�
��
	�

��
�
�

�
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��


�
�
&
�
��
1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
&
��
�
�&

��
�	
��
	�
�

��
#��



�
2
�
�6
��
	�
�
��
�
��
2
�
�
�
��
��


�	


�,
�
��
��
'�

��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�

��
�
1

�
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�2
��


��


�

�
�
�
�
�
��
5
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�'
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��


�
3
�
��
�
�4

��
	�

�
&
�

� 
" 

<
""

��
�

�
�
�
�
!
9�1

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�(
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

��
(
�
�
!#
��
�
=�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
���

	�
2
��


��
�
�
��
���
��
�
�

��
�1

�
��
��
�
�
	9
��
�
�

��


��
�

2
�
2
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�9
�1
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
1
��
��
��
��
�'
�

��
&
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
9��

�
�"
-�
;�
�'
��
 "

"#

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
9�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�&

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

1
�
��
�

��
�

��
�
��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
&
�
�


�
��
�
���

��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
&
�
�!
#��



�
��
�
��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�
��


�
1
��
��
�
��



��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
!�
2
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�'
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
���
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
1
���
��
�
#

161



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

3

�


�
6
'�
&
�
��
	
��
��
��
��
	�
��
�
&
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
&

�
��
��
�
>

?
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��'
�&

��
�
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�(
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
(
�
�
!#

?
�
�	
�
��
��
��
��
�

��
	
��
��
��


�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�'
��
��
�
��
@
�
,
�
��
&
�
��



��
�
1

�
��
�
�
2
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
2
��


��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�

��
��
�
��
�
�#

?
�


�
�
2
�
�
��
�&

��
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
�

��
�
&
&
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�%
��
!#

?
�


�
�
2
�
�
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
	�
�

��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
�

��
�
�
��
��
��
&
&
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�%
��
!#
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
,
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
&

�
��
9��
�
���

2
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
&
1
�
�

� 
""

#

(
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
&
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
#

�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
	�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�2
�
��
�
�
,
�
��
�
��
�

�
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
,
�
��
'�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�

+
��
�
�
��
��
8
�
�
'
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
!#

�
�
%
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
,
�
��
��
�
�
�+
��
�
�
��
��
8
�
�
'
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
	�
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
#�

A
�
2
�
�
9�2

�
2
�
�
��
��
�6
�
��
��
��
2
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
#��
��
��
��
&
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
�
��'
�&

��
�	
�
��


�
��
&
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
#��

9
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
9�2

���
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�&

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
��
2
�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
��
�
��
��
�
�2
�
6�

�
�
��


��
�
1

�
��
�
��'
��
�
�
��
�
#

(
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
&
�
�
'
��
�
�
2
��
�
�	
��
�
���

�
�
��
��
�
�*
#

T
h

e
 w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

8
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
&
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
1

�
��
��
��
��
�
�2
��


�

�

�
�


�
��
(
��
��
�
�B

��
��
�
#��

�


��
�
&
��
�
��
�&

��
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
��

�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
�9
�2


��


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�%
��
#��



��
�



��
�1

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
�2
��


��


�
�


�
��
(
��
��
�
�B

��
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
�
��
�
&
#

U
s

e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

�


��
��
�

�
��
�

��
�1

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�'
��
�
��
�
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
��
�

��
	
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
1
���
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
� 

9��
�
�
��


�
�
��
��
�
��
1
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
#�
�
�
��
��
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
�'
��
�
��
�
'�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
#�
�


��
��
�

�
��
�

�

�
�
��
�1
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
.�
�
��
��
�
�2
��


��


�
�
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
��
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
#

A
c

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

�
�
2
�
�
��
��
�6
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
=

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
#

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
 
�
�
��
!
""

162



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

4

�#
�(
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
ta

g
e

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
�
2
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�2


��


�2
��
��
�
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


8
&

�
��
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
� 

""
#�

B
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
&
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�1
�
�
2
#

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

?
�
�


��
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	�
�

�
� 

 0
<
" 

�

��
��
�
�
��
1
��
��
�
�9
��


��
��
�
�&

��


�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
1
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

�
� 

" 
<
""

��
��
�
�
�
��
#��



��
�2
��
��
�
�
��
�'
��
�
�1
��
�
	�
�

�
� 

" 
<
""

�

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
2
��


��
2

��
�
�
�
�
��
5
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�'
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��


�
�
�
�
!
9�2



��


���
�1
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�(
��
��
��
��
�

�
�

�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
(
�
�
!#
�5
��
�
��
��
��
 "

 <
""

��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
&
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
�1

�
�1
��
�
��
�
�3

4
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�#
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
��

�

��
��


��
	
9��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��&

��
�
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
�
��
  

0<
" 

#

?
�
�


��
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
���
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
&
�
���
�
�
�2
��


��


�
�
2

��
�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�1
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��


��
��


�
�
��
���

2
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
���
�
�#

?
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�2
��


��


�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�

��
��
�
�
��
�2


��


��
�
��
��
��


�
�&

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
(
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
2

�
��


�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
&
�
���
�
�
�2
��


��


�
�
�
�
#

A
ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

u
n

d
e
r 

IF
R

S

?
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
'�
�
�
�
��
�
9��

�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��


�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��

�(
�
�
�
��
��
&

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��


�

6
'�
�

��
	
��


��
�1

�
�&

��
#

?
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
���
�
��
��
���

2
�
�1
'�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
&
�
���
�
��
2
��


��


�
�
�
�
�
#��

�



��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

���
�
2
��


��


�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
���
�
�#

?
B
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��


�

��
	�

��
��
��
��
�

��
	
��
2
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
&
�
��
�
�2
��


��


�
�
�
�
�

�
,
�
��
&

�
��
#

163



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

5

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

?
3
��
�
	�
�
�
��
6�

�
2
�
�
	
��
��
&
��
	
�
��
��
&

��
�
	�
�2
��


��
�
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��

2
�
��
&
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
'�
��
��
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

�
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�
��
�

�
'
��
9��
�
�
��
�	
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��
2


��


�2
�
�
�
�
��

��
���

�
2
��


��
�
��
%
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�

��
	�
�

&

��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
#�

?
�
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
�
1
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	9
��
�6
��
	�
��
��
�6
�1
��
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�

�
�
�
&
��
�
��
&
�
�
��
�C
�
9��
�
��
�
��
��
��
&
�
�
��
��
�
�'
&
�
��
�&

��
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
�
�8

�'
��
 "

"#
��


��
�2
�
�6
���

��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
%
��
�
�
�
9��


�

��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
&
��
	�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
#��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�2
�
�
��
2

�
��


�

��
�
��
�
��
���
��
�
	9
��
��
��
�
	�
6
'�
1
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
	�
�

��
�2


�
�
�
�
�
��
�'
��
��
��
��
��


��
�1

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
'�

�
��
	�

��
�
#

?
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�

��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
'
��
�
�
�
9�

��
	
�

�
�2
��


�&

�
�
&
�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
'�
�
��
	�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�#
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
6�

�
2
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
�

��
��
�&

��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
��
&
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�2
�
�6
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
�

��
���
,
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
�1

�
��
�
�
	�

��
�
#

?
B
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�

�

�
'
��
��
�
�
��


�
1
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
'
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
'
��
�
�
�
#

A
ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s

?
B
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
'
��
���

��
�
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�2
��


��
��
��
�
�#
�B

�
��

2
�
�6
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
��
'
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
1
���


�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
2
��


��
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
#

?
�


�
2
�
�6
��
�
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
9�
�
�'
&
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
��


��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�

��
��
&
�
�
�
��
�

��
�
1

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
'�

�
��
	�

��
�
��
�
�
���

��


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
#

?
D
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�9
�

��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
9��
�
�
��
�&

�
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�1
�
��
�
�
��
�
���
�
�
2
��


�

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�#
�B

�
��
6�

�
2
�
�
	
��
��

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
&
��
��
�
�
��
��

��
	�

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�'
�
��
�
�
#

?
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�
1

�
��
�
�
2
�
��
�
��

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�&

�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
#�
�


��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�'
��
�
'�
��
�
��
�
��

��
�
�
��
#

164



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

6

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

?
�


�
�
2

��
�
�
�
�
��
5
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
���

�
�

�
��
�'
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
,
�
��
�
�

�

��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
7�
�
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
79�
2


��


��
�
��
�
��



��
�
��
�
��
��'
��
��
�
��
��
�1
�
��
&
��
6
��
��
��
9
��
��
D
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
�

��
�
&
�
��
�
�
��
9�1

�
��
�

��
��


��
��
�
2
�1
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�
8
�
�
�
�
�

$
,
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
8
$
�
!�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�


�
�,
�
#
��


�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��

�

��
�2
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��


�
�
��
�&

�


�
�
�
��
	
'9
�

��
��
��
�
��
	�

��
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�1
�
2

�
��
�&

�
�
�
�
�1
�
���

��
	�
��
�
��
���
6
�

��
��
��6
�
�
�
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�1
�
���

��
	#
��


�
8
$
�
��
�
��
��


��
�
��
�
��
'�

��
��
2
��
��
��
��
2
��
�
��
�
	
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
2


��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

&
�
�
�
�
�
,
�
��
��
�
��
1
�
���

��
	�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
,
�
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��

.�
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
�1
�
&
��
�
1
'�
&
��
�	
&

�
�#
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
�

��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
���

��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

� 
" 

<
""

��
�
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
'
��
#��

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
2
�
�

��
��
�
��
���


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��


��
��


��
	
���

��


�
��
��
��
��
�
�

&
�


�
�
�
��
	
'9
���

��
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
��


�
�
��
9��
�1
��
��
�
9��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
9��
�
'�
���

	�
�
�

�
��
9�

�
	�
��
�'
��
��
��
�
9�&

�
�
�
&
�9
�&

�
��
�
��
�
�9
��
&

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
&
��
�
��
�!
#

?
B
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
&
�


�
�
�
��
	�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��


�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�2


��


��


�
�
2
�
�

1
��
�
#

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

R
e
v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fi
x
e
d

 a
s
s
e
ts

?
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�8

$
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�

�
��
&
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

��
��


�
%
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�9
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

&

��
&
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
��
�
�
�#
��



�
�
��
��
��
1
�
9��
��

��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��


�
�
��
9��


�
��
��
��
��
1
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
�1
�
���

��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
&
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
.
��
�#
��


��
��
��
��
�
�
��


�
%
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

2


'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
���

�

��
��
#
��

�
%
�&

��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
��


���

�

�

�
��	


��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
���
1
�
�

	�
��
��
�
#��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

&
�


�
�
�
��
	
'�
2
��
��
�
1
�
��
9�


��
��
��
��
�
�
	�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
%
��
��
�
	�

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
	�

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
'�
%
��
��
#

?
�


�
�
��
��
��
���

��
���
�
��
��
�
��
�&

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
��
1
�
9��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
'�
�
��
��
��
�
��
���
��

��
�
��
9�
�
��
��
�
��
���

��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
&
��


�
�
�
���

��
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�&

��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
!�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
1
��
��
��
�
��
�

�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
.�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
%
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�#
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
���
'�

�
��
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
��
��


#�

165



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

7

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

R
e
v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fi
x
e
d

 a
s
s
e
ts

?
�
�


��
�
�
��
2

�
��


��
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
�

�
�
�
&
��
�
��


��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�1
�
��
�
&
�
��
&
��
�

2


�
�
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
9��


��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

&
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�9
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
1
�
#��

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�

��
�
��
��


��
�6
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
��
�
�
�1
�
�

��
�
��
��
�

��
1
�
�2
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
5
��
��
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
���

�
�

�
��
�'
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	#

?
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
&
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
���

�

� 
" 

<
""

�2
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�&

�
��
�&

�
��
9��

��
��
�
��

%
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
�7�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�
#��

�
�

��
.�
��
&
�
��


��
�1

�
��
	�

�
�2
��


�&

��
�	
&

�
��

��
��
�
��
�
��
'�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
�#

?
�


�
�
2

�	
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

A
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�6
��
��
�
�
��


��
	
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
�

��
�
��


��
�2
��
��
�
��
�
��
'�
�
��
�
�
�
���

��


�
� 

" 
<
""

�

1
��
��
�
�#
��
��
��
�
��
'
��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
2
��
��
��
�
�

�&
�
�
&
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

�

�
	�

��
��
�
���

��
��
�
��
'
��
�#

?
B
�
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
���
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��


��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�'
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
'�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�#

?
3
��
�
	�
��
��
�6
�1
��
�
��
�&

�
���

	�
��
�
��
��


�2
�
�
��
2

�
��


�

��
��
��
��
�
��


��
	
��
�
��
�
��
�
��


��
�
	


��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
&
�
���
�
�
�2
��


��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�#

?
3
�
�
�
��
(
�
�
2


�
��
�
�
	�

��
��
	�
�
�
2
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�&

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
'�
�
��
	�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
��


��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
��


�
��
��
��
�
�&

��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
�
#��

�
�
��
�
��
�

��
&
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
�

1

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�&

�
��
�&

�
��
��


��
�
	


��


�

��
��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�#

?
�


�
1
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
A
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�6
��
��
�
�
��


��
	
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
��
�
�
�2
�
�

�
6
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
��


�
�
2

�

	�
��
��
�
�

��
�1

�
��
�
��
�
��
'�
�&

�
�
&
�
�
�
#

166



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

8

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

?
B
�
��
2
�
�6
��
��
	�
�&

&
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
9�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
&
�
���
�
�
�2
��


�

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�#
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
&
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
�1
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�-
�'
�
��
�'
��
9
�2


��


���
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
2
��


���
��
�
�
���
'�
��
��
��
���

�

�
��
��
�
�#
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��


��
��


�

�
��
�
�
�'
��
�
&
��
�
�
��
�
�
�&

��
6
��
�

��
	
��
�

��
�
	


�
�
��
�

�
'
��
��
�
�
��


��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�'
��
�
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�#
�

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

R
e
v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

?
B
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
&

�
�
��
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
'�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�&

��
6
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�#
�A

�
2
�
�
9��


�

�
�
�
�
�
,
�
��
�
��
���
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�1
�

��
��
�
��
��
7�
��
��
��
��
7
��
��
��
�
��
�&

��
�
�
	�


�

��
��
��
��
��
�
!#
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
2

��
��
&
��
6
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
2


��


�&

�'
�

��
6
��


�
��
�&

��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��


��
	�
�
�
��
&
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
��
��


��
�6
�
��
�
�
�

��
&
�
���
�
�
�2
��


��


�
�
�
�
#
�

?
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�(
�
�
��
�
��
�
&
�
��
2
�
�6
�2
�
�
��
2

�
��
��
�&

�
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
�
&
��
�
2


�


�
��


�
��
1
��
��
�
��
��

�

�
��
�
��
��
��
2
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�1
�

��
��
�
�
�
���

��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
2


�
�
�
�
�'
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
�

��
	
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
���

��


�
��
��
�
�
��
#

?
B
�
��
�(
�
�
��
�
��
�
&
�
��
2
�
�6
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

��
&
�
���
�
�
�2
��


��


�
�
�
�
#

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

fi
x
e
d

 a
s
s
e
ts

?
B
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�'
��
�
'�

��
�
��
��
��
�2


��


�2
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
'�
��
�
	�

��
�
�
�

2


��


��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

�
��
2

��
��
��
���
�
�
��
2
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�'
��
�
�
�

��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
�

�
�
��
��
�
#

?
�


���
��
�

�
�
2
�
�
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�

�
�(
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
9�
�
�
��
2
�
�6
��
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
��
�
��
2
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

2
��


��


�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
	
�
�'
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��


�
�
�
�
#

167



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

9

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

?
B
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


���

��
�
�
�
��
�
1
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��
��
%
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�9
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�9
��
��
�
�
��
��
9��

�
�
��
��
��
�
9��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
9�
�
�
�
=
�


��
��
�
	�
%
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��


�
5
(
��
��


&

#

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

fi
x
e
d

 a
s
s
e
ts

?
B
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
&
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�&
�
�
&
�
��
9�2



��


�

��
�
��
1
�
,
�
�
��
'�
1

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�1
'�
&
��
�	
&

�
�#
��

�


��
�
	�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
%
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
���
�

��
��
��
1
�
#

?
�
�


��
�
&
��
�
��
��
�
��
	
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�2
��


��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���


��
�
	


�
�
��
�

�

�&
�
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�2
�
�
�2

��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
���
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�2
��


��


�
�
��
.
��
#��

�
�
�
,
�
�
��
'9
�2
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
6�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
�
��
�&

�
��
�
��


�
E	
�
���
�
E�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�'
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�1
�
2

�
��


�

�2
�
��
'�
�
&
�#

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 

c
o

u
n

c
il
 t

a
x
 

b
e
n

e
fi

t 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 r
e
v

e
n

u
e
 

a
n

d
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 

s
y
s
te

m

?
�


�
�
��
�
��
���
��
�
�
�2
��
��
�
��
�&

�
�1
'�
�

�

��
��
2
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�2


��
��


��
�2
�
�6
�

��
�
��
��
�
�1
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
&

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

1
�
2

�
��


�
�2

�
��
'�
�
&
�9
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�'
&
�
��
��
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
'�
2
�
�6
��
	�
�

��
�
	


��


�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
&

�
��
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
2

��
'�
�
&
#��

�
�
��
�
��
�

��
&
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��
�'
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�

&
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
	


�
�
��
� 

" 
<
""

9�

2


���
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��


��
�&

��
'�


��
�1

�
�

��
1
�
,
�
�
��
'�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
 "

"<
"�

#��


�
2
�
�6
�

��
&
�
�
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
���
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
�

�

�
1
�
�
��
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


�

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
&
��
�
��
��'
�&

��
��
��
�
#

168



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

10

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

?
B
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
�1
��
��
�
��
2


�
�
.�
�
	
&
�
��

2
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
2
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�#

?
�


�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�

�
�
1
��
��
1
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
���

��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�2
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
6�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
2
��


��
�
�
�
��
���

��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
1
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�2


'�
�

�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
2
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
#
�

?
��
��
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���

2
�
���

	�
��
��
��
��
�
�2
�
��
�
��
��
��
�'
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
&
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�

��
��
��
�
��
��
�
#

A
ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

U
s
e
 o

f 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

s
 a

n
d

 

ju
d

g
m

e
n

ts

?
B
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


��
�

2


�
�
�
2

��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
'�

�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
%�

��
��
��
	�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
�
�
#��



��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
2
�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�

�
��
�1
'�
�

�
�


�
��
(
��
��
�
�B

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
#�

�


��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���

��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�.
�
�
	
&
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
2

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��

��
��
�
�
	�

��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
#

?
D
�
��
�
�
��
1
��
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�'
��
�
'�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
.�
�
	
&
�
��
�&

��
�
�
	�
��
��
	�

�
��
�
��
1
���
�'
��
��
�
1
��
��
1
��
��
�
�#
�

?
��
��
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���

2
�
���

	�

��
��
��
��
�
��
2
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
��

2
�
�
��
�
��
'�
�
�
��
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
2
�
�6
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
.�
�
	
&
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
�
�
�1
�
#�

?
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��


��
	�

�
�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


�

��
�
��
��


��
�6
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�#

169



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

11

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
s
 g

a
in

e
d

?
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
��
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
�
��
�2


�
�
&
�
�
�
��


��
�1

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
'
��
�
�
�
�1
�
��
�
�
��
'
��
�
��
���
�
#��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�&

�
�
��
��
�

�
�

	�
��
��
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
&
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�&

�
�#

In
c
o

m
e
 a

n
d

 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
a
n

d
 

re
s
e
rv

e
s

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

g
ra

n
ts

?
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
�
�F
�-

&
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

	�
��
��
��
��
���
1
���
��
�
��
�
��


�
1
��
��
�
��



��
2


�
�

�

�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
��
'
��
1

�
��
��
���
�
#��

�

��
&
�
�
�
�F
")

&
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	
	
��
��


�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��

2
���
��
�
��
1
�
��
��
��
�
�
#�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
,
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

	�
��
��
��
�
�1
�
�
��
	�

��
�
���

��
�
���
�

��
�
	


��


�

��
��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
2
��


��


�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
���
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

7�
��
��
��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
7��
�
�
�
#��



�
�
�
�
�
��
��



��
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
�'
��


�
�
1
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
2
��


��


�
�
�
�
#

170



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

12

S
ta

tu
s

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�2
��


��


�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�&

�
�1
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
���

�
��
�
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


�8

&
�
��
�
�
�
&
#�

B
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
1
��
��
��
��
�'
��
�
&
�
�
�
��
��


�
�
	


�2
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��


�
��
���

2
��
	�
��
�
�>

?
��
	�

��
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�5
�
��
�
�
�(
�
�
�

?
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�&

��
��
�
�
��
��
�	
�
=�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

?
�
1
��
��
��
	�
��
�
��
�
�
2
��
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

?
�
��
2

��
	�
�
�
��
�1
��
��
�
��



��
�
�
��
9��

�
��
�
��


�
��
	�

��
	�
�
��
�

�

��
��
�
�
��
#

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
,
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
&

�
��
9��
�
���

2
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
&
1
�
�

� 
""

#

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
9�2

�
2
�
�
��
��
�6
�
��
��
�6
�
�
2
�
�
	
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�2
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�,
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�&

�
'�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
,
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�&

��
��
�
#

�
��
&
��
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
���
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
9�

2


��


�2


���
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�&

��
�
��
���
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�&

��
�
�9�
�

�
�
��
�1
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
#
��


�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��


�
��
���

2
��
	�
�
��
�	
��
�


�#
��



�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
9
�2
�


��
�
&
��
�

�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�&

�
��
�
&
�
�9
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��


�
�	
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�%
��
#

O
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

(
�
���

2
��
	�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
�
�
��
1
�
�(
��
��
�
�B

��
��
�
�9�
2
�

2
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�2
��


��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
#��

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��


��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�2
�
�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
�1
'�


�	


�,
�
��
��
'�

2
�
�6
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
2
��


��
�

�	


��
�
���

��
��
�
�
�
��
#

#
�
 
�
�
�


��
$
�
�
�
�
��
 

3
�
�
�
��


�
�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
1
��
�
��
�
��
(
�
�9
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
,
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
��


�
��
1
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
	&

�
��
#�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
	&

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
'�
��
�
��
��
�1
�
��
�
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�9�
2


��


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
%�

�
�
�9
��
�
�
�2


�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
	�

��
��
'�
�
��
2

�
�1
'�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��


�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�&

�6
�
��
E�

B
D
8
E!
9��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
	&

�
�7�
��
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�
�
��
���

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
#�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���

��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
	&

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
 "

 <
""

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
9��

�&
�
'�
�
�
�
��
�9
�

�
�
��
��
�
%�

�
�
�9
��


�
��
%
�
�
��
�
9��



���

�
�
7�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
D
�
�
!9
�

�
�
&
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�9
�D

�
�
�'
��


�
��
%
�
�
��
�
9�$

�
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��

��
�
�5
��
�
�
��
	9
�

�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
#�

�
�


��
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
��


�

��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�1
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
&
&
��
�
�

�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�#
�

B
�
��


�
1
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
1
�
�
	�
�

�
�
B
D
8
�2
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
&
��
�
��
&
�
�'
�2
��


��


�
�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
#

�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�%
	
$
#

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
'�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
&
&
�
�
�
���
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�(
�
�
�
��
�'
��
�
�
�2
�
2
�
�
�1
�
��
�
��
�
�
2
��


�
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

6
'�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�

��
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
�
��
�
�
#��

�
2
�
�
��
���
6
��
�
��
�
�&

��
�'
�

�
��
	�

��
�
�

�
2
�
�6
��
�
�
�
1
'�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
&
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
��
��


�

��
�2
�
�6
��
	�
2
��


��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�'
��
��
	
��
�
��
�
�
2
��


�
2
�
�6
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��


�

&
��
�
��
�
�
��
#�

171



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

13

&
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�$
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
#
�
�
��
��
'
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��


�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
&

�
��
'
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
2


�
�

��
�


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
�

� 
" 

<
""

��
�
��
��
&

�
�
��
�'
��
��
��
�
��
&
�1
��
��
��
�#
#��

�
��
�
��
�
��


��
�
	


��
�'
��
��!
#�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�&

��
�,
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
��
��
�"
00

G�
�

��
�
&
��
���

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��


��
�&

��
�
�#

(
�
���

2
��
	�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�2
��


�&

��
�	
&

�
��
�

��
��


�
�
�
�
�

��
�1

�
��
&
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
&
��
�
��


�
��
�
�#

#
�
�
�
��
�
��
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�&

��
�
�
��
�
��
,
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
�

�1
�
�
��
�

�
��
,
�
��
'�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
�'
&
�
��
�
��

��
��

��
�
9��
��
&
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�#
��

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
��
��
�
��
2
�
�6
���

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�'
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�&

�
��


��
��


�
�
2
�
�
��
&
�
�'
��
&

�
2
�
6�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
��
&
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�&

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
��
�
��

�	
��
�
��
�2


��


��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�'
&
�
��
�2
�
�
&
��
#
��

�
�
�
�
��


��
��


��
��
��
�
�
2
��
�

��
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
��
�
�

&
��
�
�

��
	
��
��
��


�
��

��
'�
�
&
��
�
��
�
��
�'
��


�
�
��
1
�
&
#�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�'
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��


��
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�&

��
�	
��
�
�

�
��
�6
�1
'�
&
��
�

��
	�
�
��

	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�'
&
�
�9
��
�
�
��


��
�
	


��


�

�
�
��
��
��
	�
1
�
�
	
��
&
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
#��

(
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
 

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
&
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
1
�
�
9��


�
�
2
�
�
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
��
&
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
	
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��


��
�

��
�

1

�
�&

��
�
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
9��
�
��
�
�
��
	>

?
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�'
9��

��
�
��
��
�
�
,
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
&
�
&
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
&
�
�
&
�
��
#

?
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
	�

�
��
2
��


��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
���

��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�1
�
��
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
�
�2
��


��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
#

?
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
&
#

?
�
&
�
�
&
�
��
��
��


�
&
��
�
��
�'
��
�
��
'�
��
��
��
5
(
��
���
1
���
��
�
#

?
�
�
&
�
&
��
�
��
�&

�
�
&
�
��
��
�
��


�
A
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
	�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�2
��


��


�
&
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�2


�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
#

?
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
���

��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
���
'�
��
��

�
��
�
�
�'
9��

��
�
��
��
�
�
,
�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
��
��
'#

�
��
�


�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
&
1
�
��
��
&
��
��
��
&

�
��
�2
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
��
��


�
&
�
��
�

��
	�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�1
�
�
2
#��



�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
�


��
�

�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
#

•
�
�
�
	�

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
���

2
�
���

	�
��
��
��
�
��
'�
�
&
�
�
�
��
��
&
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
���
�
	�
F
*#
"&

#
•
�&

�
��
�&

�
��
�
��
1
�
'1
��
6�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
$
�
	2

��
�

�
	
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
.
��
��
�
��
���
�
	�
F
)#
0&

#
•
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
F
)#
�&

��
��
&
��
�

�
�
���
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
���
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
��
�
��
�
1
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
#

•
�
�
�
	�

��
��
�
��
��
F
*#
)&

��
��
1
�
�
��
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
 "

 <
""

��
��
�
�

��
��
 "

"<
"�

��
�
	
�

�
�2
��


��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�
��
1
��
�
'�
��
��
&
�
�
�
��
�1
�
�

��
�
&
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
&
�
�#

172



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

14

•
�
�
�
��
���

��
�&

�
��
�&

�
��
��
�
�
	�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
'
��
��
��
��
���
�
	�
F
�#
/&

��
�
�

�

�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�#

•
�
�
�
	�

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
�
��
��
��
&
�
�
�
��
�
���

��


�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�

%
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
���
�
�&

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
���

��


�
��
�
��
��
�

	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
#

•
�
�
�
��
��
�
���

�	
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
1
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

F
"#
-&

�1
�
2

�
�1
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
1
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
���
�%
��
1
��
��
#

�


�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
,
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
���

�
��
��
�
�
�
�&

��
��
��
&

�
��
9�

�
�

�
��


��
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
�
��
'�
��
��
��
�9�
��
��


�
�
��
�'
7�
�

&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
,
�
�
��
�

��
�&

��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
��
��


&

#�B
�
��
��
�
��
�



��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
'�
�&

�
�
&
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��


��
�

��
�

�
�
��
1

�
��
��
�
��
�
�1
'�
&
��
�	
&

�
�#
��
���
�
��
�

�
&
��
��
��
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
�
�%
��
#

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
k

e
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
%�
�
��


��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
��
6
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
�6
'
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�&

&
�
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�

��
�
��
#�B

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�6
'
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�'
��
&

��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�'
��
�
'�
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
9�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
'�

��
�
��
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
9��


��
��
�
�
�
��
��
&
��
�
��
���
��
6�
��
��


�
��
��
��
�'
��
��

�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
#��



�
�
2
�


��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
�7�
���

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�&

��
�
�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�&

�
��
�
&
�
��

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
���

��
�
�
�
�
�%
��
#

$
�
)
��
*
��
��
%�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�&

�
��
�

�	


��
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
��

��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�'
��
&

#��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�

2
�
�
�
�
�&

��
�
��
��
2
�
6�

�
�
��
2
��


��
��


�
��

��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
��
�

�&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
#��



�
�
2
�
�
�2

�
�&

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

2
�
6�

�
�
�9
��
�
�2


��


�2
�


��
�
&
��
�
�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�%
��
!>

•
�


�
�
��
2

��
��
��

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�	


��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��

�'
��
&

�9
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
2


�
��


��
	
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�#

•
�
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�D

�
�
��
�
�
��
'�
�
&
��
�D

�
!�
��
��
�
��
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
2
�
�6
��
��
�

�
�
	


�2
�

��
6�

�
2
�
�
	
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���

�
�
�
��
6
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��

�
�
2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
�'
��
�
��
�
�
��
�'
��
&
�
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�#
!�

�
�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
&
1
�
��
��
&
��
�
��
��

��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�2


��


�

��
�

1

�
��
�
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�&

��
�	
&

�
�#
��


�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
&
��
�
��
���
��
6�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
�'
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
��
��
��
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
9��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
���

��


��
��
�
�
��
#�

$
�
)
��
*
��
��
��
�
��


��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
�
�
2
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
&
�
���
�
�
�2
��


�

�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
�

�
� 

 �
��
�5
(
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�#
�B

�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
��
2

���
�8

��
�

��
 "

"�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��
&
�
��


�
�
�
,
�
��
&

�
��
#�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�6
�1
��
�
�&

�


�
�
�
��
	'
9�

2


��


���
��
�
&
�
��
�1
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�#
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

2


�


�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
%
�1
���
�'
���

��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
,
�
��
�
'�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
6�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
��


�
'
��
#��

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�

%
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��


��
#

�
�
�
��
2
��
�
��


��
�2
�
�6
���

��
�
�&

��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
���
+
��
�
�
��
��
8
�
�
'
��
+
�8

!�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
�

��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
#�
�


��
�2
�
�6
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
2

�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
!�
2


��


���

��
�
��
��
�
��
�&

��
�
�
��

+
�8

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
#�

173



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

15

�


�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
9�
�
��
2


�
�
�

�
�


��
�

1

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�2
�


��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
6
�
��
�&

�
�
��
�
1
��
��
��
�
�1
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


#��



��
�

&
�
�
��
�

��
�2
�
�
��
�
�&

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
'�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	#
��



�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
&
��
�
��
��
�
��
�2
�
�6
�

��
�
1

�
�

��
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
6
'�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
&
��


�
��
�
��
#�

�


�
�
2
�


��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
���

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
9�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
'�

�
�
�
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
9�2

�


��
�
&
��
�

�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�&

�
��
�
&
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�%
��
!#

%�
�
��


��


�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
�
��
D
��
�
��
��
�
��
(
��
��
�
�=
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
6�
8
��
�	
&

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
���
&
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�'
��
&

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
#��



��
�2
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
&
1
�
��
��
��&

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
�
���

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
#

�


�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
���
��
&
2

�
�6
�

2


��


�2
�
��
�
6�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
2


�
��
�
�	
�
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


#

�


�


 
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
+
��
��
��


�
�
�

�
�


��
�
��
�
	


��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
&
��


�
�


�
��
(
��
��
�
�B

��
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
�


��
��

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�'
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�6
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�#�
�
�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�

2
�
�6
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
#�(

��
&
��


�
�
�
,
�
��
�
��
2
�


��
�

�
��
1
���


�
��


��
��


�
�
��


��
	
�
�2
��


�	
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�	


��

�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�

&

��


�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

'
��
,
�
��
�
��
��
	
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
#

��
��


�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�2
�
�6
9�2

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
'�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
'�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
��
2


��


�

&
�	


��
�
�
�
�
&
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
&
��
�	
��
��
	�
�

�
��
�6
��
��
��
��
�
#

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

(A
G

S
)

�
�


��
�
%
�&

��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��

��
&
�
���
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�#
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
9�2

�
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�2


�


�
�

�

�
��
��
&

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�2
��


��
�
��
6�

�
2
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�#

�
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�1
�

��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
�
��
�
&
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�9
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
��
�
�
���

��
��
�
2
��


��


�
�
�
�
#
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�

��
�

�
�
	


��


�
�
2
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
��
��
�&

�
��
�
&
�
�9
��


�
�
�
��
���

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
�2
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
�

&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
2

�
�
��
�
��
�
�'
#

P
u

b
li

c
 q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

s
�
�
�
�
��
�
�,
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
&
��


�
�
�
1
���
���

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
&

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
'
��
�
�
�
�
�*
"�
8
��
�

��
 "

"#
��


�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
&

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�'
&
�
��
#��

�


��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
9��
��
�
,
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

"0
0G

9��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
&
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
"*

!#
�

H
�
��
�
�&

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�2
���
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��


��
�2
�
�6
#

N
e

x
t 

s
te

p
s

�


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
��
��
,
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
��

�

�
'
��
�
�
�
�
�*
"�
8
��
�

��
 "

"�
�
�
�1


��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�#�
��
��
�
�&

��
	�
��
7�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
&
&
��
�
7
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
���
��
��
2
�
��
�
��


�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
�
��


�

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
��


�
�
,
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
#

174



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

16

*#
�+
��
�
�
��
��
&
�
�
'

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
�


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�5
��
��
��
�
� 

" 
��
�
��
�1
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

�
��
�
�
��
1
���
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
>

•
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

•
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
2
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�

•
�
��
2

��
	
�
��
��
'�
�

�
��
,
�
��
'�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
#

(
�
��
�

�
'
��
�
�
�
�
�*
"�
8
��
�

��
 "

"�
2
�
��
�
�
,
�
��
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

1
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
���

2
��
	�
�2

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
>

?
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
�

?
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
	�
�
	�


�
2
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�#

I

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
,
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
9��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�

�
&

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
�

��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
#

�
�
%
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
,
�
��
��
�
�
�+
��
�
�
��
��
8
�
�
'
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
�

��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
#��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
1
��
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
9�2

��


��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
��

��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
��

D
��
�
��
��
�
��
(
��
��
�
�=
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
6�
8
��
�	
&

�
�7�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
#

�
��
 
�

�
�
�
��
��
*
�
�+
�,
��
)
��
*
��
��
��
��
�
�
��


��


�
 
�
�
�
�
�
�

B
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
#
��
�


�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
&
��
�
��

��
�6
��
��
�
�&

�
��
��
�
�2
�
�6
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�1
�
�
2
>

A
re

a
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
#

�
�
�
2
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
�2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
��
&
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
���
�
��
2

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
���

�
��
�&

��
�
��
	�
��
��
���
��

��
��
�
	�
��
��
�	
�
�#

5
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
'�

��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�



�
��



175



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

17

A
re

a
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
#

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
#

�
�
�
2
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
�2
�
�6
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
#

A
��
��
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
	�

�
��
��
�
��
�
���

��
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
1
�
��
�
�
��
�&

�
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�

��
�&


��
��


�

�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
9�

��
�6


�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
�

��
��


�
��
�
�
%�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
���

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�2


�
�
9��

�
��

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��


�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
�9
�2


���
��

��
	�

��
��
��
�9
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�,
�
��
��
�
�
�

+
(
8
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
#��
�

��
�	
�
��
 �
��
��
*�
��
��
&
�
�
��
�
��
�!
#

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�6
��
��
�
�&

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�:�
�

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�'
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
'#
��

�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��

2
�
6�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�#

�
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
���


�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
�
�1
�
��
�
��
�
&
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
&
�
�
'

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
#

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�6
��
��
�
�&

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�:�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�&
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
'

5
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
���
1
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�&

��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�&

�6
��
	�

��
�
�&

��
�	
�
�
�
��
�&

��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

176



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

18

A
re

a
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
�
�
�#

�


�
�
��
�
6�

�
2
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��

��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
9��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
#�A

�
2
�
�
9�2

�

��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��
��
��
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
�1
�
�
	�
��
6
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
2
�
6�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��


'
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�,
�
��
��
�
�
�+
(
8
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
�'
�
�#

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
�
�#
��

�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��

��
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
#

5
��
&
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
&

�
�
��
��
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�

�
�
�

	�
�
��
��
�

8
��
�	
��
	�
��
�6
��
��
�
�

&
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
'�
�
&
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
#

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�6
��
��
�
�&

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�:�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�&

�6
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
#

8
�6
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
#

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�6
��
��
�
�&

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�:�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�&
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
'#

8
��
�	
��
	�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�'
�

��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�

5
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
#

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�6
��
��
�
�&

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�:�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�&
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
'#
�

5
��
�
�
��
	9
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�

�
2
�
�6
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
'�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��


�

��


�
�
&
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
	�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�

177



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

19

M
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
4
'
��
�
��
�
&
�
��
��
&
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
	�
�&

&
�
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�1
�
�
2
#

#
�
�
�
��
�
 
�	
��


�
�
�

��
$
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
2
�
�6
���

��
�&

��
	�
�
�
��
� 

" 
<
""

�+
��
�
�
��
��
8
�
�
'
��
+
(
8
!�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�2
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
��
6
�
��
��
�
�
2
��
�
��
�
�
&
��
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
#�

��
��
�
��
�
��
	�
2
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�2


�


�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
1
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�'
��
&

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�&

��
�	
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
6�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�9
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
1
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
�1
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
1
�
��
�
��
�
#�

�


�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
1
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
2
���
�"
��
&
�
�
�

��
��
�
&
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
#

�
�


��
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��1

'�
��
�
6�
�
	�
��
��
��
>

•
6
'�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�&

��
�
�

•
��
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
��
	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
	

•
��
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�

•
��
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�#

B
�
��
��
&
&
��
'�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�&

��
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
2
��


�
%�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
���
��
&
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
1
�'
���

�
�

�
��
�
�
%�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�#
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
,
�
��
�

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
	9
�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
���
�
�&

�9
��
�
1
.
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
&
&
�
��
�
��
2



�
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
�#

B
�
��
�
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
�2


���
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
��
��
��


��
�
�
	
��
��
��
 "

"<
"�

��
�
�
�1
'
�
�
�
���
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�

��


�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
���
�
�
��
�
��
�
,
�
��
#

#
�
�
�
��
�
 
�'
�
�
�
�
�
�-
�'
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�'
��
�
�
�
)�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
	
�
�
�2
�
�6
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�6
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
1
�
�
	
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

2


�


�
��
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
&
�
�
'
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�'
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
#

�
�
1
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
2

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�&

�
��
�
��
6
'�
��
�6
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
9��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�2
�
�6
��
�
��
� 

" 
<
""

#��
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
��
6
�
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
2
�
�6
��


��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�&

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
���

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

��
�

��
��
�
��
>

•
�
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
'�
�
�
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
�
�9
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��

&
&

1
�
��
��
�
��
�
'�
�
��
6
'�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
.
��
�#
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�

��
�

�
�
	


��


�
�
2
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
��
��
�&

�
��
�
&
�
�9
��


�
�
�
��
���

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
�2
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
�

&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
2

�
�
��
�
��
�
�'
#

•
�
�
��
���

2
�
��
�
��
�
��
� 

 0
<
" 

��
�

�
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
���
	�

�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
7B

�
�
�
��
�
�
7��
��
&
2

�
�6
#��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�

�
��
&
&
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��


��
�1

�
��&

�
�
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
'�
�
�9
�2


�
�

��
��
�
&
��
��
�
��


��
��


��
	
�
9��


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
&
�
�
��
��
�
	�
&
�
��
�
��

2
�
�
��
��
��
�
#

•
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
��
�&

��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
	
��
��
1
.
��
��
�
�

��
��
�&

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
&
�
�
'
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


��
9��
��


�
�
	


�
�
�
��
�&

��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
9�2

��


��
�
&
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
��

��


�
�
�
9��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
�&

�
��


�
&
�.
�
��
�'
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�&

��
�
�

��
�	
�
��
��
��
 "

 <
""

#

178



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

20

•
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�2
��


��
��
1
'�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
���

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�	
�
�"
*�
��
�
�"
-!
�2


�
��
�
�&

��
	�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�+
(
8
#

•
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
D
��
�
��
��
�
��
(
��
��
�
�=
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
6�
8
��
�	
&

�
�9
���
��
��
	�
��

7��
&
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
7��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
'�
�
&
��
��

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
 "

 <
""

#��
��


�
�
	


��


�
�
�
&
1
�
��
��
��&

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
9�
��
�
�
�
��
&

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
&
��
6
�
�

�&
�
��
�
&
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
���

��


�
�&

�
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
�9
��


�
2
��
	�
�

��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
6�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
#

•
�
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
���

�
��
�	
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��

��
��
�
��
�
���

2
��
	�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

��
���
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
8
�
5
��
#�
�


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

��
�2
�
�6
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
1
�
�
2
#

�
�
�
�


�
�
�


�


 
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
2
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�

'
��
�1
'�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
D
��
�
��
��
�
��
(
��
��
�
�=
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
6�

8
��
�	
&

�
�#
�(
�
���

2
��
	�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�8

�
5
��
9�
�

�

��
���

2
��
	�
��
��
�
�
��
2
�
�
�	
�
�
>

•
&
��
�	
&

�
��
2
�
�
��
��&

�
�
&
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
���

	�
�

•
&
��
�	
&

�
��
2
�
�
��
��
��
�'
��
�
��
��
��
��


�
��
�
�
2
��
�
�
��
�1
���


��


�
%
�
�
��
��
�

2


��


��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��2

��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
�2
��


��
�
�
�
��
��
�

2
��


�
�
��


��
��
	�
��
��
�&

��
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

•
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�2
�
�
��
��
�
�
2
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
,
�
��
��
'�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
��


��
�
�
	
��
�
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

•
2
�
2
�
�
��
��
�
�
2
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�'
��
�
��
��
��


�
�2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
�'
��
�
�1
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
�
�
�
#

�


�
�	
�
�
��
��
��
�
��


��
�
1

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
1
'�
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
��
��
�
�
�
#

�
�


��
�
�
��
2

�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
	�
�
��
��
��
&
�
�
&
�
��
�
	�
�

�
8
�
5
��

�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
�#
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
2

��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
��
�6
��
�
��
�
��
�
��


�

�
,
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
1
'�
�

�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
���

�
#

�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
��


�
��
�
�
��
�	
��
��
�
���

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�6
���

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
���
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�'
��
	�
�
��
��
�#
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�1

�
���

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
2
��
	�
�

�

�
��
�
��
#�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
6
'�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

��
�1

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
&
&
��
�
#

B
�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
��

��
�
���

�
��
�
2
��
2
��


��
��
�
��
��
9�
�
��
��
�
&
�
��
&
��
�	
�
�9
�

�
��
��
�
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
���

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
#

�
�
��
�
	


��
��
�
��
�1
���


�2


�


�
>

•
�

�
�
�
�
��
'�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
	
��
�
��
2
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
'�
��
&
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�+
(
8

•
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
		
�
��
�
	�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
2
��
���

��
��
�
�2
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

•
��
��


�
�1
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
	�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
2
�
�
��
,
�
��
�
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�+
(
8
�

•
�

�
%
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
&
��
�	
��
�
�+
(
8
��
��
6�
2
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

,
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
+
(
8
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
,
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
2
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
��

��
�"
00

G#

B
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�#

179



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

21

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

in
d

in
g

s

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

S
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s

•
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
��
'�
��
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

%
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
,
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
���

�
���
�
�#
�

•
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�6
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�

��
&
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�'
��
��
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
'�
�
��


�
%
�
�
��
�
��

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
�2
��


��
�
�
�
��
��
��


��
��
��
�

�
�
��


��
�
��
��
�&

��
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�#

•
�
��


�
�
	


��


�
�
	�
��
�
��
,
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
�
2
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�1
'�

&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��'
��
�
&
�
�
�
9��


�
��
�
�
�
��
2
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��
2
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
�
��
�
�
��
+
�8

��
�
��
&
�
��
2
�
�6
#

•
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�&

�
�
��
��
) 

��
�
&
��
��
�
&
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�&

�
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�2
�
�
��
��
��
�'
���

��
��
�
#�B

�
��
2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
�&

�
��


��
��


�

�
�
�
�
�'
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
9�
��


�
�

�

��
�
	


��
��
�
�&

��
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�&

��
��
�	
�
=�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
��
�
�

��
�

�
��
�'
��
�&

��
�#

•
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
	
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
%�
&
��
�
'�
"G

J
��
F
0)

#0
&
!�
�
��
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��


��
��


�
�
��
�1
�
��
1
.
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
��
	
�
��
��
�
�
�9
��
��
��
�
��


��
�
��
��'
��
�
&
�
���
�
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
#��



�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
�1
�
�

&
��
6�
�
	�
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��


��
�

��
		
�
��
��


��
��


��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�#

•
�
��


��
��


��
��
�	
�
�
9��


�
&
�.
�
��
�'
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


��
�

��
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
=
��
�
��
%�
&
��
�
'�
/-

J
��
F
/"

#)
&
!�
2
��


��
��
�
�
��
��

��
�
�"
GJ

��
F
"�

#/
&
!�
2
��


��
��


���

�
�
7�
��
�
��
�
�#
��


�
�
&
��
�
��
	�
/J

�
�F
�#
G&

!�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
#�

•
�
�
��
6�

�
2
�
�
	
��


��
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
	�

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
,
�
��
�
��
�&

�
�
��
�
%�
1
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
	�
�

��
9��
�
��

%
�&

�
�
9��
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�'
�	
�
�
�
�#
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
��
��

&
��
�	
&

�
��


��
��
��
�
�
'�
1

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�9
�2
��


�

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
9��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
��
�
���

�;
��
�
��
'�

� 
""

#

•
�


�
&
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
&
�
���
�
�
�2
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�1
�
�
	�
�
��
2
�
��
�
�

1
�
��
�
�
��
1
�
�
	�
��
	�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�1
'�
��
��
�
��
��
��
1
�
�
	�

��
��
�
��
�
�2

��
�
�2
��


�
�
��
��
�&

��
��
�	
�
��
��
#

180



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

22

Is
s
u

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A

u
d

it
 a

re
a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
  
  
  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

in
d

in
g

s
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

S
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s

•
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
6�
��
��


�
�2
�
�6
��
�
�

��
��
�
	
&
�
��
�2
��


��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��


���

�
�
7�
�

2


�
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
&
�
��
��
��

��
�
��
��
��
�2
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
#��



��
��
�
�
6
�
��
��

�

�
%
�
�
��
��
�2


��


��
�
,
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�2
�
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
�&

��
�	
�
��
��
�
��
��
&
�
�
'
���

��
�
&
��

�
��
��
�
��
6
'�
�
&

�
��
>��
�
��
9��

�
1
���
��
��
�
'9
�

,
�
��
��
'�
��
�
��
��
�
�
#��



��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


�

�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�6
9�
��
�
��
��
��
�'
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
&
�
��
��
��
�

�
��


��
��
�

�
�

�
�
1
���
��
�
��
��
1
�
�
�
��
2
��


�2


�
&
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
!#

•
(
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
2
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
�&

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
���
��
�&

2
�
�6
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�2
��


��
�
�
�
��
��
�

��
�

1

�
���
��
�
9�
1
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�

�
�1
'�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
1

�
�

�
1
��
��
�
#�A

�
2
�
�
9��
�
�&

��
�	
��
��
�
��


�
�
�'
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
��
�
&
�
��


��
�1

�
��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�9�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

��
��
#��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
9�2

�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
�
��
���

��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
1
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
2
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�'
9�,

�
��
��
'�
��
�
��
��
�
�
#

•
(
�
��
�


���

�
�
7�
�2
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
��


�
&
�.
�
��
�'
��
��
��
�
�9
��
�
��
���

��
�&

2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
��
��
�2
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
	�

�	
�
&

�
��
�

��
�1

�
��
�	
�
�
�1
'�
��
�
�
��
��
#�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
���

��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�2
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
#�

•
�
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
�1
�
�

��
��
�
9��


�
&
�.
�
��
�'
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�2
�
�
��
1
.
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
	�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
&
��
��'
��
K
�
��
�
�B

��
�
�
!�

�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
'9
�,
�
��
��
'�
��
�
�

��
��
�
#

•
�
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��


��
��
��
	
�
�'
�2
�
�

�
�

�
�	
�
�
��
&
�
��
��1

�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�

�
H
A
�
!�
�
��
2
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
��
���
��
��
�
9�2



�
�
��
��
&
�
�
��
��
�
&
��
6
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


��
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
%
��
�9
��
�
��


�
�&

��
�	
��
��
	�
+
(
8

��
�6
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
�#
�

181



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

23

�
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�>

•
�
�
6�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��


��
�
1

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�1
'�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�9�
&
�
��
��
�
��
1
�'
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
��
	�
��
�&

��
�'
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��

��
	�

��
��
��
��
�
�
&
1
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
#

•
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�2
�
�6
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
�
&

�
�
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
��
�
&
��
�	
��
��
	�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
	
�
��
�
��
	�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�,
�
��
��
'9
�	
�
��
�
�

�	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
&
�
�
'
#

•
H
�
�
��
�
�
�
�2
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�&

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
�'
���

��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�1
'�
��
&
�
���
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
�


��
�
1

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��

&
�
��
�
�
=�
�
&
�
���
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
#�

•
B
�
��
�
��
2

��
��
�

��
�2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
��


�
�1
'�
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
#

•
�


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
��
��'
�&

��
�	
�
�

�

��
&
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
9��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
	�
�

��
��
�
�&

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
���
�
�
��
��
%
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
�
�
2
��
	�
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


��
��


�
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
+
(
8
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�%
��
!#

��
��


�
��
�
�
%�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
���

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�2


�
�
9��

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��


�

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
�9
�2


���
��
��
	�

��
��
��
�9
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�&

�
��
���
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�,
�
��
��
�
�
�+
(
8
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
#

�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
���

��
�

�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��


��
��
�
�
��
9�2

�
%
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
,
�
��
��
�
�
�+
��
�
�
��
��
8
�
�
'
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
���

��
	
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
&
'9
�
��
��
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
#�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
9��


�
%
��
��
�
	�
�
�
���

��
�
�
1
���
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�

2
�
6�

�
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
��
	�
�
��
�

��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
&
�6
��
	�
��
��
�
���

	�
2
��


�

�

�
9
�2
�
��
�
��
�&

��


��
�2
�
�
�
��
�
�9
��
��
�

��
��
�&

9
��

�
��
�
�
%
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�'
�

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
2
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
��

��
�"
00

G#

�
�
��
�
��
��


�
�&

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��'
�&

��
�	
��
	�
�

�
��
&
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
&
1
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
#�

�
9
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
9�2

���
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�&

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
��

2
�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��


��
��


�
��
�
��
��
�
�2
�
6�

�
�
��


��
�
1

�
��
�
��'
�

�
��
��
�
#

182



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

24

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

183



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  

20
11

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

.
25

�
#��



�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
� 

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�

�	


��	


��
�

�
6
'�

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
��


�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
�

��
��
�

�
'
��
�
�
�
�
�*
"�
8
��
�

��
 "

"#

�


�
�
�
��
&
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�

&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�&


��
�

�
&
��
�
��
�
�'
�

�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
	�
�3

4
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
!�
��

 #

�
�
2
�
�
��
���
6
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
��


�
&
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

2
��


��
�
��


��
��
�

�
��
��
�&

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�

�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�&

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

2


��


��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
&
��
��'
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

%
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
&

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�#

�


��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�'
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
9��
�
�
��
��


�
�
	


�
��
�

��
�1

�
�&

��
�
��
��
��
1
�
��
�
�&

��
�	
&

�
��
��
�

��
��
���
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�9
��
��
&
�'
��
�
��
1
�
��
6
�
��
��

��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
1
���
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�&

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
	
&
�
�#

�


�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
��
1
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�2
��


��


��
�
��
��
��
�
�2
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

2
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�#

$
�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

�


�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
&
�6
��
	

��
��
��
1
�
��
�
��
��
��
���

��
�

�
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

%
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
2
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�'
#��



�
�
�
�
9��
��

��
�
��
�
��
��
��


��
��


�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�&

��


��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
��
�

�
&
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�

�
��
��
��

��
�
��
�
��
��
9
�

��
��
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
��


�
��
6�

�
2
�
�
	
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
��
��
�
�#

�
�

��
��
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
��
��

*
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�&

��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
��
�

�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
9��
��
�
�&

�
�9
�&

��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
�

&
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�6
9��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	9
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�

&
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�'
��
&

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
#

�


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
��
��
,
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
2
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
�7�
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
#�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
9�

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
��
��
,
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
2
��
���

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


�

��
��
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
&
��
�	
&

�
��

�
��
��
�6
#

��
�
3
4
��
� 

��
,
�
��
�
��
�
&
&
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�>

•
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
�

��
�

��
�
��
1
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��


�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
&
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
	�
��
'�
��
�
�

�
1
.
��
��
��
'�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
	
&
�
��
�
�&

•
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�2
�
�6

•
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
&
��


�
��
�
��

�


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
&
�&

��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�'
��
&

��
�

'
�

��
�
�
��
1
���


�
��
��
2
�
���
��
�

�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
'�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
'�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�#

�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�

�
�
��
&
�
�9
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
'�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

���
�
2
��


��


�
�
,
�
��
&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�#

B
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
���
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�'
��
���
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�#
�

A
�
2
�
�
9�2



�
9
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
	9
�2
�
��
�
��
�'
�

��
'�
��
�
��
�
��
2
�
6�

�
�
�9
�2
�
2
���
��
�

�
��
��


�
�
��
�

'�
�
#

��
��
�
�
�
,
�
�
�
9��

�
��
2
�
�6
��
��
�
�
��
1
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
	
�
��
��
��
�
9�
�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�1
�
��
&
�
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
���

�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
�&

�
�
�
%�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

%
�&

��
��
��
�
�&

�	


��
��
�
��
�'
#

�
�
2
�
�
��
�1
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
'�
��
��


�
�2
�
�6
�

��
��


��
��
	
��
�
�2
��


��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
#

184



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  

20
11

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

.
26

%�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
.
�
�
�
�
��

$
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
,
�
��
�
�
��
��
�	
��
�
'�
�
��
�
���
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
&
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��

��
�
�

�
�
�
�
#��
�
��


��
��
�
�
�
%�
�2
�
�
��
�
��


��
>

?
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�&

��
�	
�
�

��
�
��
1
.
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�'
��
�
�
�'
�
��
L

?
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
��
�
9�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�

�
�&

�

��
�
�
�
��
�&

��'
9��
��
��
��
��
9�
&
�
��
'&

�
�9
�

��
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
1
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�2
��


��


�

�
�
�
�
��
�L

?
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�

�
��


�
��
�&

9��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
L��
�
�

?
��
��
���
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
��
9�2

�
2
���
�&

��
�
��
��
��
�

��
1
�
��
�'
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

6
'�
.�
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
,

�
�
�
��
�
�)
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
'
��
�

�
�
�
�*
"�
8
��
�

��
 "

"�
��
�
��
��
�
���

2
�>

�
�
�
�
�/
�


��
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
7�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
'�

&
�
�
��
�
�
�
�1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�3

�
��
9��
�
��
�&

�
�
��
�

�
(
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��2



��


�

��
�

�
��
�
�
��
1
���
�'
��
�
��
&
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�&

7�
��
�
1
���
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
	
&
�
��
#

�


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&

�
�
��
�
�
�
�1
'�
�

�

K
�
��
��
'�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�D

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��

�
$
�
#�

�
��
�
�
�


�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�,
�
��
��
'�

�
��
2

��
�
��
�
	�
	
&
�
��
#

(
�
��


�
&
�
�
9��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
1
���
���

�
�
��
�1
�
�
�
��
��
�

��
1
.
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
��
�
�
7�
�,
�
��
��
'�
�
��
2

�
�
��
�
��
#

�
�
2
�
�
��
�1
�


��
�
'�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��


�
��


�
��
�&

7�
�

��
�
��
��


��
�
�,
�
��
��
'�
��
��
��
�
�
#

0

�
�
�
�
��
�
�)
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
�'
��
�
�
��

)"
-9
  

 

(
�
�
��
��
�)
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�2
�
�6

G-
9 
  

M

* 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

185



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

27

�
#��

�
�
��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
t 

ty
p

e
�
��
�


�
�
�
�

=
�
��


��
	
���

��


�
��
��
�
�
��
��
1
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
&
�
��

�
�

��
��
��


�
�
�
=
�


�
&
�
�
&
�
��
�
��
��
1
��
��
�
��
��
&
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�

&
��
�
��
��
��

=
�
��


��
	
���

��


�
2
�'
��
��
�2


��


��
�1
��
��
�
���
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
%�

��
�
��
�
�'
��
�
�

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

�
�
1�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

0
!
!
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
.


�

�
�
�

%�
�


�
�
�
�
��
��


�
�
�

��
�


�
�
�
�
�

8
��
��
��
&

�
�

F
*9
"*

 
�
�
�
�
��
���

2
�
���

	�
�


�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
�)


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
*
�
��
��
 
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

)

��
�
��
�
��
�
�


��
�
�
�
�

�

��
	
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�

�

�
'
��
���

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
'�
�
&
�
�
�
��
��
&
��


�
��
��
��
��
�
#��



�
��
��
�

�
��
�

��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
��
��


�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
&
��


�
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
�

��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
�
�
�#

8
��
��
��
&

�
�

F
)9
0-

-
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�


�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
�
�)


��
�
��
�
��
�
)�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�

��
�
�
��
���

��
�
�
�'
�1
�
'�
1
��
6�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���

�
��
�
	�
�

�
'
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�

�
$
�
	2

��
�
�
	
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
.
��
#��



�
�&

�
��
�&

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

��
�
	


��


�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
&
��


�
	
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
�
�
�#
�

8
��
��
��
&

�
�

F
*9
*G

/
5
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�


�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
�)
��
�
��
2
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�.
�
�
�
��
�

�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
 "

 <
""

��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
� 

""
9�


�
2
�
�
9��
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
&
�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
��
1
��
�
'�
��
��
&
�

2
�
�
��
�1
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
&
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

%
�
�
�
��
�
�
#

8
��
��
��
&

�
�

F
�9
�0

 
(
��
��
��
�
	�
��
��
&


�


�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�&

�
��
�&

�
��
�

��
	
��
�
��
	�

��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
���

2
��
	�
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
&
�
�

��
�
	


��


�
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
%�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�#
��


�
1
��
��
�
���
��


�
��
�
)�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
� 
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�


��



�
1�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
�
�
�#

186



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

28

�
�
1�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

0
!
!
!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
.


�

�
�
�

%�
�


�
�
�
�
��
��


�
�
�

��
�


�
�
�
�
�

8
��
��
��
&

�
�

F
)9
��

-
B
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�1
�
���

��
	�

�


�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
�
� 
��
��
�)


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�1
'�
F
)9
*0

"9
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
F
"�

��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
���
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
1
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
2


�
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
	�
'
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
#��



�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
��
�	
��
��
�1
�
�
6�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�	
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��


��
	
���
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
&
��


�
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
��
��
�
.�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
�

�
�
�
��
1
�
��
�
�
�
�#

8
��
��
��
&

�
�

F
�-

9-
G�

�
��
��
��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
��
�1
�
�
��
�
�
�1
�'
�
%�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�'
��


�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
���
�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��


�
�
��
�1
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
2
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
#
��


�
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
�
�
��
2
�
�
��
��


�
�1
�

�
�
��
�
�1
�
2

�
��


�
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�#
�

8
��
��
��
&

�
�

F
"9
- 

�
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
1
��
��

�


�
��
.�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�7�
��


��
�
�
��
F
"9
0"

G�
&
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
1
�
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
1
��
��
#�
�


�
&
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
1
��
��
�
�1
�
2

�
�1
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
1
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
���

1
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�.
�
�

0
"-
3
"4
#

187



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

29

�
#��

��
��
�
��
��
�

$
�
�
�

5
�
6

$
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�


�


 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
��


�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
�

"
&
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�-
�1
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��



�
��

H
2

��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
���

��
 "

 <
""

��
�

�
��
��
��
'�
��
�
�!
�

��
�

�
,
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
&
�


��
��
��
�
��


�
.�
�
	
&
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
&
��
�
1
'�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
#��
�
�
�

�
2
��


��
��
��

�
�
��
&
�
�
�
#��
�
��
��
�
2
��


��


�
�
�
2

��
,
�
��
&

�
��
9��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��


��
	�
�
�
��
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��


��
�6
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�'
��
��
�
��
��
�
�#
�

8
�
��
&

5
��
�
�
�'
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
'�
�
�
��
&
�
��
��


�

��
�
��
��


��
�6
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�'
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
6
�#
��


�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
��
��

&
�'
�1
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
&
&
��
'�
�
�
��
&
�
��

�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
	
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
��


�

��
�
	�

�'
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�2
���
�2
�
�6
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

��
��
�
��
�&

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
%
��
'
��
7�
�

�
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�2
�
�6
��
	�
�
��
�
�#

�
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
�'
>�

5
��
�
�
�'
��
�
��
�
�

*"
�8

��
�

��
 "

�

�
�
�


��
�

B
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��


��
��
��
�

�
) 

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
�2
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
2
��


�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
9��

�
��
	�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�2


��


�

��
�
%�

��
�
�2
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�

%
�
�
��
�
�
#��



�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
6
��
��
�
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
2
��
��
��
��
��
�

�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
���
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

2


�
�
�
,
�
��
�
��

6�
��
��
	�

��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
#�

8
�
��
&

5
��
�
�
�'
��
�
��
�
��
2
���
��


�
6�
�

��
��
���
�
	�
��

�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
2
��
�
�&

��
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
#�
�


��
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
�

2
��


��
��


�
-�
'
��
��
�
���
�
	�
�
��
	�
�&

&
9
��
���

�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
��
��
���
1
�
#��

�
'�
�

��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
1
�
�2
���
�1
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

��
��
�
���
��

2
��


��
�
��
�
�#

�
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
�'
>�

5
��
�
�
�'
��
�
��
�
�

*"
�8

��
�

��
 "

��
��
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��

'
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
'�
�
!

P
ri

o
ri

ty
7
� 
�
=
�
�	
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�'
��
&

�
�
�
��
�

=
$
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�'
��
&

�
�
*

=
�
�
��
�
��
��
��


188



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

30

$
�
�
�

5
�
6

$
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�


�


 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
��


�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
�

*
	
�
��
�
*
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


��


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��
�
&
�
��
��
�
&
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��


�
�
2
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�

��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
1

�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
2
��


�

�	
�
�
��
�&

�
��
�
�#
��
�
��


�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
�&

�
��
�
�
�

&
��
�	
&

�
��
�
�
��
�	


��
��
�
�&

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
6�
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��


�
��
2
�
�6
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
��



��
��
�
��
��
�
�
#�



�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
��
�6
�
��
�
��
��
��


��
	
��
�
�
�

�&
�
��
�
��


�
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
��
	
��
�
#

8
�
��
&

�


�
,
�
��
�
��
'�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
���

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
'�


�	


��
��
�
��
�'
�

�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
�

��
�
�
�
��
1

�
�

�&
�
�
&
�
�
�
�1
'�
&
��
�	
&

�
�#
��


��
��
�

�
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�'
�B

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�
�
��
�,
�
��
�
��
'�

1
��
��
#�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
	�
2


'�

�

�
�
��
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
'
��
1

�
�

�&
�
�
&
�
�
�
���

��


�
�	
�
�
��
�&

�
��
�
�#

$
��


��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
D
��
�
��
��

�
�
&
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�2


�
��
�
�
�
�

�
	�

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

��
���

��
�
��
�'
�"
��
�
�
&
&
�
�
��
��
�
�9
��


'
��
��
��
��

�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

���
��
�
2
��


��
��
��
'�
�
��
1
�
&
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
#

�
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
�'
#�

�
��
��
��
�
��
D
��
�
��
��
�<
�

D
�

�
�'
��


�
��

$
%
��
��
�
�<
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��

*"
�8

��
�

��
 "

�

)
$
�
 
�
�

��
$
�
)
��
*
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�$
� 
�
�

�


�
�
��
2

��
��
��

��
��
�
��
��
	


��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�'
��
&

�9
�

��
�
��
��
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
2


�
��


��
	
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
2
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
�#�

•
�
��
�
��
��
	


��
��
�
��
��
���
'�
�
&
��
�

�
�
��
�1
�
�
��
2

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�1
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
,
�
��
�
��
'!
��
�
��
�
�
��
�'
��
�
'�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	�
#

•
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
�2


�
��
�&

&
1
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
	
��
.�
1
�

��
�
9��


�
���

�
&
��
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
'�
�
&
��
�
�&

��
��
&
�
��
'�

��
��


��
��


�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�1
�
�&

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
'#

8
�
��
&

�


�
��
�
�
��
���
��
2
�
�6
��
	�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
�
�

��
�
�&

���
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�&

�
��
�
��
��
�&

�
'�
��
�

��
�
�2


�
��
��
��
�

�

��
	
�.�

1
��
�
�
�#
��
�
�2
���
�2
�
�6
�2
��


�&

��
�	
�
��

��
�
�A

�
��
��
�

�
�
��


��
#

�
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
�'
>�

��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
'�
�
&
�

*"
�8

��
�

��
 "

�

189



A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

31

$
�
�
�

5
�
6

$
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�


�


 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
��


�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
�

-
%�
�
�
��
�
�
�&
�
�
�
�
�
�
�#
�
�
�
�
��
8%
&
#
9

��
��
��
�
��
�
�&

��
�	
��
�
�

�
��
�6
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
���
�
�

�'
��
&

�9
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���

�
�
�
��
6
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
�
2
�
�6
�

�
��
��
�'
#��



��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�&

�
��
�
&
�
�#
��

�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�D

�
�
��
�
�
��
'�
�
&
��
�D

�
!�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
2
�
�6
#��

�
��
	
	
��
��


��
��


�
�
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
�&

��
�'
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�2


�


�
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�1
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
#

8
�
��
&

�


�
��
�
�
��
��2

���
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�6
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
2
�
�6
��
�
�
��
�'
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
9�
��
��
D
�
�

��
��


�
2
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
&
�
�
'
��
�
�
�

�
&
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
69
��
��
2
���
�1
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�&
�
�
&
�
��
��
�
�
#

�
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
�'
>�

��
��
�&

��
��
�
��
'�
�
&
�

*"
�;
��
�
��
'�
� 

"�

�
�
	
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�


�
�
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��'
�&

��
�	
�
�

�
��
&
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
&
1
�
��
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
&
��
�	
&

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
9��
�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
��
�
	�
�

��
��
�
�&

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
���
�
�
��
��
%
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
�
�
2
��
	�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��


��
��


�
��
��
�
	
&
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��

+
(
8
#

A
�	



�


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
D
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
6�

8
��
�	
&

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
D
�
&

1
�
�&


��
�
	�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
�
&
&
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
&
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
,
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�#
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
��
D
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
&
&
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
&
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�

��
&
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�2

6�
'#
�

(
�
���

2
��
	�
�
�
��
��
&
��


��
9�
�&

�
�
&
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�&

�
��
�
&
�
��
�2
���
�1
�
&
�
�
��
�
�
�
�1
'�

�

�
D
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
&
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�#

�
�
�
�
�
��
1
���
�'
#

D
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
&
&
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

B
�
	�

��
	�

190



191



192

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Members' Item - Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2011/2012
	Members' Item Appendix - Annual Report 2011-12

	6 Progress Report of Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan
	Progress report of Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan - Appendix

	7 Corporate Anti Fraud Team Annual Report 2011-12
	CAFT Annual Report 2011 2012 - Appendix

	8 Exception Recommendations Report and Progress Report up to 6th June 2012
	Exception Recommendations  Progress Report - Appendices A, B, C
	Exception Recommendations  Progress Report - Appendix D

	9 Internal Audit Annual Opinion
	IA Annual Audit Opinion - Appendix

	10 Accounts Audit Approach Memorandum
	Audit Memorandum Report - Appendix A

	12 Draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/2012
	Draft AGS 2011-12 - Appendix

	13 Un-audited Statement of Accounts 2011/12
	Appendix A - Un-audited copy of Statement of Accounts
	Appendix B - Unaudited Statement of Accounts ISA 260


